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Kemper at a glance

Kemper Corporation (NYSE: KMPR) is a leading multi-line insurance holding company providing
an array of property, casualty, life and health products to serve the individual and small
business markets in the United States. Kemper markets to its customers through a network of
independent agents, brokers and career agents.

Our heritage

With a history of providing insurance for more than a century, Kemper remains committed to
serving its customers. The holding company was initially part of Teledyne, Inc., where it grew
through a series of acquisitions. In 1990 the company spun off as Unitrin, Inc., and in 2011 it
rebranded itself as Kemper Corporation. Today Kemper’s 6,000 associates provide innovative
solutions for policyholders and agents.
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On the cover: Artist rendition of the Chicago skyline featuring the Jewelers Building and highlighting The Kemper Building in bold.
See the inside back cover for a photo of these two iconic buildings.



To our shareholders,

At Kemper, we provide our customers with tailored
solutions to suit their product and service needs. And
every day, by partnering with our vast network of agents,
our team makes a positive difference for our millions of

policyholders.

Our customer value proposition is simple: fulfill our
promises. Likewise with our shareholders, we set forth a
balanced strategy that is focused on the future while

delivering today by

e Investing in our future
e Improving profitability

e Maximizing investment portfolio risk-adjusted returns
e Managing capital to deliver shareholder value over time
e Fulfilling our promises to our policyholders

Overall, I'm pleased with our 2013 results and what we
delivered for our customers and our shareholders.

Donald G. Southwell

Investing in our future

In 2013 we generated strong profits, as we benefited from our
ongoing focus to improve underlying business performance.

It takes discipline to focus on long-term profitability,
sometimes even at the expense of the top line in the near
term. An important aspect to our strategy includes expanding
our shared services model. By concentrating key skill sets that
support our businesses, we increase our levels of expertise
and effectiveness while maintaining a more efficient cost
structure.

In these shared service investments, we are making good
progress and getting better. We will continue to invest in
technology, brand, people and analytics in 2014, as we
enhance our customer experience, support our agents and
deliver the shareholder returns we all seek.

Improving profitability

While weather was active in 2013, it was much improved over
the prior year, and you can see that reflected in our Property
& Casualty group results. Our decision to cease direct
marketing activities played out well, as we delivered record
profits in the Direct segment while managing the book in a

run-off mode. We expect to free up capital associated with
this line over the next few years. The Property & Casualty
group’s favorable development also contributed to the
results, as the starting point for the year turned out to be
better than we had expected. Overall, we made good progress
in the Homeowners line, and continued implementing our
rate actions and tightened underwriting plans for Auto
improvement.

We believe interest rates will begin to rise over the medium
term, but the loss of investment income in the interim
pressures our life insurance returns. We are investing in the
Reserve National business to offer products to serve the
growing supplemental health market. While we expect the
impact of these investments to take a few years to earn in, we
are pleased with the team’s progress and with the market’s
receptivity.

When we look at our portfolio of businesses, we consider
each to be core with opportunities for profitable growth. We
expect the greatest growth opportunities to be in the
Property & Casualty group and in the supplemental health
insurance lines. While we do not expect substantial growth in
the life insurance lines, the Life & Health group generates
capital that provides flexibility.



Optimizing our investment portfolio

Overall we are pleased with our investment results. We
continued to optimize our portfolio’s after-tax investment
income, total return and risk. The portfolio delivered $331
million of pre-tax equivalent investment income, up 4 percent
over the previous year, and a 5.7 percent pre-tax equivalent
book yield, compared to 5.5 percent in 2012. Our total return
was positive for the year and has averaged 5.9 percent over
the last three years, generally in-line with our benchmark.

As of year-end, our investment portfolio totaled $6.2 billion.
Our core portfolio was comprised of $4.9 billion of fixed
maturities and short-term investments. On average, these
assets are rated “A” and are well-diversified in terms of issuer,
sector, duration and geographic exposure. Around this core
portfolio, we maintain a diversified mix of common and
preferred stocks, limited partnership investments, and
directly-owned real estate. In keeping with our goal of
reducing single asset exposures, we completed the sale of our
largest real estate asset, The Kemper Building, generating a
$44 million gain while retaining naming rights and signage for
the building.

Looking ahead, we strive to balance our return and risk
considerations in what we expect to be a domestic
environment of gradually rising interest rates and modest
economic strengthening.

Managing capital to deliver shareholder value

Kemper ended the year with $2.1 billion of shareholders’
equity, down modestly from 2012. The combination of
disciplined risk management and effective capital strategies
positions us well for the future.

Kemper:
§7.7B assets
$2.1B shareholders’ equity
23% debt-to-capitalization ratio
93% of fixed maturity portfolio rated investment grade

Our long-term capital deployment priorities continue to
encompass three key areas:

e  Profitable organic growth
e Opportunistic acquisitions that enhance our businesses

e Returning capital to our shareholders through dividends
and share repurchases

We repurchased three million shares of common stock in
2013 and maintained a competitive common stock quarterly
dividend of $0.24 per share. In total, considering both
dividends and common stock repurchases, Kemper returned
$155 million, or 7 percent of our shareholders’ equity, to
shareholders in 2013. Looking ahead, we remain focused on
improving our return on equity and increasing our capital
flexibility over time.

Fulfilling our promises to our policyholders

We anticipate and respond to our dynamic environment. We
are committed to the millions of policyholders we serve and
our thousands of distribution relationships.

We are optimistic when we look at our business model, our
attractive market opportunities and our dedicated associates
who make us Kemper. You can see our tangible progress, and
we have sound plans to continue our momentum so that we
can deliver the returns we seek for you, our shareholders.

February 14, 2014
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Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Kemper Corporation

Conservative balance sheet; strong liquidity

Prudent risk management

History of opportunistic acquisitions & successful integrations

Experienced leadership team
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Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “2013 Annual Report”), including, but not limited to, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of Kemper Corporation (“Kemper”) and its subsidiaries (individually and collectively referred
to herein as the “Company”) and the notes thereto appearing in Item 8 herein (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”), the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations appearing in Item 7 herein (the
“MD&A”) and the other Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules filed as a part hereof or incorporated by reference herein,
may contain or incorporate by reference information that includes or is based on forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the safe-harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Forward-looking statements give expectations or forecasts of future events. The reader can identify these statements by the
fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. They use words such as “believe(s),” “goal(s),” “target(s),”
“estimate(s),” “anticipate(s),” “forecast(s),” “project(s),” “plan(s),” “intend(s),” “expect(s),” “might,” “may” and other words
and terms of similar meaning in connection with a discussion of future operating, financial performance or financial condition.
Forward-looking statements, in particular, include statements relating to future actions, prospective services or products, future
performance or results of current and anticipated services or products, sales efforts, expenses, the outcome of contingencies
such as legal proceedings, trends in operations and financial results.
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Any or all forward-looking statements may turn out to be wrong, and, accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on such statements, which speak only as of the date of this 2013 Annual Report. These statements are based on current
expectations and the current economic environment. They involve a number of risks and uncertainties that are difficult to
predict. These statements are not guarantees of future performance; actual results could differ materially from those expressed
or implied in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can be affected by inaccurate assumptions or by
known or unknown risks and uncertainties. Many such factors will be important in determining the Company’s actual future
results and financial condition. The reader should consider the following list of general factors that could affect the Company’s
future results and financial condition, as well as those discussed below under Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” in this 2013 Annual
Report.

Among the general factors that could cause actual results and financial condition to differ materially from estimated results and
financial condition are:

Factors related to the legal and regulatory environment in which Kemper and its subsidiaries operate

»  Developments in, and outcomes of, initiatives by state officials that could result in significant changes to unclaimed
property laws and claims handling practices with respect to life insurance policies, especially to the extent that such
initiatives result in retroactive application of new requirements to existing life insurance policy contracts;

*  Adverse outcomes in litigation or other legal or regulatory proceedings involving Kemper or its subsidiaries or
affiliates;

*  Governmental actions, including, but not limited to, implementation of the provisions of the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (collectively, the “Health Care
Acts”), the Dodd-Frank Act (the “DFA”), the Risk Management and Own Risk and Solvency Assessment Model Act
(“RMORSA”) and other new laws, regulations or court decisions interpreting existing laws and regulations or policy
provisions;

*  Uncertainties related to regulatory approval of insurance rates, policy forms, license applications and similar matters;

Factors relating to insurance claims and related reserves in the Company’s insurance businesses

» The incidence, frequency, and severity of catastrophes occurring in any particular reporting period or geographic area,
including natural disasters, pandemics and terrorist attacks or other man-made events;

*  The number and severity of insurance claims (including those associated with catastrophe losses) and their impact on
the adequacy of loss reserves;

*  Changes in facts and circumstances affecting assumptions used in determining loss and loss adjustment expenses
(“LAE”) reserves;

*  The impact of inflation on insurance claims, including, but not limited to, the effects attributed to scarcity of resources
available to rebuild damaged structures, including labor and materials and the amount of salvage value recovered for
damaged property;



*  Developments related to insurance policy claims and coverage issues, including, but not limited to, interpretations or
decisions by courts or regulators that may govern or influence losses incurred in connection with hurricanes and other
catastrophes;

*  Orders, interpretations or other actions by regulators that impact the reporting, adjustment and payment of claims;

»  Changes in the pricing or availability of reinsurance, or in the financial condition of reinsurers and amounts
recoverable therefrom;

Factors related to the Company’s ability to compete

»  Changes in the ratings by rating agencies of Kemper and/or its insurance company subsidiaries with regard to credit,
financial strength, claims paying ability and other areas on which the Company is rated;

» The level of success and costs incurred in realizing economies of scale and implementing significant business
consolidations, reorganizations and technology initiatives;

*  Absolute and relative performance of the Company’s products or services;

Factors relating to the business environment in which Kemper and its subsidiaries operate

»  Changes in general economic conditions, including performance of financial markets, interest rates, unemployment
rates and fluctuating values of particular investments held by the Company;

*  Absolute and relative performance of investments held by the Company;

+  Heightened competition, including, with respect to pricing, entry of new competitors, introduction of new
technologies, refinements of existing products and the development of new products by new and existing competitors;

*  Changes in industry trends and significant industry developments;
»  Changes in capital requirements, including the calculations thereof, used by regulators and rating agencies;

* Regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect the cost of, or demand for, the Company’s products or services
or after-tax returns from the Company’s investments;

*  The impact of required participation in windpools and joint underwriting associations, residual market assessments and
assessments for insurance industry insolvencies;

»  Changes in distribution channels, methods or costs resulting from changes in laws or regulations, lawsuits or market
forces;

* Increased costs and risks related to data security; and

Other risks and uncertainties described from time to time in Kemper’s filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”).

No assurances can be given that the results contemplated in any forward-looking statements will be achieved or will be
achieved in any particular timetable. The Company assumes no obligation to publicly correct or update any forward-looking
statements as a result of events or developments subsequent to the date of this 2013 Annual Report. The reader is advised,
however, to consult any further disclosures Kemper makes on related subjects in its filings with the SEC.



PART I
Item 1. Business.

Kemper is a diversified insurance holding company, with subsidiaries that provide automobile, homeowners, life, health, and
other insurance products to individuals and small businesses. Kemper’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form
10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments thereto are accessible free of charge through Kemper’s website,
kemper.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after such materials are filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.

(a) GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS
Credit Agreement

Effective December 31, 2013, Kemper amended its unsecured, revolving credit agreement, expiring March 7, 2016 (the “2016
Credit Agreement”) to, among other things, reduce the amount of the aggregate commitments under the 2016 Credit Agreement
by $100 million, bringing the amount of aggregate commitments to $225 million, and to increase the amount of indebtedness
that may be incurred and outstanding in the aggregate at any time in connection with borrowings from the Federal Home Loan
Bank (“FHLB”) or issuances of surplus notes by $150 million, to $250 million, provided that the aggregate indebtedness
incurred and outstanding in connection with issuances of surplus notes may not exceed $100 million at any one time. The action
resulted from the completion in December 2013 of a process initiated by two of Kemper’s subsidiaries, United Insurance
Company of America (“United Insurance”) and Trinity Universal Insurance Company (“Trinity”), to become members of the
FHLBs of Chicago and Dallas, respectively. The FHLB memberships provide United Insurance and Trinity with access to
additional sources of liquidity and consequently reduce the need for such liquidity at the parent company level. In connection
with the finalization of their FHLB memberships, United Insurance and Trinity purchased capital stock in the FHLB of Chicago
and Dallas, respectively. In addition, to complete Trinity’s membership in the FHLB of Dallas, which became effective as of
December 31, 2013, Trinity and the FHLB of Dallas entered into agreements pursuant to which Trinity may obtain advances
from the FHLB of Dallas. See MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” and Note 6, “Notes Payable,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information.

Reserve National

Reserve National Insurance Company (“Reserve National”) began expanding its distribution channels during 2013. Three
marketing channel initiatives have been launched - Kemper Senior Solutions, Kemper Benefits, and Kemper Dental. Kemper
Senior Solutions markets life insurance and home health care insurance products focusing on the individual senior age
demographic of the market place. Kemper Benefits and Kemper Dental sell voluntary products in the employer market place.
Brokers and non-exclusive independent agents market and distribute Reserve National’s supplemental insurance products in
these new distribution channels. Reserve National appointed 12,900 independent agents in 2013 in connection with these
initiatives. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Reserve National’s operating history with its expanded distribution
channels and new products is limited” and MD&A, “Life and Health Insurance.”

Realignment of Property and Casualty Insurance Business

On February 11, 2014, Kemper issued a press release announcing that it is realigning its Property and Casualty Insurance
business. This realignment will result in one Property and Casualty segment for financial reporting purposes beginning with the
first quarter of 2014. Accordingly, Kemper Preferred, Kemper Specialty and Kemper Direct will no longer be reported as
business segments beginning with the first quarter of 2014.

(b) BUSINESS SEGMENT FINANCIAL DATA

Financial information about Kemper’s business segments for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 is contained
in the following sections of this 2013 Annual Report and is incorporated herein by reference: (i) Note 18, “Business Segments,”
to the Consolidated Financial Statements; and (ii) MD&A.

(c) DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Kemper is a diversified insurance holding company, with subsidiaries that provide automobile, homeowners, life, health, and
other insurance products to individuals and small businesses. The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property
and casualty insurance and life and health insurance businesses. The Company conducts its operations through four operating
segments: Kemper Preferred, Kemper Specialty, Kemper Direct and Life and Health Insurance. The Company’s operations are
conducted solely in the United States.



Kemper’s subsidiaries employ approximately 6,100 full-time associates supporting their operations, of which approximately
300 are employed in the Kemper Preferred segment, 200 are employed in the Kemper Specialty segment, 100 are employed in
the Kemper Direct segment, 1,325 are shared by the Kemper Preferred, Kemper Specialty and Kemper Direct segments, 3,950
are employed in the Life and Health Insurance segment and the remainder are employed in various corporate and other staff
functions.

Property and Casualty Insurance Business
General

The Company’s property and casualty insurance business operations are conducted primarily through the Kemper Preferred,
Kemper Specialty and Kemper Direct segments. In addition, the Life and Health Insurance segment’s career agents also sell
property insurance to its customers. Collectively, these segments provide automobile, homeowners, renters, fire, umbrella and
other types of property and casualty insurance to individuals and commercial automobile insurance to businesses.

Earned premiums from automobile insurance in these segments accounted for 50%, 52% and 54% of the Company’s
consolidated insurance premiums earned in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Revenues from automobile insurance in these
segments accounted for 44%, 47% and 50% of Kemper’s consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively. Homeowners insurance in these segments accounted for 16%, 15% and 14% of the Company’s consolidated
insurance premiums earned in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Homeowners insurance in these segments accounted for 14%,
14% and 13% of the Company’s consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Property insurance indemnifies an insured with an interest in physical property for loss of, or damage to, such property.
Casualty insurance primarily covers liability for damage to property of, or injury to, a person or entity other than the insured. In
most cases, casualty insurance also obligates the insurance company to provide a defense for the insured in litigation arising out
of events covered by the policy.

Kemper Preferred and Kemper Specialty distribute their products through independent agents who are paid commissions for
their services. Kemper Direct distributes its products through employer-sponsored voluntary benefit programs and other affinity
relationships and formerly marketed its products directly to consumers. Kemper Direct ceased direct-to-consumer marketing
activities in 2012.

Kemper Preferred

Kemper Preferred, based in Jacksonville, Florida, conducts business in 38 states and the District of Columbia. Kemper
Preferred primarily sells preferred and standard risk automobile and homeowners insurance. Its insurance products are offered
by approximately 6,000 independent insurance agents. Kemper Preferred’s insurance products accounted for 60% of the
aggregate insurance premium revenues of the Company’s property and casualty insurance business in 2013. As shown in the
following table, five states provided more than half of Kemper Preferred’s premium revenues in 2013.
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State Premiums
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Kemper Specialty

Kemper Specialty, based in Dallas, Texas, conducts business in 21 states, principally in the southwest and western United
States. Kemper Specialty provides personal and commercial automobile insurance. Its policyholders tend to be value-minded
consumers who have had difficulty obtaining standard or preferred risk insurance, usually because of their driving records,
claims experience or premium payment history. Kemper Specialty’s products are offered through approximately 9,300
independent agents and brokers. Kemper Specialty’s insurance products accounted for 27% of the aggregate insurance premium
revenues of the Company’s property and casualty insurance business in 2013. As shown in the following table, five states
provided more than three-fourths of Kemper Specialty’s premium revenues in 2013.
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Kemper Direct

Kemper Direct, based in Chicago, Illinois, underwrites a broad spectrum of personal automobile insurance risks, ranging from
preferred to non-standard. Kemper Direct also offers homeowners and renters insurance complementing its automobile
insurance business. It currently distributes its products through employer-sponsored voluntary benefit programs and other
affinity relationships. Prior to ceasing direct-to-consumer marketing activities in the third quarter of 2012, Kemper Direct also
marketed its products directly to consumers through a variety of direct-to-consumer websites, including its own websites.
Kemper Direct’s insurance products are available in 47 states and the District of Columbia. Kemper Direct’s insurance products
accounted for 8% of the aggregate insurance premium revenues of the Company’s property and casualty insurance business in
2013. As shown in the following table, five states provided more than half of Kemper Direct’s premium revenues in 2013.
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of Total
State Premiums
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Property and Casualty Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

The Company’s reserves for losses and LAE for property and casualty insurance (“Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves”)
are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end
of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid. Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by business segment at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Business Segments:
KeMPET PIEfErTEd ....ccuviviiiieiieieic ettt ettt ettt et et sa e b e e beese e s esesbeesaessessessaensens $ 4128 § 4523
KeMPET SPECIALLY ..ottt ettt ettt st ettt e be et et e s b e eseentebesbesseensenbesneennens 196.4 215.9
KOMPET DITECL ....vieeiiiiieeie ettt et e et e e et e e st essaesseesssessaesssaenseenseensaenseenseenseenseenses 1334 177.8
Life and Health Insurance 5.3 7.0
Total BUSINESS SEZMENLS. ...c..eeuieiiiiriieieiiiteeitete sttt ettt et sttt e e bt s bt et et e st e e st eatenbesbeebeentebesbeeneenes 747.9 853.0
DiSCONTINUEA OPETALIONS ....evveuvenieerieeieierieiietestesteeaetessesseeseessessesseessesessesseessessessesssessessessesssessessesseessenss 83.0 100.7
UNAlloCated RESETVES .....couitinieiiiiiiiieiieiestetei ettt ettt ettt ettt et be b e enes 12.6 16.9
Total Property and Casualty InSUrance RESEIVES........cc.oecuieiiierienieriiecie et $ 8435 § 9706

In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain and the actual
ultimate net cost of claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving process is particularly
imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging and/or long-tailed
exposures that may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s Discontinued Operations are predominantly long-tailed exposures, of which $35.2
million was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at December 31, 2013. See MD&A,
“Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses” beginning on page 58 for a discussion of the Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.

The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while minimizing variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and LAE are
fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE, also referred to as “development,” will occur
over time and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements
when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase in net income in the
period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements when the
Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in a decrease in net income.

Development for each of the Company’s continuing business segments and discontinued operations in 2013, 2012 and 2011
was:

Favorable (Adverse) Development

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Continuing Operations:
Kemper PreferTed........covoviiiiiiiieieiiieiiieieieeieecet ettt ettt b et es et esens $ 275 § 48 § 191
KeMPET SPECIAILY....vieiietieiiete ettt s re et e et e seeseeseenns 4.9 2.3 9.4
KEMPET DITECE .evieiiiiieiieiieieeteeteteste ettt sttt ettt st e et e b e beeseessensesseeneensessesseenean 25.6 17.8 3.9
Life and Health INSUTANCE.........coceeviiriiiiiieiiieeiteeseeeee ettt s 1.8 0.3 2.6
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net........cccecevereeverienereenens 59.8 25.2 35.0
DiScoNtiNUEd OPETALIONS .....cuveverrieiieienieeiieierieeteetete st steetestesteestessessesseentensessesseensensesseennens 4.8 6.3 (1.9)
Total Favorable Development, Net........c.cceieririecieniiiiicieeesieeteeeesieste e e ese e eseessessesreesnens $ o646 $ 315 $ 331

See MD&A, “Catastrophes,” “Kemper Preferred,” “Kemper Specialty,” “Kemper Direct,” and “Life and Health Insurance,” for
the impact of development on the results reported by the Company’s business segments. Also see MD&A, “Critical Accounting



Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses” for
additional information about the Company’s reserving practices.

See Note 5, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a tabular reconciliation
for the three most recent annual periods setting forth the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves as of the
beginning of each year, incurred losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, changes in incurred losses and LAE for
insured events of prior years, payments of losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, payments of losses and LAE
for insured events of prior years and the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves at the end of the year and
additional information regarding the nature of adjustments to incurred losses and LAE for insured events of prior years.

Catastrophe Losses

Catastrophes and natural disasters are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events
and natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and
winter storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and are expected to be, a material factor in the results of operations
and financial position of Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of insured losses that
could occur in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses contribute to material year-to-year fluctuations in the
results of operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more likely to occur at
certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty insurance claims.
The occurrence and severity of catastrophic events cannot be accurately predicted in any year. However, some geographic
locations are more susceptible to these events than others. The Company has endeavored to manage its direct insurance
exposures in certain regions that are prone to naturally occurring catastrophic events through a combination of geographic
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in such regions, and reinsurance. The
Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events promulgated by Insurance
Services Office, Inc. (“ISO”) to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when
the event causes $25 million or more in direct insured losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and
insurers. ISO-classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The
discussions throughout this 2013 Annual Report utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,”
under the caption “Catastrophe losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and/
or financial condition, the availability of reinsurance and the ratings of Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries” for a discussion
of catastrophe risk. See Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the
factors that influence the process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophes.

Reinsurance

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in certain regions and reinsurance. To limit
its exposures to catastrophic events, the Company maintains a primary catastrophe reinsurance program for its property and
casualty insurance businesses. Coverage for the primary catastrophe reinsurance program is provided in various layers. The
Company also purchases reinsurance from the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund (the “FHCF”) for hurricane losses in Florida
at retentions lower than those described below for the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program. In addition to these
programs, the Kemper Preferred segment purchased reinsurance during a three-year period that ended on June 1, 2013 for
catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program.

Coverage for the primary catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2014 is provided in various layers as presented
below:

Catastrophe Losses

and LAE Percentage
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Kemper Preferred, Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty Segments
RELAINEA ...ttt ettt $ — 3 50.0 —%
18t Layer Of COVEIAZE. ... ccveverieerieieieitieiieiesieeteetestesteeseeaessesseessesessesesensessesenens 50.0 100.0 95.0
20nd Layer 0f COVETAZE ......eevverueruieieieiiieiieie sttt ettt ettt sttt ene 100.0 200.0 95.0
3rd Layer Of COVEIAZE ....cververreeeieieiesieeieeieste st etestesteeeeaessesseessessessesseessesesseess 200.0 400.0 95.0



The estimated aggregate annual premium in 2014 for the program presented in the preceding table is $18.9 million for the
Kemper Preferred, Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty catastrophe reinsurance program. In the event that the Company’s
incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered by its catastrophe reinsurance program exceed the retention for a particular layer,
the program requires one reinstatement of such coverage. In such an instance, the Company is required to pay a reinstatement
premium to the reinsurers to reinstate the full amount of reinsurance available under such layer. The reinstatement premium is a
percentage of the original premium based on the ratio of the losses in excess of the Company’s retention to the reinsurers’
coverage limit.

The coverage presented in the preceding table difers from the coverage provided in 2013, 2012 and 2011. See Note 20,
“Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information pertaining to the primary catastrophe
reinsurance programs for the Kemper Preferred, Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty segments for 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Prior to 2013, companies operating in the Life and Health Insurance segment participated in a catastrophe reinsurance program
separate and apart from the catastrophe reinsurance programs covering the Kemper Preferred, Kemper Direct and Kemper
Specialty segments. Over the last several years, the Life and Health Insurance segment has been reducing its exposure to
catastrophic events through the intentional run-off of its dwelling insurance business. Accordingly, the Life and Health
Insurance segment did not renew its catastrophe reinsurance program for 2013. See Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for information pertaining to the Life and Health Insurance segment’s participation in the
Company’s catastrophe reinsurance programs for 2012 and 2011.

In addition to the catastrophe loss exposures caused by natural events described above, Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies are exposed to losses from catastrophic events that are not the result of acts of nature, such as acts of
terrorism, the nature, occurrence and severity of which in any period cannot be accurately predicted. The companies have
reinsurance coverage to address certain exposures to potential future terrorist attacks. The reinsurance coverage for certified
events, as designated by the federal government, is from the Terrorist Risk Insurance Act and the coverage for non-certified
events is available in the catastrophe reinsurance program for Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies. However,
certain perils, such as biological, chemical, nuclear pollution or contamination, are excluded from the Company’s reinsurance
coverage for non-certified events.

In addition to the catastrophe reinsurance programs described above, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies
utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize
exposures on larger risks.

Under the various reinsurance arrangements, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies are indemnified by
reinsurers for certain losses incurred under insurance policies issued by the reinsurers. As indemnity reinsurance does not
discharge an insurer from its direct obligations to policyholders on risks insured, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance
companies remain directly liable. However, provided that the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for Kemper’s
property and casualty insurance companies is limited to the amount of risk that they retain. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies purchase their reinsurance only from reinsurers rated “A-" or better by A. M. Best Co., Inc. (“A.M. Best”),
at the time of purchase. A.M. Best is an organization that specializes in rating insurance and reinsurance companies.

For further discussion of the reinsurance programs, see Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” and Note 21, “Other Reinsurance,”
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pricing

Pricing levels for property and casualty insurance are influenced by many factors, including the frequency and severity of
claims, state regulation and legislation, competition, general business and economic conditions, including market rates of
interest, inflation, expense levels, and judicial decisions. In addition, many state regulators require consideration of investment
income when approving or setting rates, which could reduce underwriting margins. See MD&A under the captions “Kemper
Preferred,” “Kemper Specialty” and “Kemper Direct.”

Competition

Based on the most recent annual data published by A.M. Best as of the end of 2012, there were 1,300 property and casualty
insurance groups in the United States. Kemper’s property and casualty group was among the top 15% of property and casualty
insurance groups in the United States as measured by net written premiums, policyholders’ surplus and admitted assets in 2012.
Among all personal lines automobile insurance writers, Kemper’s property and casualty group was the 22nd largest writer as
measured by net written premiums in 2012.



Rankings by admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus were:

Ordinal Percentile
Measurement Rank Rank
INEt AQMITEEA ASSELS...eeurerietieeieieireiteetestesteettetestesteestetessesseessessesseeseessessesseessessassesssessensessesssessensessenses 120 90%
Net Written Premiums 55 95
Capital ANA SUIPIUS......viiviiiiiiciiei ettt ettt et et et et e et e b e s beetsesbesbeeseessessasseessessesesseessessesseeseas 137 89

In 2012, the property and casualty insurance industry’s estimated net premiums written were $467 billion, of which nearly 60%
were accounted for by the top 50 groups of property and casualty insurance companies. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies wrote less than 1% of the industry’s estimated 2012 premium volume.

Property and casualty insurance is a highly competitive business, particularly with respect to personal automobile insurance.
Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies compete on the basis of, among other measures, (i) using suitable pricing
segmentation, (ii) maintaining underwriting discipline, (iii) offering products in selected markets or geographies, (iv) utilizing
technological innovations for the marketing and sale of insurance, (v) controlling expenses, (vi) maintaining adequate ratings
from A.M. Best and other ratings agencies and (vii) providing quality services to agents and policyholders. See Item 1A., “Risk
Factors,” under the caption “The insurance industry is highly competitive.”

Life and Health Insurance Business

The Company’s Life and Health Insurance segment consists of Kemper’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, United Insurance, The
Reliable Life Insurance Company (“Reliable”), Union National Life Insurance Company (“Union National Life”’), Mutual
Savings Life Insurance Company (“Mutual Savings Life”), United Casualty Insurance Company of America (“United
Casualty”), Union National Fire Insurance Company (“Union National Fire’), Mutual Savings Fire Insurance Company
(“Mutual Savings Fire”) and Reserve National. As discussed below, United Insurance, Reliable, Union National Life, Mutual
Savings Life, United Casualty, Union National Fire and Mutual Savings Fire (the “Kemper Home Service Companies”)
distribute their products through a network of employee, or “career,” agents. Reserve National distributes its products through a
network of independent agents and brokers. These career agents, independent agents and brokers are paid commissions for their
services.

Earned premium from life insurance accounted for 19%, 19% and 18% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums
earned in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Revenues from life insurance accounted for 24% of the Company’s consolidated
revenues from continuing operations in each of the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011. As shown in the following
table, five states provided approximately half of the premium revenues in this segment in 2013.

Percentage
of Total
State Premiums
TIEXAS .ottt ettt e e e et e e eeae e e et e e ee—eeeateeeebeeeatteee—eeeatteeateeeatteearteeaabeeabaeeareeetteeatreeentreenreeents 21%
LLOUISIAIA ...t ettt e ettt e ettt e e st e eae e e eaaeeeaeeeeaeeeesaeesaseeeaeeesaseeesaseesasaeesnesessnteesnsseenneeesnnseennssesnnseennseesnns 11
J N E:1 o T o - IR 7
Mississippi 6
S 1) a e - ORI 4

Kemper Home Service Companies

The Kemper Home Service Companies, based in St. Louis, Missouri, focus on providing individual life and supplemental
accident and health insurance products to customers of modest incomes who desire basic protection for themselves and their
families. Their leading product is ordinary life insurance, including permanent and term insurance. Face amounts of these
policies are lower than those of policies typically sold to higher income customers by other companies in the life insurance
industry. Approximately 78% of the Life and Health Insurance segment’s premium revenues are generated by the Kemper
Home Service Companies.

The Kemper Home Service Companies employ nearly 2,600 career agents to distribute their products in 25 states and the
District of Columbia. These career agents are full-time employees who call on customers in their homes to sell insurance
products, provide services related to policies in force and collect premiums, typically monthly. Premiums average about $18.50



per policy per month. Permanent and term policies are offered primarily on a non-participating, guaranteed-cost basis. These
career agents also distribute certain property insurance products for the Kemper Home Service Companies.

Reserve National

Reserve National, based in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, is licensed in 44 states throughout the United States and has traditionally
specialized in the sale of Medicare Supplement insurance and limited health insurance coverages such as fixed indemnity and
accident-only plans, primarily to individuals in rural areas who often do not have access to a broad array of accident and health
insurance products tailored to meet their individual and family needs. There are approximately 240 independent agents that
typically represent only Reserve National.

Reserve National began expanding its distribution channels during 2013. Three marketing channel initiatives have been
launched - Kemper Senior Solutions, Kemper Benefits, and Kemper Dental. Kemper Senior Solutions markets life insurance
and home health care products focusing on the individual senior age demographic of the market place. Kemper Benefits and
Kemper Dental sell voluntary products in the employer market place. Brokers and non-exclusive independent agents are
utilized to market and distribute products in these new distribution channels. Reserve National appointed 12,900 independent
agents in 2013 in connection with these initiatives.

See “Regulation,” under this Item 1 beginning on page 11, Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Reserve National’s
operating history with its expanded distribution channels and new products is limited,” and MD&A, “Life and Health
Insurance,” for a discussion of the impact of the Health Care Acts on Reserve National.

Reinsurance

Consistent with insurance industry practice, the Company’s life and health insurance companies utilize reinsurance
arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize exposures on larger risks. Prior
to 2013, the segment’s reinsurance arrangements included excess of loss reinsurance coverage specifically designed to protect
against losses arising from catastrophic events under the property insurance policies distributed by the Kemper Home Service
Companies’ agents and written by Kemper’s subsidiaries, United Casualty, Union National Fire and Mutual Savings Fire, and
reinsured by Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity, or written by Capitol County Mutual Fire Insurance Company (“Capitol”), a mutual
insurance company owned by its policyholders, and its subsidiary, Old Reliable Casualty Company (“ORCC”), and reinsured
by Trinity. Over the last several years, the segment has been intentionally reducing its exposure to catastrophic events through
the run-off of its dwelling insurance business. Accordingly, except for catastrophe reinsurance provided by the FHCF, the
Kemper Home Service Companies, Capitol and ORCC did not renew the primary catastrophe reinsurance program for 2013.
The FHCF provides reinsurance for catastrophe losses in Florida. See Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information pertaining to the segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs for 2012
and 2011.

Lapse Ratio

The lapse ratio is a measure of a life insurer’s loss of in-force policies. For a given year, this ratio is commonly computed as the
total face amount of individual life insurance policies lapsed, surrendered, expired and decreased during such year, less policies
increased and revived during such year, divided by the total face amount of policies at the beginning of the year plus the face
amount of policies issued and reinsurance assumed in the prior year. The Life and Health Insurance segment’s lapse ratio for
individual life insurance was 7%, 8% and 9% in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The customer base served by the Kemper Home Service Companies and competing life insurance companies tends to have a
higher incidence of lapse than other demographic segments of the population. Thus, to maintain or increase the level of its
business, the Kemper Home Service Companies must write a high volume of new policies.

Pricing

Premiums for life and health insurance products are based on assumptions with respect to mortality, morbidity, investment
yields, expenses, and lapses and are also affected by state laws and regulations, as well as competition. Pricing assumptions are
based on the experience of Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries, as well as the industry in general, depending on the
factor being considered. The actual profit or loss produced by a product will vary from the anticipated profit if the actual
experience differs from the assumptions used in pricing the product.
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Premiums for policies sold by the Kemper Home Service Companies are set at levels designed to cover the relatively high cost
of “in-home” servicing of such policies. As a result of such higher expenses, incurred claims as a percentage of earned
premiums tend to be lower for companies utilizing this method of distribution than the life insurance industry average.

Premiums for Medicare supplement and other accident and health policies must take into account the rising costs of medical
care. The annual rate of medical cost inflation has historically been higher than the general rate of inflation, necessitating
frequent rate increases, most of which are subject to approval by state regulators.

Competition

Based on the most recent data published by A.M. Best as of the end of 2012, there were 485 life and health insurance company
groups in the United States. The Company’s Life and Health Insurance segment ranked in the top 20% of life and health
insurance company groups, as measured by admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus. Rankings by
admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus were:

Ordinal Percentile

Measurement Rank Rank
INEt AQMILEEA ASSELS...cuvitietieiieiieteetiei ettt ettt ettt et et e te et eb e beeteessebeebeeseesbasbesssessessesseessessessesseeseas 87 82%
INEt WIIHEN PI@MITUIMIS .......ocuiiuieiiiiciieieie sttt ettt e ettt e e s te b e besteesaessesseeseessensassesseensensesseanes 89 81
Capital ANd SUIPIUS......c.ooiiieiiiiecii ettt e et e b e e te e te e aeestaestseeaseesseesbeesseenseeseenseenns 84 82

Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries generally compete by using appropriate pricing, offering products to selected
markets or geographies, controlling expenses, maintaining adequate ratings from A.M. Best and providing competitive services
to agents and policyholders.

Investments

The quality, nature and amount of the various types of investments that can be made by insurance companies are regulated by
state laws. Depending on the state, these laws permit investments in qualified assets, including, but not limited to, municipal,
state and federal government obligations, corporate bonds, real estate, preferred and common stocks, investment partnerships,
and limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships. In addition, the quality, nature and amount of the various
types of investments held by Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries affect the amount of asset risk calculated by regulators and rating
agencies in determining risk-based capital (“RBC”). See “Regulation” immediately following this subsection of Item 1 and
Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “The Company’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may
negatively impact net investment income and cause realized and unrealized losses.”

The Company employs a total return investment strategy, with an emphasis on yield, while maintaining liquidity to meet both
its short and long-term insurance obligations. See the discussions of the Company’s investments under the headings
“Investment Results,” “Investment Quality and Concentrations,” “Investments in Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships,” “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “Critical Accounting Estimates,” in the MD&A, “Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk,” in Item 7A and Note 3, “Investments,” Note 13, “Income from Investments,” and
Note 22, “Fair Value Measurements,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Regulation
Insurance Regulation

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation in the states in which they do business. Such regulation
pertains to a variety of matters, including, but not limited to, policy forms, premium rate plans, licensing of agents, licenses to
transact business, market conduct, trade practices, claims practices, investments and solvency. The majority of Kemper’s
insurance operations are in states requiring prior approval by regulators before proposed rates for property, casualty, or health
insurance policies may be implemented. However, provided that the policy form has been previously approved, rates proposed
for life insurance generally become effective immediately upon filing with a state, even though the same state may require prior
rate approval for other types of insurance. Insurance regulatory authorities perform periodic examinations of an insurer’s
market conduct and other affairs. Kemper’s health insurance subsidiaries are also subject to certain regulation by the federal
government. For example, the Health Care Acts, and the regulations promulgated thereunder, have established minimum loss
ratios, rating restrictions, mandates for essential health benefit coverages, and restrictions or prohibitions on pre-existing
condition exclusions and annual and lifetime policy limits for health insurance policies.
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Insurance companies are required to report their financial condition and results of operation in accordance with statutory
accounting principles prescribed or permitted by state insurance regulators in conjunction with the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners (the “NAIC”). State insurance regulators also prescribe the form and content of statutory financial
statements, perform periodic financial examinations of insurers, set minimum reserve and loss ratio requirements and establish
standards for the types and amounts of investments. In addition, state regulators require minimum capital and surplus levels and
incorporate RBC standards promulgated by the NAIC. These RBC standards are intended to assess the level of risk inherent in
an insurance company’s business and consider items such as asset risk, credit risk, underwriting risk and other business risks
relevant to its operations. In accordance with RBC formulas, a company’s RBC requirements are calculated and compared to its
total adjusted capital to determine whether regulatory intervention is warranted. At December 31, 2013, the total adjusted
capital of each of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries exceeded the minimum levels required under applicable RBC rules.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required to pay assessments up to prescribed limits to fund policyholder losses or liabilities
of insolvent insurance companies under the guaranty fund laws of most states in which they transact business. Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries are also required to participate in various involuntary pools or assigned risk pools, principally involving
windstorms and high risk drivers. In most states, the involuntary pool participation of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries is set in
proportion to their voluntary writings of related lines of business in such states. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption
“Catastrophe losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and/or financial
condition, the availability of reinsurance and the ratings of Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries” for a discussion of the
impact of required participation in windstorm pools and joint underwriting associations on the ability of the Company to
manage its exposure to catastrophic events.

Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries are also subject to the insurance holding company laws of a number of states. Certain
dividends and distributions by an insurance subsidiary are subject to prior approval by the insurance regulators of its state of
domicile. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Kemper relies on receiving dividends from its subsidiaries to service
its debt, to pay dividends to its shareholders or make repurchases of its stock.” Other significant transactions between an
insurance subsidiary and its holding company or other affiliates may require approval by insurance regulators in the state of
domicile of each participating insurance subsidiary. A number of pending and recently approved legislative and regulatory
measures may significantly affect the insurance business. In particular, nearly half of all states have already adopted extensive
modifications to their holding company laws based on amendments to the Model Insurance Holding Company System
Regulatory Act (“IHCS”) adopted by the NAIC in December 2010. With varying effective dates beginning in 2014, these
modifications impose new reporting requirements and substantially expand the oversight and examination powers of state
insurance regulators with regulatory authority over an insurance company to assess enterprise risks within such company’s
entire holding company system that may arise from operations of its insurance and non-insurance affiliates. They also impose
new reporting requirements on the ultimate controlling persons of such insurance companies in respect of, among other things,
affiliated transactions and divestiture of controlling interests in the insurance companies. In addition, a number of states have
adopted the Risk Management and Own Risk and Solvency Assessment Model Act (“RMORSA”) adopted by the NAIC in
September 2012. With varying effective dates beginning in 2015, RMORSA requires insurers to maintain an enterprise risk
management (“ERM”) framework, perform regular assessments of the adequacy of the ERM framework and the company’s
solvency and file an annual ERM assessment summary report. It is anticipated that most states will adopt legislation based on
[HCS and RMORSA. Additional regulation has also resulted from other measures in recent years including, among other
things, tort reform, the Health Care Acts, the DFA, consumer privacy and data security requirements, credit score regulation,
producer compensation regulations, corporate governance requirements and financial services regulation initiatives.

State insurance laws also impose requirements that must be met prior to a change of control of an insurance company or
insurance holding company based on the insurer’s state of domicile and, in some cases, additional states in which it is deemed
commercially domiciled due to the substantial amount of business it conducts therein. These requirements may include the
advance filing of specific information with the state insurance regulators, a public hearing on the matter, and the review and
approval of the change of control by such regulators. The Company has insurance subsidiaries domiciled in Alabama,
California, Illinois, Louisiana, Missouri, New York, Oklahoma, Oregon, Texas or Wisconsin. In these states, except Alabama,
“control” generally is presumed to exist through the direct or indirect ownership of 10% or more of the voting securities of an
insurance company. Control is presumed to exist in Alabama with a 5% or more ownership interest in such securities. Any
purchase of Kemper’s shares that would result in the purchaser owning Kemper’s voting securities in the foregoing percentages
for the states indicated would be presumed to result in the acquisition of control of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries in those
states. Therefore, acquisitions subject to the 10% threshold generally would require the prior approval of insurance regulators in
each state in which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are domiciled or deemed commercially domiciled, including those in
Alabama, while acquisitions subject to the 5% threshold generally would require the prior approval of only Alabama regulators.
Similarly, consistent with the IHCS, several states have enacted legislation that requires either the acquiring and/or divesting
company to notify and receive regulatory approval for a change in control. Other states are expected to adopt similar provisions.
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Many state statutes also require pre-acquisition notification to state insurance regulators of a change of control of an insurance
company licensed in the state if specific market concentration thresholds would be triggered by the acquisition. Such statutes
authorize the issuance of a cease and desist order with respect to the insurance company if certain conditions, such as undue
market concentration, would result from the acquisition. These regulatory requirements may deter, delay or prevent transactions
effecting control of Kemper or its insurance subsidiaries, or the ownership of Kemper’s voting securities, including transactions
that could be advantageous to Kemper’s shareholders.

Dodd-Frank Act

The DFA, enacted in July 2010, profoundly increases federal regulation of the financial services industry, of which the
insurance industry is a part. Among other things, the DFA formed a Federal Insurance Office charged with monitoring the
insurance industry and conducting a study on methods to modernize and improve the insurance regulatory system in the United
States. A report on this study that was delivered to Congress in mid-December 2013 concludes that a hybrid approach to
regulation, involving a combination of state and federal government action, could improve the U.S. insurance system by
attaining uniformity, efficiency and consistency, particularly with respect to solvency and market conduct regulation. A hybrid
approach was also recommended to address the perceived need for uniform supervision of insurance companies with national
and global activities. It is too early to know whether or how the report’s recommendations might result in changes to the current
state-based system of insurance industry regulation or ultimately impact Kemper’s operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Kemper is exposed to numerous risk factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from recent results or anticipated
future results. The following discussion details the significant risk factors that are specific to the Company. In addition to those
described below, the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially affected by other
factors not presently known by, or considered material to, the Company. Readers are advised to consider all of these factors
along with the other information included in this 2013 Annual Report, and to consult any further disclosures Kemper makes on
related subjects in its filings with the SEC.

Changes in the application of state unclaimed property laws and related insurance claims handling practices, particularly
attempts by state officials to apply such changes retroactively to existing insurance policies through examinations and
audits, could result in new requirements that would have a significant effect on (including an acceleration of) the payment
and/or escheatment of life insurance death benefits and significantly increase claims handling costs relative to what is
currently contemplated by Kemper. If attempts by state officials to impose such new requirements on existing insurance
policies are successful on a wide scale, there is a potential for their collective effects to be materially adverse to the
Company’s profitability, financial position and cash flows (the “Unclaimed Property Risk Factor”).

In recent years, many states have begun to aggressively expand the application of their unclaimed property laws as they relate
to life insurance proceeds. The treasurers or controllers (collectively, “Treasurers”) of a large majority of states have engaged
private audit firms to examine the practices and procedures of life insurance companies with respect to the reporting and
remittance of proceeds associated with life insurance policies, annuity contracts and retained asset accounts under state
unclaimed property laws. Certain related measures are also being taken or considered by state insurance regulators, both
individually, and collectively through the auspices of the NAIC. Some state insurance regulators have held administrative
hearings and/or have initiated market conduct examinations focused on claims handling and escheatment practices of life
insurance companies.

As a result of these audits and examinations, a number of large life insurance companies have agreed to alter historic practices
that were previously considered to be lawful and appropriate relative to claims handling and the reporting and remittance of life
insurance policy proceeds to the states under state unclaimed property laws. Based on published reports, at least thirteen life
insurance companies have entered into settlement agreements with state insurance regulators and eighteen with Treasurers.
Under the terms of these agreements, the settling insurance companies typically have agreed to establish a practice of
periodically searching for deceased insureds, even prior to the receipt of a death claim, by comparing their in-force policy
records against a database of reported deaths maintained by the Social Security Administration or a comparable database
(collectively, a “Death Master File” or “DMF”). The settlements typically apply to policies that were in force at any time since
January 1, 1992. In conducting these data comparisons against a Death Master File, the insurers are required to use complex
matching criteria which may result in ambiguous matches. In such cases, the insurer must either accept such matches as valid
and escheat the related policy benefits to the states if the beneficiaries cannot be found, or assume a costly and administratively
burdensome process of disproving any such ambiguous matches which may, in some cases, necessitate a review of older
records that are not in electronic form. All settlements to date with insurance regulators have involved payment of monetary
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penalties (involving amounts ranging from about $1.9 million up to $40 million), while settlements with Treasurers have
required payment of interest on sums remitted to the Treasurers dating from the date of death of the insured (rather than from a
date linked to the insurer’s first awareness of death) and extending as far back as January 1, 1995. As hereafter described,
Kemper’s life insurance subsidiaries (the “Life Companies™) have resisted attempts to date by certain state officials and their
agents to mandate changes to the Life Companies’ claims handling and escheatment practices of the sort embodied in the
foregoing settlements and have challenged through legal proceedings the authority of such officials to require such changes.
There can be no assurances that the Life Companies will ultimately be successful in resisting any such attempts.

Separately, the National Council of Insurance Legislators (“NCOIL”), has adopted model legislation which, if enacted by states
as proposed, would require life insurance companies to compare their in-force life insurance policy records against a Death
Master File for the purpose of proactively identifying potentially deceased insureds for whom the subject life insurance
company has not yet received a claim, including due proof of death. Seven states have enacted legislation of this type, with
varying effective dates (the “DMF Statutes’). Such statutes, if construed to apply to life insurance policies in force on the
statute’s effective date, could have a significant effect on, including an acceleration of, the payment of life insurance benefits to
beneficiaries or, in instances where beneficiaries could not be located, the remittance of such benefits to the states under their
unclaimed property laws. In contrast, New Mexico has enacted a version of the model legislation that applies only
prospectively to life insurance companies, like Kemper’s life insurance companies (the “Life Companies”), that have not
previously used a Death Master File. Similarly, Alabama, has enacted a statute that applies only to policies issued on or after
January 1, 2016. In addition, several states have already introduced some form of DMF Statute in 2014, and Kemper believes
that it is likely that a number of other states will similarly introduce legislation of this sort in their legislative sessions this year.
Kemper cannot presently predict whether any of such legislation will be enacted or, if enacted, exactly what form such
legislation will take.

Certain of the Life Companies have filed a lawsuit challenging the validity of the Kentucky DMF Statute insofar as it purports
to impose new requirements with respect to existing, previously issued life insurance policies. The trial court in that case denied
the subject Life Companies’ motion for summary judgment and held that the requirements of the Kentucky DMF Statute apply
to life insurance policies issued before the Kentucky DMF Statute’s January 1, 2013 effective date. The case is on appeal by the
subject Life Companies and a decision by the Court of Appeals is unlikely before the second half of 2014. In July 2013, certain
of the Life Companies filed a declaratory judgment action, similar to the Kentucky proceeding, in state court in Maryland,
asking the court to construe the Maryland DMF Statute as only applying to policies issued on and after the statute’s October 1,
2013 effective date. The State of Maryland defendants filed a motion to dismiss the action on procedural grounds. A decision by
the trial court in Maryland on the state’s motion to dismiss is unlikely before the second quarter of 2014.

The Life Companies are the subject of an unclaimed property compliance audit (the “Treasurers’ Audit”) by a private audit firm
retained by the Treasurers of thirty-eight states (the “Audit Firm”). In July 2013, the California State Controller (the “CA
Controller”) filed a complaint for injunctive relief against the Life Companies in state court in California, seeking an order
requiring the Life Companies to produce all of their in-force insurance policy records to the Audit Firm to enable the firm to
perform a comparison of such records against a Death Master File and to ascertain whether any of the insureds under such
policies may be deceased. The Life Companies have filed a counterclaim in this case against the CA Controller, seeking a
declaration that there is no obligation under California’s unclaimed property law to perform a DMF comparison and that the
Audit Firm cannot obtain the Life Companies’ records for the purpose of performing such a comparison.

The Life Companies are the subject of a multi-state market conduct examination by six state insurance regulators that is focused
on the Life Companies’ claim settlement and policy administration practices, and specifically their compliance with state
unclaimed property statutes (the “Multi-State Exam”). In July 2013, the Life Companies received requests from the Illinois
Department of Insurance, as the managing lead state for the Multi-State Exam, for a significant volume of additional
information, including all of the subject Life Companies’ records of in-force policies and other information of the type
requested by the Audit Firm as part of the Treasurers’ Audit and which is the subject of the CA Controller’s complaint.

In September 2013, certain of the Life Companies filed declaratory judgment actions against the insurance regulators in four
states participating in the Multi-State Exam, asking the courts in those states to declare that applicable insurance laws do not
require life insurers to search a Death Master File to ascertain whether insureds are deceased. The subject Life Companies are
also asking the courts to declare that regulators in those states do not have legal authority to (i) obtain life insurers’ policy
records for the purpose of comparing data from those records against a Death Master File, and (ii) impose payment obligations
on life insurers before a claim and due proof of death have been submitted. These cases are in various stages procedurally and a
decision in any of them is unlikely before the second quarter of 2014.

Should these various efforts by state officials succeed in retroactively imposing new claims handling and escheatment
requirements with regard to previously issued life insurance policies, they could have a material adverse effect on the
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Company’s profitability, financial position and cash flows. The Company’s stance in opposition to the aforementioned actions
by state legislators, Treasurers and insurance regulators, including the Company’s initiation of the litigation described above,
also creates a risk of reputational damage to the Company among various constituencies (including its principal insurance
regulators, rating agencies, investors, and insurance agents) if the Company’s position is not ultimately vindicated.

See Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the sections of the MD&A entitled “Life and
Health Insurance” and “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for additional information on these matters.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulation, and emerging practices in the evolving legal and
regulatory landscape in which they operate could result in increased operating costs, reduced profitability and limited
growth.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries operate under an extensive insurance regulatory system. Current laws and regulations
encompass a wide variety of matters, including policy forms, premium rates, licensing, market conduct, trade practices, claims
practices, investment standards, statutory capital and surplus requirements, reserve and loss ratio requirements, restrictions on
transactions among affiliates and consumer privacy. They also require the filing of annual and quarterly financial reports and
reports on holding company issues and other matters. Pre-approval requirements restrict the companies from implementing
premium rate changes for property, casualty and health insurance policies, and many other actions. Insurance regulators conduct
periodic examinations of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries and can suspend or delay their operations or licenses, require
corrective actions, and impose penalties or other remedies available for compliance failures. For a more detailed discussion of
the regulations applicable to Kemper’s subsidiaries and these new developments, see “Regulation” in Item 1, beginning on page
11.

These laws and regulations, and their interpretation by the various regulators and courts, are undergoing continual revision and
expansion. The legal and regulatory landscape within which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries conduct their businesses is often
unpredictable. As industry practices and regulatory, judicial, political, social and other conditions change, unexpected and
unintended issues may emerge. These emerging practices, conditions and issues could adversely affect Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries in a variety of ways, including, for example, by expansion of coverages beyond their underwriting intent,
increasing the number or size of claims or accelerating the payment of claims. Industry practices that were considered legally-
compliant and reasonable for years may suddenly be deemed unacceptable by virtue of an unexpected court or regulatory ruling
or changes in regulatory enforcement policies and practices. One example is the changing application by various state officials
of state unclaimed property laws and related claims handling practices that is discussed in the preceding risk factor. Another
example involves a rule adopted in 2013 by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) codifying the
circumstances in which corporate practices that result in a disparate impact on protected classes may constitute a violation of
the Fair Housing Act, even though such practices are neutral on their face. Two insurance industry trade associations have filed
lawsuits challenging HUD’s authority to promulgate this rule, though the outcomes of these suits will not likely be known for
quite some time. Anticipating such shifts in the law and the impact they may have on the Company and its operations is a
difficult task and there can be no assurances that the Company will not encounter such shifts in the future.

The financial market turmoil has resulted in additional scrutiny and proposed regulation of the financial services industry,
including insurance companies and their holding company systems. While it is not possible to predict how new laws or
regulations or new interpretations of existing laws and regulations may impact the operations of Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries, several recent developments have the potential to significantly impact such operations. This includes state
adoption of extensive modifications to the IHCS that will, among other things, substantially expand the oversight and
examination powers of state insurance regulators beyond licensed insurance companies to their non-insurance affiliates, and
impose new reporting requirements with respect to, among other things, enterprise risk to the organization as a whole, affiliated
transactions, and any divestiture of controlling interests in an insurer. In addition, federal legislation has resulted in regulations
affecting health insurers under the Health Care Acts, and potential changes to the state insurance regulatory system may result
from the DFA. See the discussion of the NAIC model act and the DFA under “Regulation” in Item 1, beginning on page 11.

These new developments and significant changes in, or new interpretations of, existing laws and regulations could make it more
expensive for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to conduct and grow their businesses.

Legal and regulatory proceedings are unpredictable and, in particular, the phenomenon of runaway jury verdicts could
result in one or more unexpected verdicts against the Company that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial results for any given period.

Kemper and its subsidiaries are from time to time involved in lawsuits, regulatory inquiries, and other legal proceedings arising
out of the ordinary course of their businesses. Some of these proceedings may involve matters particular to Kemper or one or
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more of its subsidiaries, while others may pertain to business practices in the industry in which Kemper and its subsidiaries
operate. Some lawsuits may seek class action status that, if granted, could expose the Company to potentially significant
liability by virtue of the size of the putative classes. These matters raise difficult factual and legal issues and are subject to
uncertainties and complexities, and the outcomes of these matters are difficult to predict, and the amounts or ranges of potential
loss at particular stages in the proceedings are in most cases difficult or impossible to ascertain. A further complication is that
even where the possibility of an adverse outcome is deemed to be remote using traditional legal analysis, juries sometimes can
and do substitute their subjective views in place of facts and established legal principles. Given the unpredictability of the legal
and regulatory landscape in which the Company operates, there can be no assurance that one or more of these matters will not
produce a result that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial results for any given period.

For information about the Company’s pending litigation, see Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Catastrophe losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and/or financial
condition, the availability of reinsurance and the ratings of Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries.

Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries are subject to claims arising out of catastrophes that may have a
significant effect on their results of operations, liquidity and financial condition. Catastrophes can be caused by various events,
including, but not limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, windstorms, earthquakes, hail storms, explosions, severe winter weather
and wildfires and may include man-made events, such as terrorist attacks and hazardous material spills. The incidence,
frequency and severity of catastrophes are inherently unpredictable, and may be impacted by the uncertain effects of climate
change. The extent of the Company’s losses from a catastrophe is a function of both the total amount of insured exposure in the
geographic area affected by the event and the severity of the event. The Company could experience more than one severe
catastrophic event in any given period.

Kemper’s Life and Health Insurance subsidiaries are particularly exposed to risks of catastrophic mortality, such as pandemic or
other events that result in large numbers of deaths. In addition, the occurrence of such an event in a concentrated geographic
area could have a severe disruptive effect on the Company’s workforce and business operations. The likelihood and severity of
such events cannot be predicted and are difficult to estimate.

The Company uses catastrophe modeling tools developed by third parties to project its potential exposure to catastrophic events
under various scenarios. Such models are based on various assumptions and judgments which may turn out to be wrong. The
actual impact of one or more catastrophic events could adversely and materially differ from these projections.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries seek to reduce their exposure to catastrophe losses through the purchase of catastrophe
reinsurance. Reinsurance does not relieve Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries of their direct liability to their policyholders. As
long as the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries is limited to the amount of risk
that they retain. While the Company’s principal reinsurers are each rated “A-" or better by A.M. Best at the time reinsurance is
purchased, the Company cannot be certain that reinsurers will pay the amounts due from them either now, in the future, or on a
timely basis. A reinsurer’s insolvency or inability to make payments under the terms of its reinsurance agreement could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations and liquidity.

In addition, market conditions beyond the Company’s control determine the availability of the reinsurance protection that
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may purchase. A decrease in the amount of reinsurance protection that Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries purchase generally should increase their risk of loss. However, if the amount of available reinsurance is reduced,
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may be forced to incur additional expenses for reinsurance or may not be able to obtain
sufficient reinsurance on acceptable terms, which could adversely affect the ability of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to write
future insurance policies or result in their retaining more risk with respect to such policies.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries also manage their exposure to catastrophe losses through underwriting strategies such as
reducing exposures in, or withdrawing from, catastrophe-prone areas, establishing appropriate guidelines for insurable
structures, and setting appropriate rates, deductibles, exclusions and policy limits. The extent to which Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries can manage their exposure through such strategies may be limited by law or regulatory action. For example, laws
and regulations may limit the rate or timing at which insurers may non-renew insurance policies in catastrophe-prone areas or
require insurers to participate in wind pools and joint underwriting associations. Generally an insurer’s participation in such
pools and associations are based on the insurer’s market share determined on a state-wide basis. Accordingly, even though
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may not incur a direct insured loss as a result of managing direct catastrophe exposures, they
may incur indirect losses from required participation in pools and associations. Laws and regulations requiring prior approval of
policy forms and premium rates may limit the ability of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to increase rates or deductibles on a
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timely basis, which may result in additional losses or lower returns than otherwise would have occurred in an unregulated
market. See the risk factor below entitled “Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulation, and emerging
practices in the evolving legal and regulatory landscape in which they operate could result in increased operating costs, reduced
profitability and limited growth.”

If the catastrophic risk retained by Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries increases, rating agencies may downgrade the ratings of
Kemper and/or its insurance subsidiaries or require Kemper to retain more capital in its insurance businesses to maintain
existing ratings. See the risk factor below entitled “A significant downgrade in the ratings of Kemper or its insurance
subsidiaries could adversely affect the Company.”

A significant downgrade in the ratings of Kemper or its insurance subsidiaries could adversely and materially affect the
Company.

Third-party rating agencies assess the financial strength and rate the claims-paying ability of insurance companies based on
criteria established by the rating agencies. Third-party ratings are important competitive factors in the insurance industry.
Financial strength ratings are used to assess the financial strength and quality of insurers. A significant downgrade by a
recognized rating agency in the ratings of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries, particularly those operating in the preferred and
standard market or offering homeowners insurance, could result in a substantial loss of business if agents or policyholders of
such subsidiaries move to other companies with higher claims-paying and financial strength ratings. Any substantial loss of
business could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition and results of operations of such subsidiaries. A
downgrade in Kemper’s credit rating by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”’), Moody’s Investors Services (“Moody’s”) or Fitch Ratings
(“Fitch’) may reduce Kemper’s ability to access the capital markets for general corporate purposes or refinance existing debt.

The insurance industry is highly competitive.

The Company’s insurance businesses face significant competition, and its ability to compete is affected by a variety of issues
relative to others in the industry, such as product pricing, service quality, financial strength and name recognition. Competitive
success is based on many factors, including, but not limited to, the following:

+  Competitiveness of prices charged for insurance policies;
»  Selection of agents, web portals and other business partners;
+  Compensation paid to agents;

*  Underwriting discipline;

»  Selectiveness of sales markets;

»  Effectiveness of marketing materials;

*  Product and technological innovation;

+  Ability to detect and prevent fraudulent insurance claims;
*  Ability to control operating expenses;

»  Financial strength ratings; and

*  Quality of services provided to agents and policyholders.

The inability to compete effectively in any of the Company’s insurance businesses could materially reduce the Company’s
customer base and revenues and could adversely affect the future results and financial condition of the Company.

See “Competition” in Item 1 of Part I beginning on page 8 and page 11, for more information on the competitive rankings in the
property and casualty insurance markets and the life and health insurance markets, respectively, in the United States.

Reserve National’s operating history with its expanded distribution channels and new products is limited.

Reserve National’s business model, which has traditionally focused on providing limited benefit and supplemental accident and
health insurance coverages to persons who lack access to traditional private options, continues to be adversely affected by the
Health Care Acts. In response, Reserve National has been adapting its business model by placing emphasis on designing and
selling supplemental health insurance products that are not expected to be as severely impacted by the Health Care Acts and
ceasing to issue health insurance products that are expected to be severely impacted. Because Reserve National’s operating
history with respect to some of these supplemental health insurance products, such as dental and vision insurance products, is
limited, it supplements its data with industry data and experience in determining rates to charge for these products and
projecting returns. It will take several years to develop company-specific experience. Reserve National’s actual experience
could adversely and materially differ from the data and experience on which assumptions and projections are based.
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Reserve National also began expanding its distribution channels during 2013. Three marketing channel initiatives have been
launched - Kemper Senior Solutions, Kemper Benefits, and Kemper Dental. Kemper Senior Solutions markets small face (final
expense) life insurance and home health care products focusing on the individual senior age demographic of the market place.
Kemper Benefits and Kemper Dental sell voluntary supplemental insurance products in the employer market place. Brokers and
non-exclusive independent agents are utilized to market and distribute products in all three of these new distribution channels.
Reserve National appointed 12,900 independent agents in 2013 in connection with these initiatives. Reserve National has
limited history on how its products will perform using these distribution channels. It will take several years to determine if
actual performance meets, exceeds or is below expectations. If performance is below expectations, Reserve National’s financial
position, returns and valuation could be adversely and materially impacted for many years due to the long-term nature of some
of the products sold through these distribution channels.

Failure to maintain the security of personal data and the availability of critical systems may result in lost business,
reputational harm, and legal costs and regulatory penalties.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries obtain and store vast amounts of personal data that can present significant risks to the
Company and its customers and employees. An increasing array of laws and regulations govern the use and storage of such
data, including, for example, social security numbers, credit card data, and personal health information. The Company’s data
systems are vulnerable to security breaches due to the sophistication of cyber-attacks, viruses, malware, hackers and other
external hazards, as well as inadvertent errors, equipment and system failures, and employee misconduct. The Company also
relies on the ability of its business partners to maintain secure systems and processes that comply with legal requirements and
protect personal data. These increased risks and expanding regulatory requirements related to personal data security expose the
Company to potential data loss and resulting damages, reputational risk and significant increases in compliance and litigation
costs. In the event of non-compliance with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard, an information security standard
for organizations that handle cardholder information for the major debit, credit, prepaid, e-purse, ATM and point-of-sale cards,
such organizations could prevent Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries from collecting premium payments from customers by way
of such cards and impose significant fines on Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries.

The Company’s business operations rely on the continuous availability of its computer systems. In addition to disruptions
caused by cyber-attacks or other data breaches, such systems may be adversely affected by natural and man-made catastrophes.
The Company’s failure to maintain business continuity in the wake of such events may prevent the timely completion of critical
processes across its operations, including, for example, insurance policy administration, claims processing, billing, treasury and
investment operations and payroll. These failures could result in significant loss of business, fines and litigation.

The Company’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may negatively impact net investment income and
cause realized and unrealized losses.

The Company maintains a diversified investment portfolio that is exposed to significant financial and capital market risks,
including interest rate, credit, equity price, liquidity risks, risks from changes in tax laws and regulations, and other general
economic conditions.

The interest rate environment has a significant impact on the Company’s financial results and position. In recent years, rates
have been at or near historic lows. A protracted low interest rate environment would continue to place pressure on net
investment income, particularly related to fixed income securities, short-term investments and limited liability investment
companies and limited partnerships accounted for under the equity method of accounting (“Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments”) that invest in distressed and mezzanine debt of other companies. A decline in interest rates would generally
increase the carrying value of the Company’s fixed income securities and its Equity Method Limited Liability Investments that
exhibit debt-like characteristics, but it may have an adverse effect on the Company’s investment income as it invests cash in
new investments that may yield less than the portfolio’s average rate. In a declining interest rate environment, borrowers may
seek to refinance their borrowings at lower rates and, accordingly, prepay or redeem securities the Company holds as
investments more quickly than the Company initially expected. Such prepayment or redemption action may cause the
Company to reinvest the redeemed proceeds in lower yielding investments. An increase in interest rates would generally
reduce the carrying value of a substantial portion of the Company’s investment portfolio, particularly fixed income securities
and Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, which typically provide higher returns but at a higher risk.

The Company invests a significant portion of its investment portfolio in equity securities, which generally have more volatile
returns than fixed income securities and may experience sustained periods of depressed values. There are multiple factors that
could negatively impact the performance of the Company’s equity portfolio, including general economic conditions, industry
or sector deterioration and issuer-specific concerns. A decline in equity values may result in a decrease in dividend income,
realized losses upon sales of the securities, or other-than-temporary impairment charges on securities still held.
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Interest rates and equity returns also have a significant impact on the Company’s pension and postretirement employee benefit
plans. In addition to the impact on carrying values and yields of the underlying assets of the funded plans, interest rates also
impact the discounting of the projected and accumulated benefit obligations of the plans. A decrease in interest rates may have
a negative impact on the funded status of the plans.

The nature and cash flow needs of the Company and the insurance industry in general present certain liquidity risks that may
impact the return of the investment portfolio. If the Company were to experience several significant catastrophic events over a
relatively short period of time, investments may have to be sold in advance of their maturity dates to fund payments to
claimants, which could result in realized losses. Additionally, increases in illiquidity in the financial markets may increase
uncertainty in the valuations of the Company’s investments. This increases the risk that the fair values reported in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements may differ from the actual price that may be obtained in an orderly sales
transaction.

The Company has also benefited from certain tax laws related to its investment portfolio, including dividends received
deductions and tax-exempt municipal securities. Changes in tax laws may have a detrimental effect on the after-tax return of
the Company’s investment portfolio.

The Company’s entire investment portfolio is subject to broad risks inherent in the financial markets, including, but not limited
to, inflation, regulatory changes, inactive capital markets, governmental and social stability, economic outlooks,
unemployment and recession. Changes to these risks and how the market perceives them may impact the financial
performance of the Company’s investments.

Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries are subject to various risk rating and capital adequacy measurements that are
significantly impacted by various characteristics of their invested assets, including asset type, class and credit rating. The
Company’s insurance subsidiaries are also subject to various limitations on the amounts at which they can invest in individual
assets or certain asset classes in the aggregate. Asset risk is one factor used by insurance regulators and rating agencies to
determine the RBC for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries. Accordingly, a deterioration in the quality of the investments held by
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries or an increase in the investment risk inherent in their investment portfolios could increase
capital requirements. See risk factor below entitled “Kemper relies on receiving dividends from its subsidiaries to service its
debt, to pay dividends to its shareholders or make repurchases of its stock”.These factors may inhibit the Company from
shifting its investment mix to produce higher returns. The Company is also subject to concentration risk to the extent that the
portfolio is heavily invested, at any particular time, in specific asset types, classes, industries, sectors, or collateral types,
among other defining features. Developments and the market’s perception thereof in any of these concentrations may
exacerbate the negative effects on our investment portfolio compared to other companies.

Estimating losses and LAE for determining property and casualty insurance reserves, or determining premium rates, is
inherently uncertain, and the Company’s results of operations may be materially impacted if the Company’s insurance
reserves or premium rates are insufficient.

The Company establishes loss and LAE reserves to cover estimated liabilities, which remain unpaid as of the end of each
accounting period, and to investigate and settle all claims incurred under the property and casualty insurance policies that it has
issued. Loss and LAE reserves are established for claims that have been reported to the Company as of the end of the
accounting period, as well as for claims that have occurred but have not yet been reported to the Company. The estimates of
loss and LAE reserves are based on the Company’s assessment of the facts and circumstances known to it at the time, as well as
estimates of the impact of future trends in the severity of claims, the frequency of claims and other factors. See MD&A,
“Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses” beginning on page 58 for a discussion of the Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.

As the process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves is inherently uncertain, the reserves established by the
Company are not precise estimates of liability and could prove to be inadequate to cover its ultimate losses and expenses for
insured events that have occurred. The process of estimating loss reserves is complex and imprecise. The estimate of the
ultimate cost of claims for insured events that have occurred must take into consideration many factors that are dependent on
the outcome of future events associated with the reporting, investigation and settlement of claims. The impacts on the
Company’s estimates of property and casualty insurance reserves from these factors are difficult to assess accurately. A change
in any one or more of the factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate loss that is different than the previous projected
ultimate loss, and may have a material impact on the Company’s estimate of the projected ultimate loss. Increases in the
estimates of ultimate losses and LAE will decrease earnings, while decreases in such estimates will increase earnings, as
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reported by the Company in the results of its operations for the periods in which the changes to the estimates are made by the
Company.

The Company’s actuaries also consider trends in the severity and frequency of claims and other factors when determining the
premium rates to charge for its property and casualty insurance products. An unanticipated change in any one or more of these
factors or trends, as well as a change in competitive conditions, may also result in inadequate premium rates charged for
insurance policies issued by Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries in the future. Such pricing inadequacies
could have a material impact on the Company’s operating results.

Kemper relies on receiving dividends from its subsidiaries to service its debt, to pay dividends to its shareholders or make
repurchases of its stock.

As a holding company with no business operations of its own, Kemper depends on the dividend income that it receives from its
subsidiaries as the primary source of funds to pay interest and principal on its outstanding debt obligations, to pay dividends to
its shareholders and to make repurchases of its stock. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulatory
restrictions under state insurance laws and regulations that limit their ability to declare and pay dividends. These laws and
regulations impose minimum solvency and liquidity requirements on dividends between affiliated companies and require prior
notice to, and may require approval from, state insurance regulators before dividends can be paid. In addition, third-party rating
agencies monitor statutory capital and surplus levels for capital adequacy. Even though a dividend may be payable without
regulatory approval, an insurance subsidiary may forgo paying a dividend to Kemper and retain the capital in its insurance
subsidiaries to maintain or improve the ratings of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries. The inability of one or more of Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries to pay sufficient dividends to Kemper may materially affect Kemper’s ability to timely pay its debt
obligations, to pay dividends to its shareholders or make repurchases of its stock.

Managing technology initiatives to address business developments present significant challenges to the Company.

While technological developments can streamline many business processes and ultimately reduce the cost of operations,
technology initiatives can present short-term cost and implementation risks. In addition, projections of expenses,
implementation schedules and utility of results may be inaccurate and can escalate over time. The financial services industry is
highly regulated, and the Company faces rising costs and competing time constraints in meeting compliance requirements of
new and proposed regulations.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties.

Owned Properties

Kemper’s subsidiaries together own and occupy 13 buildings located in seven states consisting of approximately 49,000 square
feet in the aggregate. Kemper’s subsidiaries hold additional properties that are not occupied by Kemper or its subsidiaries solely
for investment purposes .

Leased Facilities

In 2013, the Company sold the building where Kemper’s corporate and business executive offices and the home office of
Kemper Direct are headquartered. In connection with the sale, the Company leased back five floors, or approximately 67,000
square feet of the 41-story office building.

Kemper Preferred, Kemper Specialty and Kemper Direct lease, either separately or on a shared-basis, facilities with an
aggregate square footage of approximately 427,000 at 12 locations in 8 states. The latest expiration date of the existing leases is
in September of 2018. Kemper’s Life and Health Insurance segment leases facilities with aggregate square footage of
approximately 460,000 at 122 locations in 27 states. The latest expiration date of the existing leases is in January of 2025.
Kemper’s corporate data processing operation leases facilities with aggregate square footage of approximately 36,000 square
feet at two locations in two states. The latest expiration date of the existing leases is in September of 2018.

The properties described above are in good condition. The properties utilized in the Company’s operations consist of facilities
suitable for general office space, call centers and data processing operations.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
Proceedings

Information concerning pending legal proceedings is incorporated herein by reference to Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item S. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Market Information

Kemper’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under the symbol of “KMPR.” Quarterly
information pertaining to market prices of Kemper common stock in 2013 and 2012 is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
Common Stock Market Prices:
Highooooiee e $ 3388 $ 3479 $ 36.56 $ 4131 $ 41.31
LOW et 29.87 30.43 33.23 33.49 29.87
ClOSC..c.uvieiieiieteetete ettt 32.61 34.25 33.60 40.88 40.88
Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Common Stock Market Prices:
Higho oo $ 3099 § 3123  §$ 33.00 $ 3198 $ 33.00
LOW ettt 27.77 28.14 30.08 28.20 27.77
CLOSEC..cutenieieeieeeeie ettt ettt saeens 30.28 30.75 30.71 29.50 29.50
Holders

As of January 16, 2014, the number of record holders of Kemper’s common stock was 4,446.
Dividends

Quarterly information pertaining to payment of dividends on Kemper’s common stock is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)...... $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 0.96

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012

Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)...... $ 024 § 024 $ 024 § 024 $ 0.96

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to various state insurance laws that may restrict the ability of these insurance
subsidiaries to pay dividends without prior regulatory approval. See MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 8§,
“Shareholders’ Equity,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information on Kemper’s ability and intent to pay
dividends.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Information pertaining to purchases of Kemper common stock for the three months ended December 31, 2013 follows.

Total Maximum

Number of Shares  Dollar Value of Shares

Average Purchased as Part that May Yet Be
Total Price of Publicly Purchased Under
Number of Shares Paid per Announced Plans  the Plans or Programs
Period Purchased (1) Share or Programs (1) (Dollars in Millions)
October 1 - October 31.....covviviveieeeiieeieeeeeeeeeeee 346,938 $ 35.08 346,938 $ 114.6
November 1 - November 30...........ccooveeeevinoieenn. 60,678 $ 37.72 60,678 $ 112.3
December 1 - December 31........cooovevivvivienineienen. 21,242 $ 37.92 20,900 $ 111.5

(1) On February 2, 2011, Kemper’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $300 million of Kemper’s common
stock. The repurchase program does not have an expiration date.

Total Number of Shares Purchased in the preceding table include 342 shares that were withheld to satisfy tax withholding obligations
on the vesting of restricted stock awards under Kemper’s long-term equity-based compensation plans during the quarter ended
December 31, 2013. In addition to the shares withheld and purchased on the vesting of restricted stock awards, 20,899 shares were
withheld to satisfy tax withholding obligations relating to the exercise of stock appreciation rights under Kemper’s long-term
equity-based compensation plans during the quarter ended December 31, 2013. Such shares are not considered “purchased” and
are excluded from preceding table.
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Kemper Common Stock Performance Graph

The following graph assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2008 in (i) Kemper common stock, (ii) the S&P MidCap 400
Index and (iii) the S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index, in each case with dividends reinvested. Kemper is a constituent of

each of these two indices.

The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are not intended to forecast the possible future

performance of Kemper common stock.

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return
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+ S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index

Company / Index 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

2013

Kemper Corporation .............c.cceeevveveeriereeireereereeenens $ 100.00 $ 14922 §$ 172.12 $ 211.99 $ 221.14
S&P MidCap 400 IndeX........coovrveerieeirierrieieieieeenen 100.00 137.38 173.98 170.96 201.53
S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index ...........cc.c...... 100.00 110.79 128.54 119.66 142.54
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Selected financial information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 20009 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
FOR THE YEAR
Earned Premiums .......c..cccoevieieineninieincnieieiecseeeecenens $ 2,0258 $ 2,107.1 $ 2,173.6 $ 22894 § 24555
Net Investment INCOME ......ccceveevieiiiiiieireee e 314.7 295.9 298.0 325.7 319.9
Other INCOME.......coveiiriiiieieii e 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.3 2.5
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments........................ 99.1 65.4 33.7 42.6 24.6
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ................. (13.9) (6.9) (11.3) (16.5) (50.4)
Total REVENUES .....cviiiieiieiiieiieciieete ettt $ 2,4265 $ 24623 $§ 24950 $ 2,6425 $ 2,752.1
Income from Continuing Operations............cccceerververeernnens $T45 m W m m
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations..................... 3.2 11.6 12.8 15.5 (2.8)
Net INCOME ..ot $ 2177 $ 1034 $ 745 $ 1779 $ 159.0
Per Unrestricted Share: -
Income from Continuing Operations.................ccocvevevnen. $ 375 § 155§ 1.02 $ 262§ 2.60
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations................. 0.06 0.20 0.21 0.25 (0.05)
Net INCOME ....ovviiieiiiieieieee e e $ 381 $ 175 $ 123 $ 287 $ 2.55
Per Unrestricted Share Assuming Dilution: -
Income from Continuing Operations............cccceeevervenenne. $ 374 § 1.54 $ 1.02 $ 262 $ 2.60
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations ................ 0.06 0.20 0.21 0.25 (0.05)
NEt INCOME ....eeniiieiiieiiieeeiie e $ 380 $ 1.74 $ 123 S 287 $ 2.55
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share.............cccuenee.. m m m m $—107
AT YEAR END -
TOtAl ASSELS....iieuviiietieeeiee ettt ettt e $ 7,6564 $ 8,009.1 $ 79347 $ 8,260.8 $ 8,489.8
InSurance RESErves........ooceeiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieieeeec e m m m m m
Unearned Premiums .........c..coeecevevenieccnenincniecnenciecnenes 598.9 650.9 666.2 678.6 724.9
Certificates of DEPOSItS ......ccevcverieeiiieiieiieiieeeseesie e — — — 321.4 682.4
Notes Payable........ccccoeiirineiinieinceececeen 606.9 611.4 610.6 609.8 561.4
All Other Liabilities .......cceeerveiriieeirieieeeeisieeeeeeseeeeeeeeees 338.1 4529 409.5 445.6 4479
Total Liabilities........coerveuirierieieieienieeiceeeeee e 5,604.9 5,847.4 5,818.1 6,237.8 6,655.9
Shareholders’ EQUIty .......c.cocevveeieemineieienineieencneeecnienee 2,051.5 2,161.7 2,116.6 2,023.0 1,833.9
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity..........cccccveneeneen. $ 7,6564 $ 8,009.1 $ 79347 $ 8,260.8 $ 8,489.8
Book Value Per Share.........cccccooevieienienieieeeceeiee e m m m m m
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

Net Income was $217.7 million ($3.81 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to
$103.4 million ($1.75 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2012. Income from Continuing
Operations was $214.5 million ($3.75 per unrestricted common share) in 2013, compared to $91.8 million ($1.55 per
unrestricted common share) in 2012.

Catastrophe losses and LAE from continuing operations (excluding loss and LAE reserve development from prior accident
years) were $50.7 million before tax for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $124.5 million in 2012, a decrease of
$73.8 million. Catastrophe losses and LAE before tax decreased by $64.3 million and $6.0 million, in the Kemper Preferred and
Kemper Direct segments, respectively. The Company reported Income from Discontinued Operations of $3.2 million and $11.6
million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

A reconciliation of Total Segment Net Operating Income to Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
is presented below:

2013 2012
Increase Increase

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 (Decrease) 2011 (Decrease)
Segment Net Operating Income (Loss):

Kemper Preferred .........coooeveveiieveieieiiecieeeieeeeveenenne $ 631 § (11.2) $ 743 $  (17.6) $ 6.4

Kemper Specialty ........ccccoovecirvinineiniiciceneeceees 10.4 1.2 9.2 19.8 (18.6)

Kemper DITECt .....ccvvvviiieieieeieieiesieeeeeeeie e 27.1 (0.9) 28.0 (27.5) 26.6

Life and Health Insurance ............ccceevvevvievienieecieeneenen, 89.3 90.8 (1.5) 98.9 (8.1)
Total Segment Net Operating Income..........cccevveriennennnn. 189.9 79.9 110.0 73.6 6.3
Unallocated Net Operating LoSS ......ccoeevevverienereeienienenne 30.7) (26.1) (4.6) (26.5) 0.4
Consolidated Net Operating Income...........cccccecereerceecnnene 159.2 53.8 105.4 47.1 6.7
Net Income (Loss) From:

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments................... 64.4 42.5 21.9 21.9 20.6

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............. 9.1 4.5) (4.6) (7.3) 2.8
Income from Continuing Operations............cceeeevevververeennnn 214.5 91.8 122.7 61.7 30.1
Income from Discontinued Operations ...........cceceeeeerueruennen. 3.2 11.6 (8.4) 12.8 (1.2)
INEt TNCOIME ..ottt $ 2177 $ 1034 $ 1143 § 745 § 28.9

Earned Premiums were $2,025.8 million in 2013, compared to $2,107.1 million in 2012, a decrease of $81.3 million. Earned
Premiums decreased by $44.6 million, $27.0 million, $7.0 million and $2.7 million in the Kemper Direct, Kemper Specialty,
Life and Health Insurance and Kemper Preferred segments, respectively.

Net Investment Income increased by $18.8 million in 2013 due primarily to $17.1 million in higher net investment income from
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and $12.3 million in higher net investment income from Dividends on Equity
Securities, partially offset by $10.6 million of lower net investment income from Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities.

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments were $99.1 million in 2013, compared to $65.4 million in 2012. The Company sold
the building where Kemper’s corporate offices are headquartered and recognized a realized gain of $43.6 million in 2013.

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $13.9 million and $6.9
million, respectively.

The Company cannot predict when or if similar investment gains or losses may occur in the future. See MD&A, “Investment
Results,” for additional information pertaining to investment performance.

27



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

CATASTROPHES

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, management of the amount and location of new business production in certain regions and primary catastrophe
reinsurance programs for its property and casualty insurance businesses. Coverage for each primary catastrophe reinsurance
program is provided in various layers (see Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion of these programs). In addition to these programs, the Kemper Preferred segment had a reinsurance treaty
covering the three-year period that ended June 1, 2013 for catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than the
Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs (“the Kemper Preferred NC Program”). The Company purchases
reinsurance from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than the Company’s primary catastrophe
reinsurance programs.

Catastrophe reinsurance premiums for the Company’s primary reinsurance programs, the Kemper Preferred NC Program and
the FHCF reduced earned premiums for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 by the following:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011

KempPer PIeferTed .......ooviiiiiieieieeieteeeeteete ettt ettt b et et esb e beeaeenaas $ 232 § 246 $ 200
KeMPET SPECIALLY ..evveniiiieiieiesieeietee ettt ettt et e e s be e st et enbesbesseensebesreennens 0.1 0.1 0.1
KEMPET DITECE ...ttt ettt ettt bt st en et sbeeneen 0.3 0.4 0.8
Life and Health INSUANCE ......c..eouiieuiiiiiiieiieiesiee et — 2.0 23
Total Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premiums.............cceveiiereieieriieieiniereeeresiereseenenenes $ 236 $ 271 §$§ 232

The Life and Health Insurance segment did not renew its catastrophe reinsurance program in 2013. See MD&A, “Life and
Health Insurance,” for additional information.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding loss and LAE reserve development) by business segment for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011

KemPer Preferred ..........oovovieiieeiieieeieeeeeeeetce ettt $ 411 $§ 1054 $ 1442
KemMPEr SPECIALLY ...ocuviiiiiiiieii ettt e b e be b e e ae e re e be e taesaeaeana e 3.7 4.8 3.8
KEMPET DITECL ....viiviiiiiiceieiecie ettt ettt ettt sttt e b e besseesseasesbeeseessessesreessenns 2.3 8.3 6.7
Life and Health INSUTANCE .........cceeieiieiieieieieceeteiese ettt ettt st raennens 3.6 6.0 9.1
Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cc.ccoioiiiiiiiiieiiiiceeeeee e $ 507 $§ 1245 $ 1638
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

CATASTROPHES (Continued)

The number of catastrophic events and catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding loss and LAE reserve development) by range of
loss for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are presented below:

Year Ended
Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 Dec 31, 2011
Number of Losses and Number of Losses and Number of Losses and
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Events LAE Events LAE Events LAE
Range of Losses and LAE Per Event:
Below $5...oiiiieieeeee e 27§ 44.3 19 $ 25.6 22 3 37.4
85 = 810 1 6.4 5 394 3 21.9
S10 - SIS e — — 1 11.0 1 10.9
S15-820 i — — — — 2 37.2
820 - 825 — — — — 1 23.0
Greater Than $25 ........ccooveinneinncneeene — — 1 48.5 1 33.4
Total ..o 28 $ 50.7 26 § 1245 30 § 1638

As shown in the preceding table, catastrophe losses and LAE decreased for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to
2012, due primarily to no occurrences of events with losses in excess of $25 million in 2013, compared with one event in 2012;
no occurences of losses in the $10 million to $15 million range in 2013, compared with one event in 2012; and lower frequency
and severity of losses ranging from $5 million to $10 million per event in 2013, compared to 2012, partially offset by higher
frequency and severity of losses below $5 million per event in 2013, compared to 2012.

As shown in the preceding table, catastrophe losses and LAE decreased for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to
2011, due primarily to lower severity of losses below $5 million per event in 2012, compared to 2011, and lower frequency of
losses in excess of $15 million per event in 2012, compared to 2011, partially offset by higher frequency of losses ranging from
$5 million to $10 million per event in 2012, compared to 2011.

The five events in the $5 million to $10 million range and one event in the $10 million to $15 million range for the year ended
December 31, 2012 were related to hail or wind events in either Texas, Colorado or the Midwest and mid-Atlantic states. In the
fourth quarter of 2012, the Company incurred claims related to one event in the greater than $25 million range which was
Superstorm Sandy. In late October 2012, Superstorm Sandy, a named catastrophe and at one point a level two hurricane while
over the Atlantic ocean, caused a significant amount of damage in several northeastern states. Catastrophe losses and LAE for
the year ended December 31, 2012 includes $48.5 million related to Superstorm Sandy, of which $44.0 million is included in
the Kemper Preferred segment.

Events below $5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 are due primarily to spring storms. In the second quarter of
2011, the United States experienced a high volume of spring storms, including a record level of tornadoes in April resulting in
two events in the $15 million to $20 million range and one event which was $32.1 million. In the third quarter of 2011, the
Company incurred claims related to one event in the $20 million to $25 million range which was Hurricane Irene. Catastrophe
losses and LAE for the year ended December 31, 2011 includes $23.0 million related to Hurricane Irene, of which $22.1 million
is included in the Kemper Preferred segment.

Total catastrophe loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables, developed favorably by $14.5 million, $6.3 million
and $6.4 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Favorable catastrophe loss and LAE reserve development in 2013
included favorable development of $1.5 million from Superstorm Sandy and favorable development, net of reinsurance, of $2.0
million resulting from a final assessment issued by the Mississippi Windstorm Underwriting Association (“MWUA”) that
reduced the Company’s share of MWUA'’s losses for the 2004 through 2006 policy periods. See MD&A, “Loss and LAE
Reserve Development,” of this 2013 Annual Report for catastrophe loss and LAE reserve development by business segment.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

LOSS AND LAE RESERVE DEVELOPMENT

Increases (decreases) in the Company’s property and casualty loss and LAE reserves for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011 to recognize adverse (favorable) loss and LAE reserve development from prior accident years in continuing
operations, hereinafter also referred to as “reserve development” in the discussion of segment results, is presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011

Kemper Preferred:

NON-CALASIIOPRE ......vievveiieieeetett ettt ettt et s et s et bt s s ee s enees $ @d5.6) $ 14 $ (13.6)

CAtASTIOPNE ...ttt et ettt et et e e teesa et e s beete et e beereetaebeebeeteessebeereereans (11.9) (6.2) (5.5

TOMAL ...ttt ettt ettt et e te ettt e b et e ese e st e beeseentenbeereeneententeesaenean (27.5) (4.8) (19.1)
Kemper Specialty:

INON-CALASTIOPNEC .....cuviiieiieiieieeteett ettt ettt e e te b e besteeseessasbeeseessessesbeessessesseeseansas 4.9) 2.4) 9.5)

CAtASTIOPINE ...ttt ettt ettt e b e st e ete et e beeseeneebesbeereenbenbesreeneens — 0.1 0.1

TORAL ..ttt ettt bttt heeae et st ebeenean 4.9) (2.3) 9.4)
Kemper Direct:

NON-CALASITOPRE ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et e e teeseebenseeseensensesseeseensan (25.0) (17.5) “4.4)

CAtASTIOPNE ..ottt sttt ettt et et b e s bt st et sbeeaeen 0.6) 0.3) 0.5

TOMAL ...ttt et ettt ettt et ettt et t e e s be e bt e b e b e teesa et e beereesbenbeereeaeenbenteeseenean (25.6) (17.8) (3.9)
Life and Health Insurance:

NON-CAASIIOPNE ...ttt ettt ettt sttt e e teesb e s e sbeeaeessesbesbeeneensas 0.2 0.4) (1.1)

CAtASIOPNE ....evieieieieeieeteie ettt ettt et e st s te e b et e s teese et et e eseestebesbeeseensebenreeneens 2.0) 0.1 (1.5)

TORAL ..ttt ettt et et e et e bt n et e bt eaeenbenbesbeennan (1.8) (0.3) (2.6)
Decrease in Total Loss and LAE Reserves Related to Prior Years:

NON-CALASITOPRE ...ttt ettt ettt ta et e beeteeseesesseeseessensesseeseenean (45.3) (18.9) (28.6)

CALASITOPINE ...ttt ettt e e b e et e ebe et e ebeebe e beeseestaesssessseessaesseenseensaan (14.5) (6.3) (6.4)
Decrease in Total Loss and LAE Reserves Related to Prior Years........cccccevvevievevienieieennnn, $ (598 $ (252) $§ (35.0)

See MD&A, “Critical Accounting Estimates,” of this 2013 Annual Report for additional information pertaining to the
Company’s process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, and the estimated variability
thereof, development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE, and a discussion of some of the variables that may
impact them.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC, the Company is required to file consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with the accounting principals generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). The Company is permitted to
include non-GAAP financial measures in its filings provided that they are defined along with an explanation of their usefulness
to investors, are no more prominent than the comparable GAAP financial measures and are reconciled to such GAAP financial
measures.

These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered a substitute for the comparable GAAP financial measures, as
they do not fully recognize the overall profitability of the Company’s business.

Underlying Combined Ratio

The following discussions for the Kemper Preferred, Kemper Specialty and Kemper Direct segments use the non-GAAP
financial measures of (i) Underlying Losses and LAE and (ii) Underlying Combined Ratio. Underlying Losses and LAE (also
referred to in the discussion as “Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE”) exclude the impact of catastrophe losses, and
loss and LAE reserve development from the Company’s Incurred Losses and LAE, which is the most directly comparable
GAAP financial measure. The Underlying Combined Ratio is computed by adding the Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses
and LAE Ratio with the Incurred Expense Ratio. The most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is the combined ratio,
which uses total incurred losses and LAE, including the impact of catastrophe losses, and loss and LAE reserve development.
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The Company believes Underlying Losses and LAE and the Underlying Combined Ratio are useful to investors and are used by
management to reveal the trends in the Company’s Property and Casualty insurance businesses that may be obscured by
catastrophe losses and prior year reserve development. These catastrophe losses may cause the Company’s loss trends to vary
significantly between periods as a result of their incidence of occurrence and magnitude, and can have a significant impact on
incurred losses and LAE and the combined ratio. Prior year reserve developments are caused by unexpected loss development
on historical reserves. Because reserve development relates to the re-estimation of losses from earlier periods, it has no bearing
on the performance of the Company’s insurance products in the current period. The Company believes it is useful for investors
to evaluate these components separately and in the aggregate when reviewing the Company’s underwriting performance.

Consolidated Net Operating Income

Consolidated Net Operating Income is an after-tax, non-GAAP measure and is computed by excluding from Income from
Continuing Operations the after-tax impact of 1) Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments, 2) Net Impairment Losses
Recognized in Earnings related to investments and 3) other significant non-recurring or infrequent items that may not be
indicative of ongoing operations. Significant non-recurring items are excluded when (a) the nature of the charge or gain is such
that it is reasonably unlikely to recur within two years, and (b) there has been no similar charge or gain within the prior two
years. The most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is Income from Continuing Operations.

The Company believes that Consolidated Net Operating Income provides investors with a valuable measure of its ongoing
performance because it reveals underlying operational performance trends that otherwise might be less apparent if the items
were not excluded. Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments and Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings related to
investments included in the Company’s results may vary significantly between periods and are generally driven by business
decisions and external economic developments such as capital market conditions that impact the values of the Company’s
investments, the timing of which is unrelated to the insurance underwriting process. Significant non-recurring items are
excluded because, by their nature, they are not indicative of the Company’s business or economic trends.

A reconciliation of Consolidated Net Operating Income to Income from Continuing Operations for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 is presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Consolidated Net Operating INCOME .......cc.eueeverierieeieeiieieiee ettt eee e $ 1592 § 538 $§ 471
Net Income (Loss) From:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESIMENTS .......cceveeieriiirieieieeeeieieseeeeeeee e 64.4 42.5 21.9
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........c.cccccvevevienieeeecienieneeeeieie e 9.1 4.5) (7.3)
Income from ContinUing OPErationsS..........ecuerverirrierierierierieriesteeeestesteeeesessessesseesessesseenens $ 2145 § 918 $ 617

There were no applicable significant non-recurring items that the Company excluded from the calculation of Consolidated Net
Operating Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
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KEMPER PREFERRED

Selected financial information for the Kemper Preferred segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

Net Premiums WIS .....o..viiiiiiiiieceieeceeee et s eaees

Earned Premiums:

AULOMODILE ...ttt sttt e seneenae e
HOMEOWNETS ..ottt ettt st
Other Personal ..........ccvevieiiiiieieeieeeeseee et es
Total Earned Premilms ........c.ecvieieierienenieieiesieceeieie e eee s e sae s eaesse e esnennas
Net Investment INCOME.........oocueriiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Other INCOME .....covieeiieie ettt ettt eae e enseeeseenseas
TOtal REVEIUES ......eovieniiiieiieieieeieetetee sttt sttt sb et enee s

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE..........ccocoevievininieiieneneccieeseeeens
Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........ccoccoviiiieniieeeeeeeeeee e

Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE..........ccccoooievieviienieiieeece e

Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccooovevieiinieiieieecceeeeeee e
Total Incurred Losses and LAE.........c..ccccviniiiiininininencecineneeeeeeeeenean
INSUrance EXPENSES .....ccocuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et
Operating Profit (LOSS).....cverierierieieieriesieeeieste sttt ettt sttt seeeeeenees
Income Tax Benefit (EXPEnSe)........ccvereerierieniieieeieeieesee st seee e seveeveeve s
Segment Net Operating Income (LOSS) .....ovveeverierieeeeieienieeieienie e

Ratios Based On Earned Premiums

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccoccevevienieneninnnne.
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccocceevieriencienieecieeieenen.
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........cccccecevervecienenennnennn.
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......c..cccocevvenieencncncincncnnennne.
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio.........cccoererieiienineineneecee e
Incurred EXpense Ratio .......ccooevueeieieniininieieneseeeeseeeee e
CombINed RaAti.....cc.eeviiriiriiiiiieieeieeer et

Underlying Combined Ratio

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........ccccceveneceeininenenns
Incurred EXpense Ratio .......ccecieieieienieniieieiesie ettt
Underlying Combined Ratio..........ceceevueriirinienieniinieieiesieecee e

Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation

Underlying Combined Ratio........cccecveeieriiririenieniieieieieeeeeeeeie e
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.coccocceevinincciininennenns
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........ccccceveveeveveneneennnnn.
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......c..cccocevenieccncnencccnicncnnenne.
Combined Ratio as Reported..........occvevieiieiiieiieieeeeeeeeeee e
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2013 2012 2011
$ 8478 $ 8917 $ 8688
$503.6 $ 5155 $ 5109
317.9 308.5 294.9
55.2 55.4 54.0
876.7 879.4 859.8
55.7 45.0 48.8
0.2 0.4 0.3
932.6 924.8 908.9
578.8 608.4 584.6
41.1 105.4 144.2
(15.6) 1.4 (13.6)
(11.9) (6.2) (5.5)
592.4 709.0 709.7
252.5 243.8 239.8
87.7 (28.0) (40.6)
(24.6) 16.8 23.0
$ 631 $ (112) $ (17.6)
66.1%  69.1%  67.9%
4.7 12.0 16.8
(1.8) 0.2 (1.6)
(1.4) (0.7) (0.6)
67.6 80.6 825
28.8 277 279
96.4%  1083%  110.4%
66.1%  69.1%  67.9%
28.8 27.7 279
94.9%  96.8%  95.8%
94.9%  96.8%  95.8%
4.7 12.0 16.8
(1.8) 0.2 (1.6)
(1.4) (0.7) (0.6)
96.4%  1083%  110.4%
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INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Insurance Reserves:
F N 3170701 1o] o1 1 <RSP SRR $ 2767 $ 2876
HOMEOWNETS. ...ttt ettt b et sat e sab e ettt et e bt e bt e nbeesaaesaee 97.9 123.7
Other PEISONAL........oiiiiiiiiieit ettt ettt e et e e et e e s teesaaessseesseenseenseenseenseansean 38.2 41.0
INSUTANCE RESEIVES ...ttt ettt et ettt et e st e st eeat e s et e enbeenteenseenteeseeaeas $ 4128 § 4523
Insurance Reserves:
Loss Reserves:
CSC ettt eeitee ettt e e e ettt e et e ettt e et e et ee e bt e e et ee e bt e e e bee e nbeeeabeeeeabeeeneeeenbeeenbeeenbeeenteesaneeennres $ 2592 § 2847
Incurred but Not RepOrted.........ooueuiiiiiieiiieee et 97.4 105.5
TOtAl LOSS RESEIVES. ....cuveiiiiieiietictieitete sttt ettt ettt ettt e be st sae et ebesbe e st estensessesntensensesseensensas 356.6 390.2
LAE RESEIVES .....eiiiiiieiiieeiite ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e ettt e et e e et eeeabaeeenbeeenbeesnseeennseesnseeennseean 56.2 62.1

INSUTANCE RESEIVES.....evvviiiieieie et e et e ettt e e e et e e e eetaeeeeeeaaaeeeeeeteeeesensseeeeeeaes $ 4128 $§ 4523

2013 Compared with 2012

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Preferred segment decreased by $2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared
to 2012, due primarily to lower volume of $44.3 million, partially offset by higher average premium of $41.6 million. Earned
premiums on automobile insurance decreased by $11.9 million in 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to lower volume of
$24.8 million, partially offset by higher average premium of $12.9 million. Earned premiums on homeowners insurance
increased by $9.4 million in 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to higher average premium of $26.6 million, partially offset
by lower volume of $17.2 million. Earned premiums on other personal insurance decreased by $0.2 million in 2013, compared
to 2012, due primarily to lower volume of $2.3 million, partially offset by higher average premium of $2.1 million.

Net Investment Income in the Kemper Preferred segment increased by $10.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to 2012, due primarily to higher net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, higher
dividends on equity securities and higher levels of investments allocated to the Kemper Preferred segment, partially offset by
lower yields on fixed maturities. The Kemper Preferred segment reported net investment income from Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments of $10.1 million in 2013, compared to $4.0 million in 2012.

Operating Profit in the Kemper Preferred segment was $87.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to an
Operating Loss of $28.0 million in 2012. Operating results improved due primarily to lower catastrophe losses and LAE
(excluding reserve development), lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, higher favorable loss
and LAE reserve development and higher net investment income, partially offset by higher insurance expenses as a percentage
of earned premiums. Underlying losses and LAE exclude the impact of catastrophes and loss and LAE reserve development.
Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $41.1 million in 2013, compared to $105.4 million in 2012.
Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums improved due to lower underlying losses as a percentage of
earned premiums in homeowners insurance and other personal insurance. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development
(including catastrophe development) was $27.5 million in 2013, compared to $4.8 million in 2012. Kemper Preferred continues
to take actions intended to improve profitability, including additional rate increases, enhanced pricing segmentation, higher
deductibles, in particular for wind or hail events, and other underwriting actions.

Automobile insurance incurred losses and LAE were $388.5 million, or 77.1% of automobile insurance earned premiums, for
the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $413.7 million, or 80.3% of automobile insurance earned premiums, in 2012.
Automobile insurance incurred losses as a percentage of automobile earned premiums decreased by 3.2% due primarily to a
favorable impact from a change in loss and LAE reserve development and lower catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve
development), partially offset by higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned premiums.
Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $3.2 million in 2013, compared to adverse loss and LAE reserve
development of $7.3 million in 2012. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $3.5 million in 2013,
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compared to $12.7 million in 2012. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned premiums
were 77.1% in 2013, compared to 76.4% in 2012. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned
premiums increased due primarily to higher severity of bodily injury and collision losses, partially offset by higher average
premium and lower frequency of bodily injury and comprehensive claims.

Homeowners insurance incurred losses and LAE were $183.6 million, or 57.8% of homeowners insurance earned premiums,
for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $264.5 million, or 85.7% of homeowners insurance earned premiums, in
2012. Homeowners insurance incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of homeowners insurance earned premiums decreased
due primarily to lower catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development), lower underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of homeowners insurance earned premiums and higher levels of favorable loss and LAE reserve development.
Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) on homeowners insurance were $36.4 million in 2013, compared
to $87.8 million in 2012. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) incurred in 2012 were due in part to
$44.0 million of catastrophe losses and LAE from Superstorm Sandy and several hail and wind events throughout the United
States. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of homeowners insurance earned premiums were 52.4% in 2013, compared
to 60.3% in 2012. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of homeowners insurance earned premiums decreased by 7.9%
due primarily to lower severity of losses and higher average premium. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $19.2
million in 2013, compared to $9.4 million in 2012.

Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE were $20.3 million, or 36.8% of other personal insurance earned premiums,
for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $30.8 million, or 55.6% of other personal insurance earned premiums, in
2012. Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE decreased by $10.5 million due primarily to lower underlying losses
and LAE as a percentage of other personal insurance earned premiums, lower catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve
development) and higher levels of favorable loss and LAE reserve development. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of
other personal insurance earned premiums were 43.8% in 2013, compared to 51.6% in 2012. Underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of other personal insurance earned premiums decreased by 7.8% due primarily to lower frequency of umbrella
liability insurance claims, lower severity of losses in other insurance lines (excluding umbrella liability) and higher average
premium, partially offset by higher severity of umbrella liability insurance losses. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding
reserve development) were $1.2 million in 2013, compared to $4.9 million in 2012. Favorable loss and LAE reserve
development was $5.1 million in 2013, compared to $2.7 million in 2012.

Insurance Expenses increased by $8.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to
higher employee compensation and agent incentives related to improved performance and higher regulatory audit and
examination costs.

The Kemper Preferred segment reported Segment Net Operating Income of $63.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2013, compared to Segment Net Operating Loss of $11.2 million in 2012. The Kemper Preferred segment’s effective income
tax rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends
received deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $16.7 million in 2013, compared
to $20.2 million in 2012.

2012 Compared with 2011

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Preferred segment increased by $19.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to 2011, due primarily to higher volume, and to a lesser extent, higher average premium. Earned premiums on
automobile insurance increased by $4.6 million in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to higher volume, partially offset by
lower average premium. Earned premiums on homeowners insurance increased by $13.6 million in 2012, compared to 2011,
due primarily to higher volume and, to a lesser extent, higher average premium. Earned premiums on other personal insurance
increased by $1.4 million in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to higher volume and, to a lesser extent, higher average
premium.

Net Investment Income in the Kemper Preferred segment decreased by $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to 2011, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. The
Kemper Preferred segment reported net investment income from equity method limited liability investments of $4.0 million in
2012, compared to $8.0 million in 2011.

Operating Loss in the Kemper Preferred segment decreased by $12.6 million before taxes for the year ended December 31,
2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to lower incurred catastrophe losses and LAE, partially offset by lower levels of
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favorable loss and LAE reserve development, higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums and lower
Net Investment Income. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $105.4 million in 2012, compared
to $144.2 million in 2011. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development (including catastrophe development) was $4.8 million
in 2012, compared to $19.1 million in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 69.1% in
2012, compared to 67.9% in 2011.

Automobile insurance incurred losses and LAE were $413.7 million, or 80.3% of automobile insurance earned premiums, for
the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $389.5 million, or 76.2% of automobile insurance earned premiums, in 2011.
Automobile insurance incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile earned premiums increased by 4.1% due
primarily to higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned premiums and an unfavorable
impact from a change in loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by lower incurred catastrophe losses and LAE
(excluding reserve development). Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned premiums were
76.4% in 2012, compared to 73.8% in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned
premiums increased due primarily to higher frequency in bodily injury coverages and higher severity in all coverages, partially
offset by lower frequency in comprehensive and personal injury protection coverages. Unfavorable loss and LAE reserve
development was $7.4 million in 2012, compared to favorable loss and LAE reserve development of $1.3 million in 2011.
Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $12.7 million in 2012, compared to $14.1 million in 2011.

Homeowners insurance incurred losses and LAE were $264.5 million, or 85.7% of homeowners insurance earned premiums,
for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $293.5 million, or 99.5% of homeowners insurance earned premiums, in
2011. Homeowners insurance incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of homeowners insurance earned premiums decreased
due primarily to lower catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development), lower underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of homeowners insurance earned premiums, partially offset by lower levels of favorable loss and LAE reserve
development. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) on homeowners insurance were $87.8 million in
2012, compared to $124.5 million in 2011. Catastrophe losses and LAE incurred in 2012 were due in part to $44.0 million of
catastrophe losses and LAE from Superstorm Sandy and several hail and wind events throughout the United States. For the year
ended December 31, 2011, the catastrophe losses were primarily related to Hurricane Irene and several severe tornadoes and
other storms throughout the United States. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of homeowners insurance earned
premiums were 60.3% in 2012, compared to 61.6% in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of homeowners
insurance earned premiums decreased by 1.3% due primarily to lower non-catastrophe storm losses, partially offset by higher
fire and water damage losses. Favorable non-catastrophe loss and LAE reserve development was $3.6 million in 2012,
compared to $7.1 million in 2011.

Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE were $30.8 million, or 55.6% of other personal insurance earned premiums,
for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $26.7 million, or 49.4% of other personal insurance earned premiums, in
2011. Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE increased by $4.1 million due primarily to lower levels of favorable
loss and LAE reserve development and higher underlying losses and LAE, partially offset by lower catastrophe losses and LAE
(excluding reserve development). Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $2.7 million in 2012, compared to $5.0
million in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE were $28.6 million in 2012, compared to $26.1 million in 2011. Catastrophe losses
and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $4.9 million in 2012, compared to $5.6 million in 2011.

Insurance Expenses increased by $4.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to
increased new business and renewal production.

The Kemper Preferred segment reported Segment Net Operating Loss of $11.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to Segment Net Operating Loss of $17.6 million in 2011. The Kemper Preferred segment’s effective income tax rate
differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received
deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $20.2 million in 2012, compared to $24.5
million in 2011.
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Selected financial information for the Kemper Specialty segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Net Premiums WITHEN .. .....coiviieietiieeieeeit ittt ettt ss st eae b seeseebesseseeseans $ 3831 $ 4151 § 4382
Earned Premiums: -
Personal AUtOMODILE. .......cc.eviiiuieieieiiieieieie ettt et a b e sbe s eabesbeeseennas $340.5 §$ 3763 $ 4052
Commercial AUtOMODILE..........cccveriiriirieieieceeieieste ettt ettt sbeseeeneens 52.3 43.5 40.0
Total Earned PreMIUIMS ......cc.eeiiiiiiiieeieeiieieeie ettt et et siee st essaeseaesssessseesseesseenseeseensaennes 392.8 419.8 445.2
Net Investment INCOME. .......ccuiiiiiiiiiieieeeee ettt st e e ens 21.8 19.0 22.8
Oher TNCOMIE ...ttt sttt sttt 0.3 0.3 0.5
TOtAl REVEIUES .....vieieieiieiieeete ettt ettt et ettt et e st e st esaaesneeenseenseenseenseenseenseeseenes 414.9 439.1 468.5
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE..........ccocoviiiiieieniiceeeeeeeee et 315.6 347.9 358.4
Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccooiiiiiiiiniieeeeeseeeee e 3.7 4.8 3.8
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE..........cccoceiiiiiieienineeeeeeeeteee e 4.9) 2.4) 9.5)
Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........ccooooriiiiiiieeie ettt — 0.1 0.1
Total Incurred Losses and LAE........ccooiviiieiiiieieiece ettt ennens 314.4 350.4 352.8
INSUrance EXPENSES ......cc.eeiiiiriiiiiiiiieieeieieteet ettt s 88.2 91.5 91.5
Operating Profit (LLOSS) . ...cuerieriieieierieeeeteieste et et ete sttt et e testeesaesesseeseessensessesssensessessaessens 12.3 (2.8) 24.2
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE) ......ccuereririrrieniiriieieieite sttt eete e ste et entete st saeeneesbesreennens (1.9) 4.0 4.4)
Segment Net Operating INCOMIE ......ccvecueeierieriieeieieiesie ettt e et sre e eesesseeseessesseseeessenns $ 104 $ 12 $ 198
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccoeveeverieneeiecieneneeieiene s 80.3% 83.0% 80.4%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccoevveviiririenieninieieiececeiee e 0.9 1.1 0.9
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........cccccceeeiieviiiienienieseesieee e 1.2) 0.6) 2.1
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccoovvevieriinieienienecceieiesceceiese s — — —
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio.........ccccccieiiieiiieiiecieniesieeieeee e 80.0 83.5 79.2
Incurred EXPense RAtIO .......ccuecuieieierieeiieieiesieeeeteie sttt ettt sae et essessessaensesbesraennens 22.5 21.8 20.6
CombINEd RAIO...c..cceeuiiiiiiiiiiiccrce ettt ettt 102.5% 105.3% 99.8%
Underlying Combined Ratio -
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccoeveeievienieeiecienienccieienc s 80.3% 83.0% 80.4%
Incurred EXPense Ratio .......ccooiviiiiriiniiiiieerieeteese sttt ettt 22.5 21.8 20.6
Underlying Combined RatiO.........c.ccueruiruirieiieniiiieieiecie ettt eteeeesaeste e s esessesesessessesraesnens 102.8% 104.8% 101.0%
Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation -
Underlying Combined Ratio.........cceecuieiiieiieiesieciee ettt 102.8% 104.8% 101.0%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........c.cccevveviiriecienieninieieenceeeiere s 0.9 1.1 0.9
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........cccooeveriiienininieneninicenceeen 1.2) (0.6) 2.1
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........ccceveririecienienecieieieseceeeeie e — — —
Combined Ratio as REPOTTEd........cccueriiriiriiieiiiieieier et 102.5% 105.3% 99.8%
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INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Insurance Reserves:
Personal AULOMODILE ..........ceiiiiiiieeieeeeeeete ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e ete e eseereeneeseenas $ 1405 § 1648
Commercial AULOMODILE ........c.cocviiiiiiiiieiiieie ettt ettt ettt e et e eebe b e esbeeaseesbeebeessaesaeas 49.3 43.9
OBRCT et ettt e e et e e et e e tt e e e te e e etae e e teeeaabeeetreeateeenbeeetaeearbaeareeenns 6.6 7.2
INSUTANCE RESEIVES....ocuviiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt et e et e b e eteeeaseeabeesseeaseesseeseeseesasesaseeseeeens $ 1964 $ 2159
Insurance Reserves:
Loss Reserves:
S ettt ettt ettt ettt te et eeteeeteeete e et e et e eteeteeteeteeteeateeeaneaaen $ 1207 $§ 1309
Incurred but Not REPOTLEd.......c.eeieiieiieiieieierieeeeee sttt sttt 44.1 48.3
TOtAl LLOSS RESEIVES.....vviiitieieiiee ettt et ettt e e et e et e et e e et e e e eareeeabeeeeaaeeereeeeaseeeneeenes 164.8 179.2
LAE RESEIVES....ccviiiiiiieiiiecite et ete ettt ettt et e e e e tv e e estae e esbeeestaeeesbeeesseesasaeesseesaseeessseesnsneennnes 31.6 36.7

INSUTANCE RESEIVES ... .eiiiiviieiiieeieee ettt e e et e et e e ta e e eteeeetaeeeteeeeareeeteeeeareesneeeennes $ 1964 $ 2159

2013 Compared with 2012

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Specialty segment decreased by $27.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to 2012, due to lower earned premiums on personal automobile insurance, partially offset by higher earned premiums
on commercial automobile insurance. Personal automobile insurance earned premiums decreased by $35.8 million in 2013,
compared to 2012, as lower volume of personal automobile insurance decreased personal automobile insurance earned
premiums by $63.4 million, while higher average premium accounted for a $27.6 million increase in earned premiums.
Personal automobile insurance policies in force were approximately 208,000 at December 31, 2013, compared to 260,000 at the
beginning of 2013 and 302,000 at the beginning of 2012. Commercial automobile insurance earned premiums increased by $8.8
million in 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to higher volume from an increase in new business production.

Net Investment Income in the Kemper Specialty segment increased by $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to 2012, due primarily to higher net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and
higher dividends on equity securities, partially offset by lower yields on fixed maturities. The Kemper Specialty segment
reported net investment income of $4.0 million from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments in 2013, compared to $1.7
million for 2012.

Operating Profit in the Kemper Specialty segment was $12.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to
Operating Loss of $2.8 million in 2012. Operating results improved due primarily to lower underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums, higher net investment income and a higher level of favorable reserve development, partially
offset by higher underwriting expenses as a percentage of earned premiums.

Personal automobile insurance operating results increased by $27.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to
2012, due primarily to a favorable impact from a change in loss and LAE reserve development and lower underlying losses and
LAE as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned premiums. Underlying losses and LAE exclude the impact of
catastrophes and loss and LAE reserve development. Loss and LAE reserve development on personal automobile insurance had
a favorable effect of $1.9 million in 2013, compared to an adverse effect of $10.3 million in 2012. Underlying losses and LAE
were $271.9 million, or 79.9% of personal automobile insurance earned premiums in 2013, compared to $312.5 million, or
83.1% of personal automobile insurance earned premiums in 2012. Personal automobile insurance underlying losses and LAE
as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned premiums decreased due primarily to higher average premium and
lower frequency of bodily injury and comprehensive claims, partially offset by higher severity of losses in all coverages.
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Commercial automobile insurance operating profit decreased by $12.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to 2012, due primarily to lower levels of favorable loss and LAE reserve development and higher underlying losses
and LAE as a percentage of commercial automobile insurance earned premiums, partially offset by higher net investment
income. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development on commercial automobile insurance was $3.0 million in 2013,
compared to favorable development of $12.6 million in 2012. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of commercial
automobile insurance earned premiums were 83.5% in 2013, compared to 81.4% in 2012. Underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of commercial automobile insurance earned premiums increased due primarily to higher frequency of bodily injury,
property damage and comprehensive claims and higher severity of property damage and collision losses, partially offset by
higher average premium.

Insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums was 22.5% for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 21.8%
in 2012. Insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums increased due primarily to higher incentive pay due to
improving performance and higher fixed costs as a percentage of earned premiums.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Kemper Specialty segment was $10.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to $1.2 million in 2012. The Kemper Specialty segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory
income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions. Tax-exempt investment
income and dividends received deductions were $6.4 million in 2013, compared to $8.5 million in 2012.

2012 Compared with 2011

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Specialty segment decreased by $25.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to 2011, due primarily to lower earned premiums for personal automobile insurance, partially offset by higher earned
premiums on commercial automobile insurance. Personal automobile insurance earned premiums decreased by $28.9 million in
2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium. Personal automobile
insurance policies in force were approximately 260,000 at December 31, 2012, compared to 302,000 at the beginning of 2012
and 329,000 at the beginning of 2011. Commercial automobile insurance earned premiums increased by $3.5 million in 2012,
compared to 2011, due primarily to higher volume from an increase in new business production.

Net Investment Income in the Kemper Specialty segment decreased by $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to 2011, due primarily to lower net investment income from equity method limited liability investments and lower
levels of investments allocated to Kemper Specialty. The Kemper Specialty segment reported net investment income of $1.7
million from equity method limited liability investments in 2012, compared to $3.7 million for 2011.

Operating Loss in the Kemper Specialty segment was $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to
Operating Profit of $24.2 million in 2011. Operating results deteriorated due primarily to higher underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums, lower favorable reserve development, lower net investment income and higher underwriting
expenses as a percentage of earned premiums.

Personal automobile insurance operating results decreased by $30.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared
to 2011, due primarily to higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned premiums,
unfavorable loss and LAE reserve development, higher insurance expenses as a percentage of personal automobile insurance
earned premiums and lower net investment income. Underlying losses and LAE were $312.5 million, or 83.0% of personal
automobile insurance earned premiums in 2012 compared to $328.5 million, or 81.1% of personal automobile insurance earned
premiums in 2011. Personal automobile insurance underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of personal automobile insurance
earned premiums increased due primarily to higher claims handling costs in 2012, compared to 2011. Loss and LAE reserve
development on personal automobile insurance had an adverse effect of $10.3 million in 2012, compared to a favorable effect
of $3.6 million in 2011, and was related primarily to the 2011 and 2010 accident years.
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Commercial automobile insurance operating profit increased by $3.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared
to 2011, due primarily to the favorable effects of loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by higher underlying losses
and LAE as a percentage of commercial automobile insurance earned premiums. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development
on commercial automobile insurance was $12.6 million in 2012, of which $5.9 million related to 2011 and 2010 accident years,
with the balance of $6.7 million dispersed over several older accident years. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was
$6.1 million in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of commercial automobile insurance earned premiums were
81.5% in 2012, compared to 74.3% in 2011, and increased due primarily to higher frequency of losses.

Other insurance operating profit increased by $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to 2011. Other
insurance consists of certain reinsurance pools in run-off and other personal insurance in run-off. Loss and LAE reserve
development on certain reinsurance pools in run-off, had adverse development of $0.4 million in 2011. There was no loss and
LAE reserve development on reinsurance pools in run-off in 2012.

Insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums was 21.8% for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to 20.6%
in 2011. Insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums increased in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to higher
expenses associated with information technology initiatives.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Kemper Specialty segment was $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to $19.8 million in 2011. The Kemper Specialty segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory
income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions. Tax-exempt investment
income and dividends received deductions were $8.5 million in 2012, compared to $11.3 million in 2011.

39



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

KEMPER DIRECT

Selected financial information for the Kemper Direct segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Net Premitms WITtEN ... ....cvevieiiieieieiecicctetesie ettt ettt e e s sbesaeessebesreesnenns $ 1113 $ 1473 209.0
Earned Premiums: -
AULOIMIODILE ...ttt ettt ettt et ettt et aeaeete et s eaeeae et e s eneenea $ 1150 $ 1583 213.3
HOMEOWINETS ...ttt ettt ettt et s ate et e et e be e beenseeas 83 9.5 9.2
Other Personal .......c.oouiiuieiiiiiieieieee ettt ettt sttt et sttt sbeeneens 0.1 0.2 0.2
Total Earned PrOMIUMS ........c.ciuiiiiiiiieiieieiesieete ettt te et aesaeeae et essesbeessessessesreesnens 123.4 168.0 222.7
Net Investment INCOME.........oouiiiiiiiiiieeee et st 13.4 13.9 17.4
Other TNCOMIE ...ttt sttt et sttt et sbe et et sbeennens — — 0.1
TOtAl REVEIUES ......ocvviiiiiieiieieitieie ettt ettt ettt tt et et e sseesae s essaeseessessessesssessesesseessans 136.8 181.9 240.2
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE...........cccccooiiiiieiienirecceseceeeeee e 85.8 139.0 194.8
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiic e 2.3 8.3 6.7
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE...........cccocoviviiieieniiiceeseeeeteee e (25.0) (17.5) 4.4)
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiceeeee et (0.6) 0.3) 0.5
Total Incurred Losses and LAE.........c.coooieiiiiiinieieiccc ettt einens 62.5 129.5 197.6
[NSUrANCe EXPENSES ...ocuveiiieiieiiieeiiice ettt sttt ettt et e be b as 34.7 57.2 76.3
Write-off of Intangible Asset from Direct Response AcquiSition............ecveevvereeeeerreeenenn. — — 13.5
Operating Profit (LOSS) . ...ccueviiiiieieierieeiieteieste ettt eteste et etebesteesaesesseeseessessessesssessessesseesaens 39.6 4.8) (47.2)
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE) ......ccuererieierieriiniieieiestiseietestesteeeesesseeseessensessesseensessesseesnens (12.5) 3.9 19.7
Segment Net Operating INCome (LOSS) .....oveveeeirieieieiinieieieiesieiee s $ 271 $ (0.9 (27.5)
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.ccooeoirirerieininereeesee 69.5% 82.8% 87.5%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........ccocveviirieienienieieieieecceeee s 1.9 4.9 3.0
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.............cccccuieeiiiviiiciieniciieciceee e (20.3) (10.4) 2.0)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccoceviiiieiiniinicieieiese e 0.5) 0.2) 0.2
Total Incurred Loss and LAE RatiO........ccccecueriririieniiriiiieieie ettt ennens 50.6 77.1 88.7
Incurred Expense Ratio, Including Write-off of Intangible Asset.........ccocevevvrvevienenennnne 28.1 34.0 40.3
ComDBINEd RALIO......ciiitiiiieiieieitieieteieet ettt ettt b et e teese e s e seeseessessessesssessessesseessans 78.7% 111.1% 129.0%
Underlying Combined Ratio -
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.ccooeevrirenieinineneeeeesees 69.5% 82.8% 87.5%
Incurred Expense Ratio, Including Write-off of Intangible Asset..........cccccevevirvevienereennnn. 28.1 34.0 40.3
Underlying Combined Ratio.........cccocoiiiiiniiiiiiiniiiicceec et 97.6% 116.8% 127.8%
Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation -
Underlying Combined Rati..........c.ccueruirieiriiiniiiieieiesit ettt ee e sae et seaenaes 97.6% 116.8% 127.8%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........ccccoovveeiiiiiiiiieiicieceee e 1.9 4.9 3.0
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccccccvevevieviieieienienecieieie e (20.3) (10.4) (2.0)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........cccoecvevieriinieienienecccieieceeeeese e (0.5) 0.2) 0.2
Combined Ratio as REPOTtEd...........ccuiviieiiiiieiieiieee ettt 78.7% 111.1% 129.0%
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INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Insurance Reserves:
AULOIMODILE ..ottt ettt et ettt e ettt e et e eteete et e eaeete e s eeteeseeaeenteeaeereentereereeaeeneeas $ 1286 $ 1733
HOMEOWIIETS. ....cuviieiiiiiieiie ettt ettt ettt et e et e e tb e et e e st e eabeesbeesbeeseesseesssesssesssaasseesseenseenseensaesseeseenses 2.0 2.7
(@411 OO RRRR 2.8 1.8
INSUTANCE RESEIVES .. .uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecie ettt ettt ete e e sttt e et e e etbeestaeeesbae e saeeesbaeeessaesssaeensseeenssaessseeensseens $ 1334 $ 1778
Insurance Reserves:
Loss Reserves:
CBSE ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et ettt ete s enteteeae et entere et e etentereeteeteneeneas $ 913 § 1154
Incurred but Not REPOTLEd.......c.eeiiiiriieiieieieieeeeste ettt ettt st st sreennens 27.5 39.7
TOtAl LLOSS RESEIVES....cuviiiiiiieeiii ettt ettt et e e et e et e e e ave e eetaeeeaseeeetaeeeateeeesaeeeteeeesreeenns 118.8 155.1
LAE RESEIVES...cccutiiiiiiieeiiieciee ettt ettt e e ettt e et e e e tae e e taeeetaae e taeeesseeessaeesbaeeasseesssaeeasseesnsseessseeesseeas 14.6 22.7

INSUTANCE RESEIVES......uvviiiieeiiiee ettt eetr e e et e e e eetareeeeetbaeeeeetsaeeeesntsaeeeessseeeeensseeeeans $ 1334 $ 1778

2013 Compared with 2012

In 2012, the Company announced that the Kemper Direct segment would continue to solicit business for its worksite and
affinity programs and would place its direct-to-consumer operations in run-off. Kemper Direct policies in-force declined 25%
in 2013 and is expected to decline 25% to 35% in 2014 as a result of this and other actions. Kemper Direct believes that it
should be able to manage its underlying loss and LAE ratio, but believes there is upward pressure on the expense ratio as fixed
expenses will be spread over a declining premium base. Earned Premiums in the Kemper Direct segment decreased by $44.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to lower volume, partially offset by higher
average premium.

Net Investment Income in the Kemper Direct segment decreased by $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to 2012, due primarily to lower levels of investments allocated to the Kemper Direct segment and lower yields on
investments in fixed maturities, partially offset by higher net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments and higher dividends on equity securities.

The Kemper Direct segment reported Operating Profit of $39.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to an
Operating Loss of $4.8 million in 2012. Operating results improved, due primarily to lower underlying losses and LAE, higher
levels of favorable reserve development, lower insurance expenses and lower catastrophe losses and LAE.

Incurred losses and LAE were $62.5 million, or 50.6% as a percentage of earned premiums, for the year ended December 31,
2013, compared to $129.5 million, or 77.1% as a percentage of earned premiums, in 2012. Incurred losses and LAE decreased
in 2013, due primarily to the impact of lower earned premiums, lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned
premiums, higher levels of favorable loss and LAE reserve development and lower catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding
reserve development). Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 69.5% in 2013, compared to
82.8% in 2012. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due primarily to lower severity of
automobile insurance losses and lower frequency of automobile insurance claims. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development
was $25.6 million in 2013, compared to $17.8 million in 2012. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development)
were $2.3 million in 2013, compared to $8.3 million in 2012.
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Insurance Expenses were $34.7 million, or 28.1% of earned premiums, for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to
$57.2 million, or 34.0% of earned premiums, in 2012. Insurance Expenses as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due
primarily to reduced salaries and marketing related expenses.

Kemper Direct reported Segment Net Operating Income of $27.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to a
Segment Net Operating Loss of $0.9 million in 2012. The Kemper Direct segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the
federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions. Tax-
exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $4.0 million in 2013, compared to $6.2 million in 2012.

2012 Compared with 2011

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Direct segment decreased by $54.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared
to 2011, due primarily to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium rates.

Net Investment Income in the Kemper Direct segment decreased by $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to 2011, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and lower
levels of investments allocated to Kemper Direct. Net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments
was $1.3 million in 2012, compared to $2.9 million in 2011.

The Kemper Direct segment reported an Operating Loss of $4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to an
Operating Loss of $47.2 million in 2011. Operating results improved in the Kemper Direct segment in 2012, compared to 2011,
due primarily to lower levels of unprofitable business, higher levels of favorable reserve development, the impact of the partial
write-off in 2011 of an intangible asset from the acquisition of Direct Response Corporation (“Direct Response™) that did not
recur in 2012 and lower underlying losses and LAE, partially offset by lower net investment income.

Incurred losses and LAE were $129.5 million, or 77.1% as a percentage of earned premiums, for the year ended December 31,
2012, compared to $197.6 million, or 88.7% as a percentage of earned premiums, in 2011. Incurred losses and LAE decreased
in 2012, due primarily to the impact of lower earned premiums, higher levels of favorable loss and LAE reserve development
and lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, partially offset by higher incurred catastrophe losses
and LAE (excluding reserve development). Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $17.8 million in 2012, compared
to $3.9 million in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 82.8% in 2012, compared to
87.5% in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased in both automobile and homeowners
insurance. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $8.3 million in 2012, compared to $6.7 million in
2011.

The Incurred Expense Ratio, including Write-off of Intangible Asset, was 34.0% of earned premiums for the year ended
December 31, 2012, compared to 40.3% of earned premiums in 2011. In 2011, the book of business acquired in connection with
the acquisition of Direct Response was not improving at the rate that Kemper Direct had initially expected, and Kemper Direct
determined that the customer relationships intangible asset related to the Direct Response acquisition was impaired at
December 31, 2011 and recognized a charge of $13.5 million in 2011 to write down the asset to its estimated fair value.
Insurance Expenses as a percentage of earned premiums were 34.0% in 2012, compared to 34.3% of earned premiums in 2011.
Insurance Expenses as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due primarily to reduced acquisition and marketing related
expenses, partially offset by other underwriting costs not declining at the same pace as earned premiums.

Kemper Direct reported a Segment Net Operating Loss of $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to a
Segment Net Operating Loss of $27.5 million in 2011. The Kemper Direct segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the
federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions. Tax-
exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $6.2 million in 2012, compared to $8.7 million in 2011.

42



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE

Selected financial information for the Life and Health Insurance segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Earned Premiums:
L et ettt et e e tt e taeetbeetbeeabeenbeenbeebeebeeteenaes $ 3927 § 3934 §$§ 3951
Accident and Health ...........cccoooiiiiiiiiiii e 161.4 165.2 166.3
POPCILY ..ot ettt sttt st ettt et et et 78.8 81.3 84.5
Total Earned PremiUmmS .......coveiiiiiiiiiie ittt ettt ettt e v e e eaveeeaeeeeaneeenns 632.9 639.9 645.9
Net INVestMeEnt INCOME..........coviiiiiiiiiccee ettt ser e e rae e eebeeeeaeeas 209.9 204.3 200.5
Other INCOMIC ...ttt ettt ettt et e te e s te e tbesabesebeesseesbeesseesseensaesseeseenses 0.2 0.1 0.1
TOtAl REVEIUES .....veiiviiiiiieceee ettt ettt e et e e e ate e e te e e s ateeetaeeeaseeesaseeenseeesnseeanes 843.0 844.3 846.5
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE.........c.cccoeoieviininieiieneninieieneeene 387.9 393.1 385.6
INSUTANCE EXPEISES ...cuvitiiieniiiiniieiteiesteeit ettt ettt ettt be st besae et et b ennens 318.2 310.8 308.6
OPEratiNg PrOfil....eeieiiiiiieieiesiieeeeeee ettt ettt et e steese et enbesbesssensebessaesaens 136.9 140.4 152.3
INCOME TaX EXPENSE......eiriiiiiiiiiriiiiiieiitce ettt sttt sttt e (47.6) (49.6) (53.4)
Segment Net Operating INCOME ......cc.eeueeierierieeiieieiesie ettt te e seeeeessesseeseessessesreessenes $ 893 § 908 $ 989
INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Insurance Reserves:
Future Policyholder BeNeTits.........cceiiiiiieieriieieieieseecetee sttt et sae s besbeenaenees $ 3,157.7 $ 3,103.1
Incurred Losses and LAE Reserves:
| 5 USRS UO TSRO 37.6 36.8
Accident and Health ............ccoiiiiiiiiiieccceeeee ettt ettt ae e 22.2 21.7
PLOPEILY ettt ettt s h e s bt ettt b e sttt b et e bt bt et b ebeennen 53 7.0
Total Incurred Losses and LAE RESEIVES ......c..ccvieiiiiieiieieeieeete ettt et 65.1 65.5
INSUTANCE RESEIVES .....vvivvieieeieeieeteeee ettt ettt et ettt e et eat et et e eteene et e et e eteens et e eaeessenteeaeeasensensesaeeaeaneenns $ 3,222.8 $ 3,168.6

2013 Compared with 2012

Earned Premiums in the Life and Health Insurance segment decreased by $7.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to 2012. Earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $0.7 million in 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to a
lower volume of insurance, as a decrease of $6.4 million from life insurance products offered by the Kemper Home Service
Companies (“KHSC”) was partially offset by an increase of $5.7 million from life insurance products offered by Reserve
National. In late 2012, Reserve National began offering its life insurance products through an expanded network of brokers and
non-exclusive independent agents (See Item 1A., “Risk Factors” entitled “Reserve National’s operating history with its
expanded distribution channels and new products is limited”). Earned premiums on accident and health insurance decreased by
$3.8 million in 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to lower volume of insurance resulting primarily from the run-off of
certain health insurance products, partially offset by higher volume of supplemental health insurance products and higher
average premium. The Company believes that some of the health insurance products previously sold by Reserve National could
be adversely impacted by some provisions of the Health Care Acts. In particular, a provision which sets minimum loss ratios for
health insurance policies; a provision, beginning in 2014, establishing health insurance exchanges; and a provision, beginning
in 2014, prohibiting the renewal of certain policies issued by Reserve National after the issuance of the Health Care Acts could
adversely impact Reserve National’s business. Such affected health insurance products (the “Affected Products”) accounted for
$49.6 million, or 31%, of the Life and Health Insurance segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums in 2013 and
$62.5 million, or 38%, of the Life and Health Insurance segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums in 2012.
Reserve National has been adapting its business model in response to the Health Care Acts and ceased selling the Affected
Products at the end of 2011 and began transitioning its sales to supplemental health insurance products that are not expected to
be as severely impacted by the Health Care Acts. Reserve National expects earned premiums from the Affected Products to
decrease by approximately 37% in 2014 and expects an increase in earned premiums from sales of supplemental insurance
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products to offset much of the decline. Earned premiums on property insurance decreased by $2.5 million in 2013, compared to
2012, due primarily to lower volume of insurance from the run-off and, in certain geographical areas, the non-renewal of
insurance policies providing dwelling coverage (“Dwelling Policies”), partially offset by the impact of non-renewing the Life
and Health Insurance segment’s catastrophe reinsurance program. Catastrophe reinsurance premiums reduced earned premiums
by $2.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 with no such reduction in 2013. Given the actions taken by KHSC to
reduce its exposures to catastrophes and except for catastrophe reinsurance provided by the FHCF, KHSC did not renew its
catastrophe reinsurance program in 2013. The Life and Health Insurance segment has been intentionally running off Dwelling
Policies to reduce its exposure to catastrophe risks. Over the last several years, the Life and Health Insurance segment has
halted new sales of Dwelling Policies in all markets and non-renewed Dwelling Policies in certain geographical, mainly coastal,
areas while continuing to renew policies in other geographical areas. Earned premiums from dwelling coverage comprised
23%, 26% and 30% of the Life and Health Insurance segment’s earned premiums on property insurance in 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

Net Investment Income increased by $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to a
higher level of investments in fixed maturities, higher investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments
and higher dividends on equity securities, partially offset by lower book yields on fixed maturities. Net investment income from
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments was $8.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $1.8
million in 2012.

Operating Profit in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $136.9 million before taxes for the year ended December 31,
2013, compared to $140.4 million in 2012. Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE decreased by $5.2 million in
2013 due primarily to lower underlying losses on property insurance, lower catastrophe losses and LAE and higher favorable
loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by higher policyholders’ benefits on life insurance and higher incurred
accident and health insurance losses. Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance were $269.6 million in 2013, compared to $265.3
million in 2012, an increase of $4.3 million. Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance increased due primarily to higher volume
of insurance from policies issued by Reserve National and slightly higher mortality rates related to insurance policies issued by
KHSC, partially offset by the impact of a higher lapse rate for KHSC’s in-force book of business. Incurred accident and health
insurance losses were $90.9 million, or 56.3% of accident and health insurance earned premiums, in 2013, compared to $88.9
million, or 53.8% of accident and health insurance earned premiums, in 2012. Incurred accident and health insurance losses as a
percentage of accident and health insurance earned premiums increased due primarily to higher severity of accident and health
insurance losses, partially offset by lower frequency of claims.

Incurred losses and LAE on property insurance were $27.4 million, or 34.8% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2013,
compared to $38.9 million, or 47.8% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2012. Underlying losses and LAE on property
insurance were $25.6 million, or 32.5% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2013, compared to $33.2 million, or 40.8%
of property insurance earned premiums, in 2012 and decreased due primarily to lower severity of insurance losses. Catastrophe
losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $3.6 million in 2013, compared to $6.0 million in 2012. Favorable loss
and LAE reserve development was $1.8 million in 2013, compared to $0.3 million in 2012. Favorable loss and LAE reserve
development in 2013 resulted primarily from a final assessment issued by the MWUA that reduced KHSC’s share of MWUA’s
losses for the 2004 through 2006 policy periods by $2.0 million.

Insurance Expenses in the Life and Health Insurance segment increased by $7.4 million in 2013, compared to 2012, due
primarily to higher legal costs and start-up expenses to expand Reserve National’s distribution channels, partially offset by
lower commissions.

Certain state insurance regulators, legislators and treasurers/controllers are involved in an array of initiatives that could result in
significant changes to the application of unclaimed property laws and related claims handling practices with respect to life
insurance policies. These initiatives seek, in various ways, to impose a new duty on the part of life insurers to proactively
search for deaths of their insureds. It is the Company’s position that state officials lack the legal authority to impose new
requirements that have the effect of changing the terms of existing life insurance contracts. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under
the caption “Unclaimed Property Risk Factor” MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” and Note 23, “Contingencies,” to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about these matters.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $89.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2013, compared to $90.8 million in 2012.
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LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE (Continued)

2012 Compared with 2011

Earned Premiums in the Life and Health Insurance segment decreased by $6.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to 2011. Earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $1.7 million in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to
lower volume of insurance. Earned premiums on accident and health insurance decreased by $1.1 million in 2012, compared to
2011, due primarily to lower volume of insurance resulting from the suspension of sales of the Affected Policies described
above and, to a lesser extent, lower volume of Medicare supplement insurance, partially offset by higher volume of
supplemental health insurance products and higher average premium. Earned premiums on property insurance decreased by
$3.2 million in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to lower volume of insurance from the run-off and, in certain
geographical areas, the non-renewal of Dwelling Policies.

Net Investment Income increased by $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to
higher investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, partially offset by lower book yields on fixed
maturities and lower levels of capital allocated to the segment. Net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments was income of $1.8 million in 2012, compared to a loss of $6.3 million in 2011.

Operating Profit in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $140.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared
to $152.3 million in 2011. Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE increased by $7.5 million in 2012 due
primarily to higher policyholders’ benefits on life insurance and the impact of Loss and LAE reserve development on property
insurance, partially offset by lower catastrophe losses and LAE and lower underlying losses on property insurance.
Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance were $265.3 million in 2012, compared to $253.2 million in 2011, an increase of $12.1
million. Policyholder benefits on life insurance increased due primarily to reserve adjustments in 2011 associated with
correcting expiry dates for certain extended term life insurance policies and a lower level of net lapse in 2012, partially offset
by better mortality experience. Incurred accident and health insurance losses were $88.9 million, or 53.8% of accident and
health insurance earned premiums, in 2012, compared to $88.9 million, or 53.4% of accident and health insurance earned
premiums, in 2011. Incurred accident and health insurance losses were flat as higher average incurred claim costs for Medicare
supplement insurance and, to a lesser extent, a higher average incurred claim cost for hospitalization and limited benefit
insurance products, were offset by lower frequency of Medicare supplement insurance claims and, to a lesser extent, lower
frequency of hospitalization and limited benefit insurance products. Incurred Losses and LAE on property insurance were $38.9
million in 2012, compared to $43.5 million in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE on property insurance were $33.2 million, or
40.8% of property insurance earned premium, in 2012, compared to $37.0 million, or 43.8% of property insurance earned
premium, in 2011. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $6.0 million in 2012, compared to $9.1
million in 2011. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development on property insurance was $0.3 million (including adverse
reserve development of $0.1 million on catastrophes) in 2012, compared to favorable reserve development of $2.6 million
(including favorable reserve development of $1.5 million on catastrophes) in 2011. Insurance Expenses in the Life and Health
Insurance segment increased by $2.2 million in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to higher commission and fringe benefit
expenses, partially attributable to an increase in the number of career agents employed, and higher amortization of deferred
policy acquisition costs.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $90.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2012, compared to $98.9 million in 2011.

45



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)
INVESTMENT RESULTS

Net Investment Income

Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Investment Income:
Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities..........ccocveverieriereeierieneeieiesie e eeese e eeeennas $ 2355 § 246.1 $ 246.6
Dividends on EQUIty SECUTTLIES ....c..evviruirieriiriirieieriieiteieie sttt seeeneas 38.0 25.7 25.2
Equity Method Limited Liability INVEStMENLS .......cc.ceeevierererieienieninieiesenceie e 26.4 9.3 9.6
Short-term INVESTMENTS. .......ccueeieierieeeieieie ettt e et e stesre e e sessesaeessensesbeeneenes 0.1 0.2 0.1
REAL ESTALE ...uvetiiieiieieeieeeee ettt sttt ettt ettt s b et sb e et be b enean 20.8 27.4 26.0
L0ans t0 POHCYNOLIACTS .......ccvevuieiieieiiciicieie sttt ettt st eaeennas 19.8 18.9 17.7
OBRET ..ottt ettt sttt ettt a et — 0.1 0.3
Total INVesStMent INCOME...........eeeciiiiieiieii ettt ae e eseeseesaenns 340.6 327.7 325.5
Investment Expenses:
REAI ESTALE ....eutiieieeiieieeieete ettt ettt et sta et eeta e e tae et e esbeeaseenbeenseessaenseenseennes 18.3 26.1 259
Other INVEStMENt EXPEINSES ....veevveieriiriieieieitieiieiestesteeestesteeseesessesseeseessessesssessessessaeseens 7.6 5.7 1.6
Total INVEStMENTt EXPENSES.....evuiriiiiiiiiieiieieieeieetete sttt ettt ettt st sreennens 25.9 31.8 27.5

Net INVESTMENT INCOIMIE. .......viiieiiiieiie ettt et e st e e saaeesanessneeeenees $ 3147 $§ 2959 $ 298.0

2013 Compared with 2012

Net Investment Income increased by $18.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to
higher income on Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, higher dividends on Equity Securities, higher levels of Fixed
Maturities, partially offset by lower yields on Fixed Maturities. Interest income from loans to policyholders increased by $0.9
million in 2013, compared to 2012, due to a higher level of loans outstanding. Net investment income from real estate increased
by $1.2 million in 2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to income from the early termination of one tenant’s lease.

2012 Compared with 2011

Net Investment Income decreased by $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to
higher other investment expenses, partially offset by higher interest income from loans to policyholders and higher real estate
net investment income. Interest income from loans to policyholders increased by $1.2 million in 2012, compared to 2011, due
to a higher level of loans outstanding. Net investment income from real estate increased by $1.2 million in 2012, compared to
2011, due primarily to higher occupancy.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments

The components of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Fixed Maturities:

GAINS ON SALES......viveeieeietiteeieteet ettt ettt ettt et e et et eteete et et eseete et et ereeteeseaseseereesenseseans $ 309 § 569 $§ 142

LL0SSES ON SIS ....eeniieiiieiieitee ettt ettt sttt ettt et neens 0.4) (0.1) (0.1)
Equity Securities:

GAINS ON SALES......eeiieiiieiieie ettt ete et e et e e et e e st e teesteesseesseessseessesssaesseenseensenn 21.8 8.3 34.0

LLOSSES ON SALES ...ceuviviieieiieieeiietete sttt ettt et e teste et etesseeseenbessesseeseessensesseensensensesseenes 0.5) 0.2) (13.5)
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:

GAINS ON SALES.....eeeieiieeieieieeteetesteste et et et e sttt ebestesteesaessesseeseessessesseessessessesseessesesseassans 2.5 — —
Real Estate:

GAINS ON SALES......eeiieiiieieeie ettt et e et e et e e e e st ete et e eseesseesssesssessseesseenseensenn 44.2 0.2 0.1
Other Investments:

GAINS ON SALES......eeiiiiieiieiieie ettt te st e et e et e et e e beebeesbeeseesseesseessaesseesssesssesssansseesseensenn 0.1 — —

LLOSSES 0N SAIES ....veeuviiieiieiieieeie ettt ettt ettt et este st e ese e b e beeseesaensesbeesaensenseeseenean 0.1) — 0.1)

Trading Securities Net Gaing (LOSSES) ..ccververirierieriirieienienieeteiesieeieetete e sieese e sneennas 0.6 0.3 0.9)
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS ..........cccevviruieierieniieieierieeeeeeeesie e $ 991 § 654 § 337
GTOSS GAINS ON SALES ....veiiiiiieciieeiieeie ettt ettt et estaesteesteestbesebeesseesseesseesseesseesseenseenses $ 995 § 654 § 483
GTOSS LOSSES ON SAIES ....vevievieiieiieiieieeieettete et et et e stesttesaetesseeseessesseeseessensessesssensesesseesnens (1.0) 0.3) (13.7)
Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUTTLIES .......ccvevverierieriirieienieeieeteieeieeieete et 0.6 0.3 (0.9)
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS ..........cccevviiieierieniieieieieeeeeeeesie e $ 991 § 654 § 337
Fixed Maturities

In the first quarter of 2013, the Company sold $138.5 million of Corporate Bonds and Notes in conjunction with a
comprehensive review of the prospects of each issuer in the Company’s publicly-traded corporate bond portfolio. Realized
Gains on Sales of Fixed Maturities for the year ended December 31, 2013 include realized gains of $24.8 million from such
sales. In the third quarter of 2012, the Company sold $320.1 million of municipal securities to take advantage of attractive
pricing for such securities and for tax planning and other portfolio management purposes. Realized Gains on Sales of Fixed
Maturities for the year ended December 31, 2012 include realized gains of $44.9 million from such sales.

Equity Securities

In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company sold $47.9 million of common stocks to accelerate the utilization of net operating
loss carryforwards. Realized Gains on Sales of Equity Securities for the year ended December 31, 2013 include realized gains
of $19.8 million from such sales. Realized Gains on Sales of Equity Securities for the year ended December 31, 2012 include
realized gains of $7.8 million from the sale of investments in the common stock and preferred stock of fifteen issuers. Realized
Gains on Sales of Equity Securities for the year ended December 31, 2011 include realized gains of $21.6 million from the sale
of investments in the common stock and preferred stock of twelve issuers, realized gains of $8.1 from sales of exchange traded
funds and $4.3 million from dispositions of limited liability companies and partnerships included in Other Equity Interests.
Realized Losses on Sales of Equity Securities for the year ended December 31, 2011 includes a loss of $7.0 million resulting
from the contribution of the Company’s investment in the common stock of Intermec, Inc. to the Company’s pension plan and
losses of $5.7 million from sales of exchange traded funds.

Real Estate

In the third quarter of 2013, the Company sold the building where Kemper’s corporate offices are headquartered and recognized
a realized gain of $43.6 million.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings

The components of Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011

FIXEA IMALULITIES .. ....veeeveecetcee ettt ettt ettt ettt e seea et eas et ene s eteneeneseesenns $ @103 $ (@19 § (22
EQUILY SECUITEICS. .. .euvetiitieeieiesieeieeteste sttt et e st e st et etestesteessebesseesaensesseeseessensessesseensensesseesnens 3.6) (1.9) (1.9)
REAI ESLALC .....ecuvieiiiiieiieeiteette ettt ettt et ettt e te e st e tbeeabeeebeeabeenseesseenseenseesseeseennes — 3.1) (7.2)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............ccecvevvevieeecienienieienienie e $ @139 § (69 $ (11.3)

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an
investment is other than temporary. Losses arising from other-than-temporary declines in fair value are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the declines are determined to be other than temporary. Net Impairment
Losses recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 include
other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) losses of $13.9 million, $6.9 million and $11.3 million, respectively. OTTI losses
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 included pre-tax losses
of $3.1 million and $7.2 million, respectively, to write down real estate investments.

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2013 include
losses of $0.8 million due to the Company’s intent to sell or requirement to sell bonds of two issuers; credit losses of $9.5
million from other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in fixed maturities of three issuers; and losses of
$3.6 million from other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in equity securities of eleven issuers.

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2012 include
losses of $0.4 million due to the Company’s intent to sell bonds of one issuer; credit losses of $1.5 million from other-than-
temporary declines in the fair values of investments in fixed maturities of two issuers; and losses of $1.9 million from other-
than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in equity securities of eight issuers. The Company classified certain
investments in real estate as held for sale in 2012. In connection with such classification, the Company wrote down five
properties to their respective estimated net sales prices and recognized impairment losses of $3.1 million in 2012.

Net Impairment Losses recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2011 include
credit losses of $2.2 million from other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in fixed maturities of one
issuer and losses of $0.7 million from other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in equity securities of five
issuers and $1.2 million to write down the value of one exchange traded fund that the Company intended to sell in the near
term. In connection with the Company’s periodic review of the recoverability of its investments in real estate, the Company
wrote down four properties to their respective fair values and recognized impairment losses of $7.2 million in 2011.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)

Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses)

Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) are comprised of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments and Net
Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income and unrealized investment gains

and losses that are not reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income, but rather are reported in the Consolidated

Statements of Comprehensive Income. The components of Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) for the years ended

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Fixed Maturities:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS ON SALES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt se ettt ae st et ettt see b et e s e ebe e eneeneenas $ 309 § 569 $ 146
LLOSSES ON SAIES .....uviviieiiieiiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt tae b eabeearean 0.49) (0.1) (0.1)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings..........cocceceevveveveneeiienenenceencneneenes (10.3) (1.9) 2.2)
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of InCOmMe........ccceveeievienienircienienreeenen. 20.2 54.9 12.3
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (LOSS) .....cvevververierieneninienieninceienesieeneen (371.9) 69.1 272.8
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) on Fixed Maturities............c.ccevvererveennen. (351.7) 124.0 285.1
Equity Securities:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS ON SALES ...c..eveeieiiiiieieitet ettt ettt sttt sttt et enes 21.8 8.3 34.0
LOSSES ON SALES ...ttt ettt sttt s 0.5) 0.2) (13.5)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings .............ccceeveveeeeviesienieneeceenieseenennn @3.6) (1.9) (1.9)
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of InCOME.........cccocerveerineneccncnineenncns 17.7 6.2 18.6
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (LOSS) .....ccververierieeiieieeieeieeeeieeeeenes 9.3 29.2 (71.2)
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) on Equity Securities...........cccevverireennnne 27.0 354 (52.6)
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS ON SALES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt sttt sae ettt a et enes 2.5 — —
Real Estate:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS O SALES.....evieiiiiiitieiietertee ettt ettt st ettt sttt besat et e besbeennens 44.2 0.2 0.1
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ...........ccceeveveeeeceenienieneecieneneeenennen — 3.1 (7.2)
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income..........cceeevieierinencceneneneenen. 44.2 2.9 7.1
Other Investments:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS O SALES.....eeieiiiiiitieiietertee ettt ettt sttt st e bttt e s bt sbe et et sbeeanens 0.1 — —
LLOSSES ON SALES ...cuvenvieeieiieiieteeieieete et ete sttt estestesteessebesseeseesaessesseeseensensesseensensesseasnans 0.1) — 0.1)
Trading Securities Net Gains (LOSSES).....ccververeriirierieririeieriesieeeestesie et sreennens 0.6 0.3 0.9)
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOME........ccccvevreeiecierienieieierieeeenenn 0.6 0.3 (1.0)
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (LOSSES) .......cvvververiereerierienieeeeienieneeeeeeenieseenens $ 2774) $ 1568 § 2244
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income ...........ccevveveeieriininiecieececeeee e $ 8.2 § 585 § 228
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (L0SS).....co.veverereriinienininieieneneeenieieenen (362.6) 98.3 201.6
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (LOSSES) .......cvevveveiiverieierieieieeereereseeeereeresseseeneans $ (2774) $ 1568 $ 2244
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INVESTMENT QUALITY AND CONCENTRATIONS

The Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio is comprised primarily of high-grade municipal, corporate and agency
bonds. At December 31, 2013, 93% of the Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio was rated investment grade, which is
defined as a security having a rating of AAA, AA, A or BBB from S&P; a rating of Aaa, Aa, A or Baa from Moody’s; a rating of
AAA, AA, A or BBB from Fitch; or a rating from the NAIC of 1 or 2. The following table summarizes the credit quality of the
fixed maturity investment portfolio at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012
NAIC Fair Value Percentage Fair Value Percentage
Rating S&P Equivalent Rating in Millions of Total in Millions of Total
1 AAA; AA, Ao $ 3,128.1 68.4% § 3,319.1 68.3%
2 BBB ... e 1,119.9 24.5 1,199.0 24.7
34 BB, B oo 144.6 3.1 158.9 32
56 CCC OF LOWET ..ottt 1824 4.0 183.2 3.8
Total Investments in Fixed Maturiti€S .......c..oeeevevvieieeiveieeeeieeieeeeieeee e $ 4,575.0 100.0% $ 4,860.2 100.0%

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s investments in below-investment-grade fixed maturities were $5.5 million and $4.3
million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had $162.6 million of bonds issued by states and political subdivisions, commonly
referred to as “municipal bonds,” that had been pre-refunded with U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities
obligations held in trust for the full payment of principal and interest (“Pre-refunded Municipal Bonds™). At December 31,
2013, the Company had $1,198.4 million of investments in municipal bonds that had not been pre-refunded, of which $84.0
million were enhanced with insurance from monoline bond insurers. The Company’s municipal bond investment credit-risk
strategy is to focus on the underlying credit rating of the issuer and not to rely on the credit enhancement provided by the
monoline bond insurer when making investment decisions. To that end, the underlying rating of over 96% of the Company’s
entire municipal bond portfolio that has not been pre-refunded is AA or higher, half of which are direct obligations of states.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in governmental fixed maturities at December 31,
2013 and 2012:

Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.................. $ 3622 59% §$§ 4289 6.6%
Pre-refunded Municipal Bonds............ccceevieuieievieniinieieiececeeieee e 162.6 2.6 288.5 4.5
SEALES ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e ae e st eeateenteenteenteeneentean 629.1 10.2 545.1 8.4
Political SUDAIVISIONS .....c.cevviiiiiiieieiiiieieieseeeee e 128.1 2.1 122.9 1.9
ReVENUE BONAS ...c.ooviiiciiiiiiiciciee ettt 441.2 7.2 444.9 6.9
Total Investments in Governmental Fixed Maturities .............ccccceeveeennen.. $ 1,723.2 28.0% $ 1,830.3 28.3%

The Company’s short-term investments primarily consist of overnight repurchase agreements, money market funds and U.S.
Treasury bills. At December 31, 2013, the Company had $144.0 million invested in overnight repurchase agreements primarily
collateralized by securities issued by the U.S. government, $64.1 million invested in money market funds which primarily
invest in U.S. Treasury securities and $48.7 million of U.S. Treasury bills. At the time of borrowing, the repurchase agreements
generally require the borrower to provide collateral to the Company at least equal to the amount borrowed from the Company.
The Company bears some investment risk in the event that a borrower defaults and the value of collateral falls below the
amount borrowed. The Company does not have any investments in sovereign debt securities issued by foreign governments.
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INVESTMENT QUALITY AND CONCENTRATIONS (Continued)

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in non-governmental fixed maturities by industry
at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Dec 31,2013 Dec 31, 2012
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
MANUTACTUTING ...c.veevieieeeieiieieeie ettt ettt ae sttt ebe st sseenbeseesseennens $ 1,196.9 19.5% $§ 1,371.1 21.2%
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 767.9 12.5 780.8 12.1
Transportation, Communication and Utilities............cceceverereerienenrennene. 306.7 5.0 289.2 4.5
SETVICES ..vveutiteeeienietesieete et et et et e st et e tesbe e st entesbesseeneensesesaeesaensessesseeneas 277.5 4.5 298.6 4.6
IMITUIIE ..ttt ettt bbb e b e beesaess e b e eaeessessesbeeseessebesreessenns 143.1 2.3 143.4 2.2
Retail Trade.......cvevveeiieiieieiesiecteieste ettt st 75.6 1.2 66.5 1.0
Wholesale Trade..........coveeeriiriiienieniirieieieeetee ettt 60.7 1.0 57.8 0.9
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing...........ccccoovevieveniiiecienicicieiese e, 18.8 0.3 19.2 0.3
(0115 1<) LTSRS 4.6 0.1 33 0.1
Total Investments in Non-governmental Fixed Maturities........................ $ 2,851.8 46.4% $ 3,029.9 46.9%

Eighty-one companies comprised over 75% of the Company’s fixed maturity exposure to the Manufacturing industry at
December 31, 2013, with the largest single exposure, Merck & Co. Inc., comprising 2.5%, or $29.6 million, of the Company’s
fixed maturity exposure to such industry. Forty companies comprised over 75% of the Company’s exposure to the Finance,
Insurance and Real Estate industry at December 31, 2013, with the largest single exposure, Wells Fargo & Company,
comprising 4.4%, or $33.9 million, of the Company’s exposure to such industry.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s ten largest exposures, excluding exposures to short term
investments and investments in U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities and Pre-refunded Municipal
Bonds, at December 31, 2013:

Percentage
Fair of Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Investments
Fixed Maturities:
States including their Political Subdivisions:
TIEXAS ettt ettt h et h bt e a bbbt e b e bbbt h e e a et bt ae et e bt b eae $ 85.7 1.4%
ORIO ettt ettt ettt h bbb et b ettt ebeee 75.5 1.2
GEOTZIA ...ttt ettt ettt e a et a e ettt s a et b e st h et ene e 64.7 1.0
(070] (4] T Lo OO OSSOSO PEORRSRTPO 54.5 0.9
WESCOMSIN ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et b et ae b et euesae s eneenenaens 54.2 0.9
FLOTIAA 1.ttt ettt e et s ettt e ettt ea et e st b et e e neene s 53.1 0.9
1Y 21 1 T OO USROS SRR PP 52.9 0.9
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:
Tennenbaum Opportunities FUnd V, LLC........c.cccoooiiiiiiiiiiieiececteiee st 75.9 1.2
ViINtage FUNA TV, LP..c.iiiiiieeee ettt sttt bttt sbe e 54.0 0.9
Special Value Opportunities Fund, LLC..........cccuecievieriiiieieiesiiceeiesie et seeeesaesseeseessesseseeesnens 50.2 0.8
TOTAL ..ttt ettt b e bttt b ettt sttt nae $ 620.7 10.1%
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INVESTMENTS IN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANIES AND LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

The Company owns investments in various limited liability companies and limited partnerships that primarily invest in
distressed debt, mezzanine debt and secondary transactions. The Company’s investments in these limited liability companies
and limited partnerships are reported either as Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, or Other Equity Interests and
included in Equity Securities depending on the accounting method used to report the investment. See Note 2, “Summary of
Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Additional information pertaining to
these investments at December 31, 2013 and 2012 is presented below:

Unfunded Reported Value Stated
Commitment Dec 31, Dec 31, Fund End
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Asset Class Dec 31, 2013 2013 2012 Date
Reported as Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments at Cost Plus
Cumulative Undistributed Earnings:
Tennenbaum Opportunities Fund V, LLC...... Distressed Debt $ — $ 759 $ 699 10/10/2016
Vintage Fund IV, LP.........cooccnniiinne Secondary Transactions 17.4 54.0 58.9 12/31/2016
Special Value Opportunities Fund, LLC........ Distressed Debt — 50.2 59.4 7/13/2016
BNY Mezzanine - Alcentra Partners III, LP.. Mezzanine Debt 15.5 19.0 18.9  2021-2022
BNY Mezzanine Partners, LP.........cccccoone. Mezzanine Debt 0.2 9.5 9.2 4/17/2016
Ziegler Meditech Equity Partners, LP............ Growth Equity — 7.8 8.9 1/31/2016
Brightwood Capital Fund I, LP................... Mezzanine Debt — 7.5 —  9/30/2018
Midwest Mezzanine Fund IV, LP.................. Mezzanine Debt 0.3 6.1 6.3 12/18/2016
NYLIM Mezzanine Partners II, LP................ Mezzanine Debt 3.8 5.5 10.3 7/31/2016
Other Funds (7 LLCs and LPs)...................... 13.2 9.6 11.2 Various
Total for Equity Method Limited Liability
INVEStMENtS .....ovevveeeieieierieeieecceccee 50.4 245.1 253.0
Reported as Other Equity Interests at Fair
Value:
Highbridge Principal Strategies Mezzanine
Partners, LP.....cc.oooovvviiieiieieecieeeee e Mezzanine Debt 2.2 20.6 22.1 1/23/2018
Vintage Fund V, LP.....ccoooviriiiiieienee Secondary Transactions 5.6 12.4 13.7 12/31/2018
Highbridge Principal Strategies Credit
Opportunities Fund, LP..........ccccocorivininnns Hedge Fund — 11.9 11.0 None
GS Mezzanine Partners V, LP........................ Mezzanine Debt 124 9.0 9.3 12/31/2021
Other (88 LLCs and LPS).......cccccoecvevervennennen. 100.9 120.0 85.2 Various
Total Reported as Other Equity Interests at
Fair Value......c.coocooiiiineieeeec 121.1 173.9 141.3
TOtAL i $

1715 $§ 419.0 § 3943
The Company does not directly participate, as either a lender or borrower of securities, in any securities lending program. The
Company does not participate directly in credit default swaps. The Company does not engage directly in hedging activities,
including, but not limited to, activities involving interest rate swaps, forward foreign currency contracts, commodities contracts,
exchange traded and over-the-counter options or warrants. The Company has limited exposure to such programs and activities
by virtue of an investment of $0.6 million at December 31, 2013 included in Other under the heading “Reported as Other
Equity Interests at Fair Value” in the preceding table. Such investment consists solely of restricted assets that are being
redeemed over several periods.
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INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSES

Interest and Other Expenses was $100.5 million, $85.5 million and $83.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively. Interest expense, excluding interest on a mortgage note payable included in real estate investment
expense, was $38.1 million, $37.6 million and $36.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Other Corporate Expenses were $62.4 million, $47.9 million and $47.0 million for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Other Corporate Expenses increased by $14.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2013, compared to 2012, due primarily to higher postretirement benefit costs and salaries. Other Corporate Expenses increased
by $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to higher postretirement benefit costs
and salaries.

INCOME TAXES

The Company’s effective income tax rate from continuing operations differs from the Federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to the effects of tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions, and the net effects of state income
taxes. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $30.1 million, $39.8 million and $50.6 million in
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. State income tax expense, net of federal benefit, from continuing operations was $0.2
million, $0.8 million and $1.0 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company’s effective income tax rate from discontinued operations differs from the Federal statutory income tax rate for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 due primarily to the net effects of state income taxes. State income tax, net of federal
taxes, from discontinued operations was $0.7 million of expense and $0.3 million of benefit for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. State income tax includes changes in the state deferred tax asset valuation allowance and is net of
a $0.2 million benefit and $2.3 million benefit for the years ended December 31, 2012, and 2011, respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

On March 7, 2012, Kemper entered into the 2016 Credit Agreement, a new four-year, $325.0 million, unsecured, revolving
credit agreement, expiring March 7, 2016, with a group of financial institutions. Effective December 31, 2013, Kemper
amended the 2016 Credit Agreement to, among other things, reduce the amount of the aggregate commitments under the 2016
Credit Agreement by $100 million, bringing the aggregate commitments to $225 million, and to increase the amount of
indebtedness that may be incurred and outstanding in the aggregate at any time in connection with borrowings from the FHLB
or issuances of surplus notes by $150 million, to $250 million, provided that the aggregate indebtedness incurred and
outstanding in connection with issuances of surplus notes may not exceed $100 million at any one time. The action resulted
from the completion in December 2013 of the process initiated by Kemper’s subsidiaries, United Insurance and Trinity, to
become members of the FHLBs of Chicago and Dallas, respectively. The FHLB memberships provide United and Trinity with
access to additional sources of liquidity and consequently reduce the need for such liquidity at the parent company level.

The 2016 Credit Agreement replaced Kemper’s $245.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement which was scheduled to
expire on October 30, 2012 (the “Former Credit Agreement”) and was terminated on March 7, 2012. There were no borrowings
under the Former Credit Agreement at either December 31, 2011 or at its termination. The 2016 Credit Agreement provides for
fixed and floating rate advances for periods up to six months at various interest rates. The 2016 Credit Agreement contains
various financial covenants, including limits on total debt to total capitalization, consolidated net worth and minimum risk-
based capital ratios for Kemper’s largest insurance subsidiaries, United Insurance and Trinity. Proceeds from advances under
the 2016 Credit Agreement may be used for general corporate purposes, including repayment of existing indebtedness.

Kemper did not borrow under its credit agreements during 2013 and 2012. Kemper borrowed and repaid $95.0 million under
the Former Credit Agreement in 2011. There were no outstanding borrowings under the 2016 Credit Agreement at

December 31, 2013, and accordingly, $225.0 million was available for future borrowings. Management estimates that it could
borrow the full amount under the 2016 Credit Agreement and still meet the financial covenants therein.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued)

In connection with the finalization of their FHLB memberships, United Insurance and Trinity purchased capital stock in the
FHLBs of Chicago and Dallas, respectively. In addition, to complete Trinity’s membership in the FHLB of Dallas, which
became effective as of December 31, 2013, Trinity and the FHLB of Dallas entered into agreements pursuant to which Trinity
may obtain extensions of credit (“FHLB Advances”) from the FHLB of Dallas. The amount of FHLB Advances that may be
obtained by Trinity will be determined as of any particular date based on a multiple of the amount of capital stock in the FHLB
of Dallas that has been purchased by Trinity as of such date. FHLB Advances are subject to collateral requirements as specified
in the agreements. There were no FHLB Advances outstanding at December 31, 2013.

At December 31, 2013, $250 million of Kemper’s 6.00% senior notes due November 30, 2015 (the “2015 Senior Notes”) was
outstanding. The 2015 Senior Notes are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at
Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. Interest expense under the 2015 Senior Notes was $15.4 million for each of the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

At December 31, 2013, $360 million of Kemper’s 6.00% senior notes due May 15, 2017 (the “2017 Senior Notes™) was
outstanding. The 2017 Senior Notes are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at
Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. Interest expense under the 2017 Senior Notes was $22.2 million, $22.1 million
and $22.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Under various state insurance laws, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may pay dividends without obtaining prior regulatory
approval based upon levels of statutory capital and surplus and/or net income, as defined by the applicable state law. Kemper’s
direct insurance subsidiaries paid dividends of $95.0 million, $95.0 million and $70.5 million in cash to Kemper in 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively. In 2014, Kemper estimates that its direct insurance subsidiaries would be able to pay $217.0 million in
dividends to Kemper without prior regulatory approval.

On July 25, 2013, Kemper’s subsidiary, One East Wacker LLC (“One East”), sold the building where Kemper’s corporate
offices are headquartered for a gain of $43.6 million before taxes. In connection with the sale, Kemper entered into a long-term
operating lease for five floors of the 41-story office building, with naming and signage rights. One East’s proceeds from the sale
before taxes, net of repayment of a $45 million mortgage held by Trinity and an advance of $4.0 million from Kemper, and
payment of other transaction costs and liabilities, were approximately $50 million. In 2013, One East distributed $48 million of
its capital in cash to Kemper. In 2012, Fireside Auto Finance (“FAF”) distributed $20 million of its capital to its then parent
company, Fireside Securities Corporation (“FSC”), which then, in turn, distributed the same amount to its parent company,
Kemper. In 2011, FAF, which was known as Fireside Bank and regulated by the FDIC at the time, distributed $250 million of
its capital to its then parent company, FSC, which then, in turn, distributed the same amount to its parent company, Kemper.
The undistributed net assets of One East and FAF were not material at December 31, 2013.

On February 2, 2011, the Board of Directors approved a new share repurchase program under which Kemper is authorized to
repurchase up to $300 million of its common stock. During 2013, Kemper repurchased approximately 3.0 million shares of its
common stock at an aggregate cost of $100.4 million in open market transactions under the repurchase program. During 2012,
Kemper repurchased approximately 2.0 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $60.7 million in open market
transactions under the new repurchase program. During 2011, Kemper repurchased approximately 0.9 million shares of its
common stock at an aggregate cost of $27.4 million in open market transactions.

Kemper paid a quarterly dividend to shareholders of $0.24 per common share in each quarter of 2013. Dividends paid were
$54.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Kemper directly held cash and investments totaling $156.7 million at December 31, 2013, compared to $190.2 million at
December 31, 2012. Sources available for the repayment of indebtedness, repurchases of common stock, future shareholder
dividend payments, and the payment of interest on Kemper’s senior notes include cash and investments directly held by
Kemper, receipt of dividends from Kemper’s subsidiaries and borrowings under the 2016 Credit Agreement.
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The primary sources of funds for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are premiums, investment income and proceeds from the
sales and maturity of investments. The primary uses of funds are the payment of policyholder benefits under life insurance
contracts, claims under property and casualty insurance contracts and accident and health insurance contracts, the payment of
commissions and general expenses and the purchase of investments. Generally, there is a time lag between when premiums are
collected and when policyholder benefits and insurance claims are paid. Changes in the legal environment relative to
application of state unclaimed property laws and related insurance claims handling practices could result in changes in the
manner in which Kemper’s life insurance companies administer life insurance death benefits and escheat unclaimed benefits to
the states, and could have a significant effect on, including decreasing such time lag due to an acceleration of, the payment and/
or remittance of such benefits to the states under their unclaimed property laws relative to what is currently contemplated by
Kemper. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Unclaimed Property Risk Factor” MD&A, “Life and Health
Insurance,” and Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about these
matters. During periods of growth, insurance companies typically experience positive operating cash flows and are able to
invest a portion of their operating cash flows to fund future policyholder benefits and claims. During periods in which premium
revenues decline, insurance companies may experience negative cash flows from operations and may need to sell investments
to fund payments to policyholders and claimants. In addition, if the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries
experience several significant catastrophic events over a relatively short period of time, investments may have to be sold in
advance of their maturity dates to fund payments, which could either result in investment gains or losses. Management believes
that its property and casualty insurance subsidiaries maintain adequate levels of liquidity in the event that they experience
several future catastrophic events over a relatively short period of time.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities increased by $56.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to
2012. Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities increased by $90.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared
to 2011.

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities increased by $42.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 2012.
Kemper used $100.4 million of cash during 2013 to repurchase shares of its common stock, compared to $60.7 million of cash
used to repurchase shares of its common stock in 2012. Kemper used $54.9 million of cash to pay dividends for the year ended
December 31, 2013, compared to $56.9 million of cash used to pay dividends in 2012. The quarterly dividend rate was $0.24
per common share for each quarter of 2013 and 2012.

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities decreased by $291.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to 2011.
The Company did not use cash for the Repayments of Certificates of Deposits for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared
to net cash used of $321.8 million in 2011. Kemper used $60.7 million of cash during 2012 to repurchase shares of its common
stock, compared to $27.4 million of cash used to repurchase shares of its common stock in 2011. Kemper used $56.9 million of
cash to pay dividends for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $58.2 million of cash used to pay dividends in 2011.
The quarterly dividend rate was $0.24 per common share for each quarter of 2012 and 2011.

Cash available for investment activities in total is dependent on cash flow from Operating Activities and Financing Activities
and the level of cash the Company elects to maintain. Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities increased by $111.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 2012. Purchases of Fixed Maturities exceeded Sales of Fixed Maturities by
$80.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Sales of Fixed Maturities exceeded Purchases of Fixed Maturities by
$41.8 million in 2012. Purchases of Equity Securities exceeded Sales of Equity Securities by $31.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013. Purchases of Equity Securities exceeded Sales of Equity Securities by $66.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. Cash provided by the sale of investment real estate was $102.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 compared to $6.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Net cash provided by dispositions of short-term
investments was $41.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to net cash of $80.0 million used by
acquisitions of short-term investments in 2012. Net proceeds from the sale of FAF’s inactive loan portfolio provided $16.7
million of cash for the year ended December 31, 2012. Receipts from Automobile Loan Receivables provided $2.0 million of
cash for the year ended December 31, 2012.
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Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities decreased by $670.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to
2011. Sales of Fixed Maturities exceeded Purchases of Fixed Maturities by $41.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2012. Purchases of Fixed Maturities exceeded Sales of Fixed Maturities by $13.1 million in 2011. Purchases of Equity
Securities exceeded Sales of Equity Securities by $66.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Sales of Equity
Securities exceeded Purchases of Equity Securities by $49.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Net cash used by
acquisitions of short-term investments was $80.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to net cash of
$155.5 million provided by dispositions of short-term investments in 2011. Net proceeds from the sale of FAF’s inactive
portfolio of automobile loan receivables provided $16.7 million of cash for the year ended December 31, 2012. Net proceeds
from the sale of FAF’s active loan portfolio provided $220.7 million of cash for the year ended December 31, 2011. Receipts
from Automobile Loan Receivables provided $2.0 million of cash for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $166.5
million of cash provided in 2011.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has no material obligations under a guarantee contract. The Company has no material retained or contingent
interests in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity. The Company has no material obligations, including contingent
obligations, under contracts that would be accounted for as derivative instruments. The Company has no obligations, including
contingent obligations, arising out of a variable interest in an unconsolidated entity held by, and material to, the Company,
where such entity provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to, or engages in leasing, hedging or research
and development services with the Company. Accordingly, the Company has no material off-balance sheet arrangements.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Estimated cash disbursements pertaining to the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Jan 1, 2014 Jan 1, 2015 Jan 1, 2017
T

0 To To After

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Dec 31,2014 Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31,2018 Dec 31,2018 Total

Long Term Debt Obligations.............cccceveirveeereenennnn $ — 3 2500 $ 3600 $ — 3 610.0
Capital Lease Obligations ..........ccoceeeeveeneenenveniennenne 4.7 4.3 1.6 — 10.6
Operating Lease Obligations...........cccecevvereeecrenvennenne 25.1 354 24.0 15.3 99.8
Purchase Obligations............cecevverereerienenenienienienns 1.1 — — — 1.1
Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits................. 251.0 424 .4 412.1 6,195.0 7,282.5
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves ................ 454.7 248.4 67.7 72.7 843.5

Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long
Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet under GAAP.......cccocivvecnieineinrccneeene 37.2 58.8 10.7 — 106.7

Total Contractual Obligations .............ccecvevivverrerennenn. $ 773.8 $ 11,0213 $ 876.1 $ 6,283.0 $ 8,954.2

Amounts included in Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits within the contractual obligations table above represent the
estimated cash payments to be made to policyholders and beneficiaries. Such cash outflows are based on the Company’s current
assumptions for mortality, morbidity and policy lapse, but are undiscounted with respect to interest. Policies must remain in
force for the policyholder or beneficiary to receive the benefit under the policy. Depending on the terms of a particular policy,
future premiums from the policyholder may be required for the policy to remain in force. The Company estimates that future
cash inflows would total $4.1 billion using the same assumptions used to estimate the cash outflows. The Company’s Life
Insurance Reserves in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets are generally based on the historical assumptions for
mortality and policy lapse rates and are on a discounted basis. Accordingly, the sum of the amounts presented above for Life
and Health Insurance Policy Benefits significantly exceeds the amount of Life and Health Insurance Reserves reported on the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2013.

In addition to the purchase obligations included above, the Company had certain investment commitments totaling $192.7
million at December 31, 2013. The funding of such investment commitments is dependent on a number of factors, the timing of
which is indeterminate. The contractual obligations reported above also exclude the Company’s liability of $6.8 million for
unrecognized tax benefits. The Company cannot make a reasonably reliable estimate of the amount and period of related future
payments for such liability. Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet under GAAP primarily consist of interest obligations related to Long Term Debt Obligations.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Kemper’s subsidiaries conduct their businesses in two industries: property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance.
Accordingly, the Company is subject to several industry-specific accounting principles under GAAP. The preparation of
financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The process of estimation is inherently uncertain. Accordingly,
actual results could ultimately differ materially from the estimated amounts reported in a company’s financial statements.
Different assumptions are likely to result in different estimates of reported amounts. The Company’s critical accounting policies
most sensitive to estimates include the valuation of investments, the valuation of property and casualty insurance reserves for
losses and LAE, the assessment of recoverability of goodwill and the valuation of pension benefit obligations.

Valuation of Investments

The reported value of the Company’s investments was $6,151.3 million at December 31, 2013, of which $5,178.5 million, or
84%, was reported at fair value, $245.1 million, or 4%, was reported under the equity method of accounting, $275.4 million, or
5%, was reported at unpaid principal balance and $452.3 million, or 7%, was reported at cost or depreciated cost. Investments,
in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and overall market volatility risk. Accordingly, it is
reasonably possible that changes in the fair values of the Company’s investments reported at fair value will occur in the near
term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. Also, it is reasonably possible
that changes in the carrying values of the Company’s Equity Method Limited Liability Investments will occur in the near term
and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements because these issuers follow
specialized industry accounting rules which require that they report all of their investments at fair value (See Item 1A., “Risk
Factors” entitled “The Company’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may negatively impact net
investment income and cause realized and unrealized losses™).

As more fully described under the heading, “Fair Value Measurements,” in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company uses a hierarchal framework which prioritizes
and ranks the market observability used in fair value measurements.

The fair value of the Company’s investments measured and reported at fair value was $5,178.5 million at December 31, 2013,
of which $4,551.8 million, or 88%, were investments that were based on quoted market prices or significant value drivers that
are observable and $626.7 million, or 12%, were investments where at least one significant value driver was unobservable. Fair
value measurements based on readily available, active, quoted market prices or for which fair value can be measured from
actively quoted prices generally are deemed to have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of
judgment, compared to fair value measurements based on significant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value. The
prices that the Company might realize from actual sales of investments are likely to vary from their respective estimated fair
values at December 31, 2013 due to changing market conditions and limitations inherent in the estimation process.

The classification of a company’s investment in a financial instrument may affect its reported results. For investments classified
as trading, a company is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported. Both the reported
and fair value of the Company’s investments classified as trading were $5.0 million at December 31, 2013. For investments in
fixed maturities classified as held to maturity, a company is required to carry the investment at amortized cost, with only
amortization occurring during the period recognized into income. None of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities were
classified as held to maturity at December 31, 2013. Changes in the fair value of investments in fixed maturities classified as
available for sale, investments in equity securities classified as available for sale and an insurance entity’s investments in equity
securities without readily determinable fair values are not recognized to income during the period, but rather are recognized as a
separate component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income until realized. All of the Company’s investments in fixed
maturities were classified as available for sale at December 31, 2013. Except for investments accounted for under the equity
method of accounting or classified as trading, all of the Company’s investments in equity securities at December 31, 2013 are
reported at fair value with changes in fair value reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”) until
realized. The Company’s investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting consist of the Company’s
investments in Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and are valued at cost plus cumulative undistributed
comprehensive earnings or losses, and not at fair value.

Under GAAP, a company may elect to use the fair value option for some or all of its investments in financial instruments.
Under the fair value option, a company is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported.
The Company has not elected the fair value option for any of its investments in financial instruments. Had the Company elected
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the fair value option for all of its investments in financial instruments, the Company’s reported net income for the year ended
December 31, 2013, would have decreased by $233.6 million.

The Company regularly reviews its investments for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost or amortized cost is other than temporary. Such reviews are inherently uncertain in that the value of the
investment may not fully recover or may decline further in future periods.

Some factors considered for fixed maturity and equity securities in evaluating whether or not a decline in fair value is other than
temporary include, but are not limited to, the following:

Fixed Maturity Securities

»  The financial condition, credit rating and prospects of the issuer;

*  The extent to which the fair value has been less than amortized cost;

*  The ability of the issuer to make scheduled principal and interest payments;

*  The volatility of the investment;

*  Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

*  The Company’s intentions to sell or not to sell the investment; and

*  The Company’s determination of whether it will be required to sell the investment before a full recovery in value.

Equity Securities

*  The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;

*  The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

*  The volatility of the investment;

*  Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;

*  Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

*  Market liquidity;

*  Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and

»  The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

Changes in these factors from their December 31, 2013 evaluation date could result in the Company determining that a
temporary decline in the fair value of an investment held and evaluated at December 31, 2013 is no longer temporary at a
subsequent evaluation date. Such determination would result in an impairment loss recognized in earnings in the period such
determination is made.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability
for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid. The
Company had $843.5 million and $970.6 million of gross loss and LAE reserves at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for the Company’s business segments at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Business Segments:
KeMPET PIEferTed.. ... oveieeieiiieeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt se et ne st e e s enes $ 4128 § 4523
K OMPET SPECIAILY .....vetieeieiieiecti ettt ettt ettt ettt et et e st e et esbesbeeseesbesseeseeseessensesseessensessesseensans 196.4 215.9
K@IMPET DITECE ...ttt ettt ettt s b st e e s bt e st et e b e ebe e st enbesbesbeentenbesbeeneenes 133.4 177.8
Life and Health INSUANCE .......couiiueieiiiieieeceeee ettt ettt sttt eae e enes 53 7.0
Total BUSINESS SEZMENLS....c.eeuiiiirtieiieieteeiieeieste st etete e st eteetestestesseesbesbesteestensesseeseensesessesseensesesseensenss 747.9 853.0
DiSCONUNUEA OPEIALIONS ......vieutieiieiiestieeiieeteeteeteeteeteeseeteesseesseesseessaesssesssesssessseassessseassessseenseesseesseenses 83.0 100.7
UNAllocated RESEIVES .......cveuiiiirieiieiiitirieie ettt ettt sttt sttt b e bt ebe st naeneenen 12.6 16.9
Total Property and Casualty InSurance RESETVES..........ccccevimieiriniinieiiiniiniciecnieiceeceeseeeie e $ 8435 § 970.6
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In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain and the actual
ultimate net cost of known and unknown claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving
process is particularly imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging
and/or long-tailed exposures which may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended.
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s discontinued operations are predominantly long-tailed
exposures, $35.2 million of which was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at
December 31, 2013.

The Company’s actuaries generally estimate reserves at least quarterly for most product lines and/or coverage levels using
accident quarters or accident months spanning 10 or more years, depending on the size of the product line and/or coverage level
or emerging issues relating to them. The Company’s actuaries use a variety of generally accepted actuarial loss reserving
estimation methodologies, including, but not limited to, the following:

* Incurred Loss Development Methodology;

»  Paid Loss Development Methodology;

*  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Incurred Loss Methodology;
*  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Paid Loss Methodology; and
*  Frequency and Severity Methodology.

The Company’s actuaries generally review the results of at least four of the estimation methodologies, two based on paid data
and two based on incurred data, to initially estimate the ultimate losses and LAE for the current accident quarter and re-estimate
the ultimate losses and LAE for previous accident quarters to determine if changes in the previous estimates of the ultimate
losses and LAE are indicated by the most recent data. In some cases, the methodologies produce a cluster of estimates with a
tight band of indicated possible outcomes. In other cases, however, the methodologies produce conflicting results and wider
bands of indicated possible outcomes, and the Company’s actuaries perform additional analyses before making their final
selections. However, such bands do not necessarily constitute a range of outcomes, nor does the Company’s management or the
Company’s actuaries calculate a range of outcomes.

The key assumption in these estimation methodologies is that patterns observed in prior periods are indicative of how losses
and LAE are expected to develop in the future and that such historical data can be used to predict and estimate ultimate losses
and LAE. However, changes in the Company’s business processes, by their very nature, are likely to affect the development
patterns, which generally results in the historical development factors becoming less reliable over time in predicting how losses
and LAE will ultimately develop. The ultimate impact of a single change in a business process is difficult to quantify and
detect, and even more difficult if several changes to business processes occur over several years. Initially after a change is
implemented, there are fewer data points, as compared to the historical data, for the Company’s actuaries to analyze. With fewer
data points to analyze, the Company’s actuaries cannot be certain that observed differences from the historical data trends are a
result of the change in business process or merely a random fluctuation in the data. As the Company’s actuaries observe more
data points following the change in business process, the Company’s actuaries can gain more confidence in whether the change
in business process is affecting the development pattern. The challenge for the Company’s actuaries is how much weight to
place on the development patterns based on the older historical data and how much weight to place on the development patterns
based on more recent data.

At a minimum, the Company’s actuaries analyze 45 product and/or coverage levels for over 40 separate current and prior
accident quarters for both losses and LAE using many of the loss reserving estimation methodologies identified above as well
as other generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In all, there are over 10,000 combinations of accident quarters,
coverage levels, and generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies used to estimate the Company’s unpaid losses and
LAE. In some cases, the Company’s actuaries make adjustments to the loss reserving estimation methodologies identified
above or use additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies to estimate ultimate losses and LAE.

For each accident quarter, the point estimate selected by the Company’s actuaries is not necessarily one of the points produced
by any particular one of the methodologies utilized, but often is another point selected by the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, that takes into consideration each of the points produced by the several loss reserving estimation
methodologies used. In some cases, for a particular product, the current accident quarter may not have enough paid claims data
to rely upon, leading the Company’s actuaries to conclude that the incurred loss development methodology provides a better
estimate than the paid loss development methodology. Therefore, the Company’s actuaries may give more weight to the
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incurred loss development methodology for that particular accident quarter. As an accident quarter ages for that same product,
the actuary may gain more confidence in the paid loss development methodology and begin to give more weight to the paid loss
development methodology. The Company’s actuaries’ quarterly selections are summed by product and/or coverage levels to
create the actuarial indication of the ultimate losses. More often than not, the actuarial indication for a particular product line
and accident quarter is most heavily weighted towards the incurred loss development methodology, particularly for short-tail
lines such as personal automobile insurance. Historically, the incurred loss development methodology has been more reliable in
predicting ultimate losses for short-tail lines, especially in the more recent accident quarters, compared with the paid loss
development methodology. However, in some circumstances changes can occur which impact numerous variables, including,
but not limited to, those variables identified below that are difficult to quantify and/or impact the predictive value of prior
development patterns relied upon in the incurred loss development methodology and paid loss development methodology. In
those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries must make adjustments to these loss reserving estimation methodologies or use
additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, may place more weight on the adjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies or other generally
accepted actuarial estimation methodologies until the newer development patterns fully emerge and the Company’s actuaries
can fully rely on the unadjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies. In the event of a wide variation among results
generated by the different projection methodologies, the Company’s actuaries further analyze the data using additional
techniques.

In estimating reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many
variables that are difficult to quantify, such as:

*  Changes in the level of minimum case reserves, and the automatic aging of those minimum case reserves;

»  Changes to claims practices, including, but not limited to, changes in the reporting and impact of large losses, timing
of reported claims, adequacy of case reserves, implementation of new systems for handling claims, turnover of claims
department staffs, timing and depth of the audit review of claims handling procedures;

*  Changes in underwriting practices;

»  Changes in the mix of business by state, class and policy limit within product line;

e Growth in new lines of business;

»  Changes in the attachment points of the Company’s reinsurance programs;

*  Medical costs, including, but not limited to, the ability to assess the extent of injuries and the impact of inflation;

*  Repair costs, including, but not limited to, the impact of inflation and the availability of labor and materials;

*  Changes in the judicial environment, including, but not limited to, the interpretation of policy provisions, the impact of
jury awards and changes in case law; and

*  Changes in state regulatory requirements.

A change in any one or more of the foregoing factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate net loss and LAE that is different
from the previously estimated reserve and/or previous frequency and severity trends. Such changes in estimates may be
material.

For example, the Company’s actuaries review frequency (number of claims per policy or exposure), severity (dollars of loss per
claim) and average premium (dollars of premium per exposure). Actual frequency and severity experienced will vary depending
on changes in mix by class of insured risk. Similarly, the actual frequency and rate of recovery from reinsurance will vary
depending on changes in the attachment point for reinsurance. In particular, in periods of high growth or expansion into new
markets, there may be additional uncertainty in estimating the ultimate losses and LAE. The contributing factors of this
potential risk are changes in the Company’s mix by policy limit and mix of business by state or jurisdiction.

Actuaries use historical experience and trends as predictors of how losses and LAE will emerge over time. However, historical
experience may not necessarily be indicative of how actual losses and LAE will emerge. Changes in case reserve adequacy,
changes in minimum case reserves and changes in internal claims handling procedures could impact the timing and recognition
of incurred claims and produce an estimate that is either too high or too low if not adjusted for by the actuary. For example, if,
due to changes in claims handling procedures, actual claims are settled more rapidly than they were settled historically, the
estimate produced by the paid loss development methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and
adjust for the impact of the changes in claims handling procedures. Similarly, if, due to changes in claims handling procedures,
actual claim reserves are set at levels higher than past experience, the estimate produced by the incurred loss development
methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and adjust for the impact of the changes in claims
handling procedures.
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The final step in the quarterly loss and LAE reserving process involves a comprehensive review of the actuarial indications by
the Company’s corporate actuary and corporate management who apply their collective judgment and determine the appropriate
estimated level of reserves to record. Numerous factors are considered in this determination process, including, but not limited
to, the assessed reliability of key loss trends and assumptions that may be significantly influencing the current actuarial
indications, changes in claim handling practices or other changes that affect the timing of payment or development patterns,
changes in the mix of business, the maturity of the accident year, pertinent trends observed over the recent past, the level of
volatility within a particular line of business, the improvement or deterioration of actuarial indications in the current period as
compared to prior periods, and the amount of reserves related to third party pools for which the Company does not have access
to the underlying data and, accordingly, relies on calculations provided by such pools.

The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while sustaining minimal variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and
LAE are fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE over time, also referred to as
“development,” will occur and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated
Financial Statements when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase
in net income in the period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial
Statements when the Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in a decrease in net
income. The Company reported total favorable development of $64.6 million, $31.5 million and $33.1 million before tax for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Development for each of the Company’s continuing business
segments and Unitrin Business Insurance for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, was:

Favorable (Adverse) Development

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Continuing Operations:
Kemper Preferred ......c.oiiiiiiiiiiicieieeeeeteee ettt sbe e $ 275 § 48 $ 19.1
Kemper Specialty .... 4.9 2.3 9.4
KeMPET DITECL ...ttt 25.6 17.8 3.9
Life and Health INSUANCE .....c.co.iiviiiiieiiieiieceee e 1.8 0.3 2.6
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net........cccecevevireerieneneenn. 59.8 25.2 35.0
DiScontiNUEd OPEIAtIONS .......cecuierieiieeiieiieteeie et eseesteeseeeseeesstessseseressseesseasseesseeseeseenseenses 4.8 6.3 (1.9)
Total Favorable Development, NEt...........ccivieviviriiuiiiietiiereeceieteeeeeteeereee et $ 646 $ 315 $§ 331

Development in the Kemper Preferred segment comprised the largest portion of the Company’s development reported in
continuing operations in 2013 and 2011. Additional information regarding the Kemper Preferred development is discussed
below. Development in the Kemper Direct segment comprised a significant portion of the Company’s development in 2013 and
the largest portion of the Company’s development reported in 2012. Kemper Direct’s operations have undergone significant
changes, including changes in underwriting, claims handling and mix of business by state and distribution channel, over the last
several years. The effect of these and other changes on the historical development factors used to estimate Kemper Direct’s loss
and LAE reserves is difficult to quantify and predict. Development in the Life and Health Insurance segment in 2011 is due
primarily to development on certain hurricanes. See MD&A, “Life and Health Insurance.”

In 2008, the Company sold its Unitrin Business Insurance operations. The Company retained Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves for unpaid insured losses that occurred prior to June 1, 2008, the effective date of the sale. Development in Unitrin
Business Insurance comprised all of the Company’s development reported in discontinued operations.

Estimated Variability of Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves

Although development will emerge in all of the Company’s product lines, development in Kemper Preferred segment’s personal
automobile insurance product line could have the most significant impact due to the relative size of its loss and LAE reserves.
To further illustrate the sensitivity of Kemper Preferred segment’s reserves for automobile insurance losses and LAE to changes
in the cumulative development factors, for each quarterly evaluation point the Company’s actuaries calculated the variability of
cumulative development factors observed in the incurred loss development methodology using one standard deviation. The
Company believes that one standard deviation of variability is a reasonably likely scenario to measure variability for its loss and
LAE reserves under the incurred development method for automobile insurance. Assuming that the Kemper Preferred
segment’s automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves were based solely on the incurred loss development methodology and
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the variability in the cumulative development factors occurred within one standard deviation, the Company estimates that
Kemper Preferred’s automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves could have varied by $32.4 million in either direction at
December 31, 2013 for all accident years combined under this scenario. In addition to the factors described above, other factors
may also impact loss reserve development in future periods. These factors include governmental actions, including court
decisions interpreting existing laws, regulations or policy provisions, developments related to insurance policy claims and
coverage issues, adverse or favorable outcomes in pending claims litigation, the number and severity of insurance claims, the
impact of inflation on insurance claims and the impact of required participation in windpools and joint underwriting
associations and residual market assessments. Although the Company’s actuaries do not make specific numerical assumptions
about these factors, changes in these factors from past patterns will impact historical loss development factors and, in turn,
future loss reserve development. Significant favorable changes in one or more factors will lead to favorable future loss reserve
development, which could result in the actual loss developing closer to, or even below, the lower end of the Company’s
estimated reserve variability. Significant unfavorable changes in one or more factors will lead to unfavorable loss reserve
development, which could result in the actual loss developing closer to, or even above, the higher end of the Company’s
estimated reserve variability. Accordingly, due to these factors and the other factors enumerated throughout the MD&A and the
inherent limitations of the loss reserving estimation methodologies, the estimated and illustrated reserve variability may not
necessarily be indicative of the Company’s future reserve variability, which could ultimately be greater than the estimated and
illustrated variability. In addition, as previously noted, development will emerge in all of the Company’s product lines over
time. Accordingly, the Company’s future reserve variability could ultimately be greater than the illustrated variability.

Additional information pertaining to the estimation of, and development of, the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves is contained in Item 1 of Part I of this 2013 Annual Report under the heading “Property and Casualty Loss and Loss
Adjustment Expense Reserves.”

Goodwill Recoverability

While the Company believes that none of its reporting units with material Goodwill are at risk of failing step one of the
goodwill impairment test, the process of determining whether or not an asset, such as Goodwill, is impaired or recoverable
relies on projections of future cash flows, operating results and market conditions. Such projections are inherently uncertain
and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ materially from projected cash flows. In evaluating the recoverability of
Goodwill, the Company performs a discounted cash flow analysis for each of the Company’s reporting units carrying Goodwill.
The discounted cash value may be different from the fair value that would result from an actual transaction between a willing
buyer and a willing seller. Such analyses are particularly sensitive to changes in discount rates and investment rates. Changes to
these rates might result in material changes in the valuation and determination of the recoverability of Goodwill. For example,
an increase in the rate used to discount cash flows will decrease the discounted cash value. There is likely to be a similar, but
not necessarily as large as, increase in the investment rate used to project the cash flows resulting from investment income
earned on the Company’s investments. Accordingly, an increase in the investment rate would increase the discounted cash
value.

Pension Benefit Obligations

The process of estimating the Company’s pension benefit obligations and pension benefit costs is inherently uncertain and the
actual cost of benefits may vary materially from the estimates recorded. These liabilities are particularly volatile due to their
long-term nature and are based on several assumptions. The main assumptions used in the valuation of the Company’s pension
benefit obligations are:

»  Estimated mortality of the participants and beneficiaries eligible for benefits;

»  Estimated expected long-term rates of returns on investments;

»  Estimated compensation increases;

»  Estimated employee turnover; and

»  Estimated rate used to discount the expected benefit payment to a present value.
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A change in any one or more of these assumptions is likely to result in present value of expected benefit payments to differ
from the actuarial estimate at December 31, 2013. Such changes in estimates may be material. For example, a one—percentage
point decrease in the Company’s estimated discount rate would increase the pension benefit obligation at December 31, 2013 by
$72.7 million, while a one—percentage point increase in the rate would decrease the pension benefit obligation at December 31,
2013 by $59.1 million. A one—percentage point decrease in the Company’s estimated long-term rate of return on plan assets
would increase the pension expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 by $4.2 million, while a one—percentage point
increase in the rate would decrease pension expense by $4.2 million for the same period.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Except for rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws and a limited number of
grandfathered standards, the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) is the sole source of authoritative GAAP
recognized by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) that is applicable to the Company. The FASB issues
Accounting Standards Updates (“ASUs”) to amend the authoritative literature in ASC.

Changes in accounting standards that are most critical or relevant to the Company are discussed in Note 2, “Summary of
Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements under the headings “Adoption of New
Accounting Standards” and “Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted.” The accounting changes discussed are as follows:

*  ASU 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
* ASU 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax
Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists.

There were ten other ASUs issued in 2013 that amend the original text of ASC. These ASU’s are not expected to have an
impact on the Company. There have been five ASUs issued in 2014 that amend the original text of ASC. These ASU’s are not
expected to have an impact on the Company.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Quantitative Information About Market Risk

The Company’s consolidated balance sheets include three types of financial instruments subject to the material market risk
disclosures required by the SEC:

1. Investments in Fixed Maturities;
2. Investments in Equity Securities and;
3. Notes Payable.

Investments in Fixed Maturities and Notes Payable are subject to material interest rate risk. The Company’s Investments in
Equity Securities include common and preferred stocks and, accordingly, are subject to material equity price risk and interest
rate risk, respectively.

For purposes of this disclosure, market risk sensitive financial instruments are divided into two categories: financial instruments
acquired for trading purposes and financial instruments acquired for purposes other than trading. The Company’s market risk
sensitive financial instruments are generally classified as held for purposes other than trading. The Company has no significant
holdings of financial instruments acquired for trading purposes. The Company has no significant holdings of derivatives.

The Company measures its sensitivity to market risk by evaluating the change in its financial assets and liabilities relative to
fluctuations in interest rates and equity prices. The evaluation is made using instantaneous changes in interest rates and equity
prices on a static balance sheet to determine the effect such changes would have on the Company’s fair value at risk and the
resulting pre-tax effect on Shareholders’ Equity. The changes chosen represent the Company’s view of adverse changes which
are reasonably possible over a one-year period. The selection of the changes chosen should not be construed as the Company’s
prediction of future market events, but rather an illustration of the impact of such events.

For the interest rate sensitivity analysis presented below, the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100—
basis points in the yield curve at both December 31, 2013 and 2012 for Investments in Fixed Maturities. Such 100-basis point
increase in the yield curve may not necessarily result in a corresponding 100-basis point increase in the interest rate for all
investments in fixed maturities. For example, a 100—basis point increase in the yield curve for risk-free, taxable investments in
fixed maturities may not result in a 100-basis point increase for tax-exempt investments in fixed maturities. For Investments in
Fixed Maturities, the Company also anticipated changes in cash flows due to changes in the likelihood that investments would
be called or prepaid prior to their contractual maturity. All other variables were held constant. For preferred stock equity
securities, the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100—basis points in market interest rates from their
levels at both December 31, 2013 and 2012. All other variables were held constant. For Notes Payable, the Company assumed
an adverse and instantaneous decrease of 100-basis points in market interest rates from their levels at December 31, 2013 and
2012. All other variables were held constant. The Company measured equity price sensitivity assuming an adverse and
instantaneous 30% decrease in the Standard and Poor’s Stock Index (the “S&P 500”) from its level at December 31, 2013 and
2012, with all other variables held constant. The Company’s investments in common stock equity securities were correlated
with the S&P 500 using the portfolio’s weighted-average beta of 0.94 and 0.91 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The portfolio’s weighted-average beta was calculated using each security’s beta for the five-year periods ended December 31,
2013 and 2012, and weighted on the fair value of such securities at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. For equity
securities without observable market inputs, the Company assumed a beta of 1.00 at December 31, 2013 and 2012. Beta
measures a stock’s relative volatility in relation to the rest of the stock market, with the S&P 500 having a beta coefficient of
1.00.
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The estimated adverse effects on the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2013 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)

Interest Equity Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk Market Risk
ASSETS
Investments in Fixed Maturities. ...........ccoooeeeeeeieeieeee et $ 45750 $ (300.0) $ — $ (300.0)
Investments in EQUity SECUTLIES.........ccecverieriieierienienieieiese e 598.5 (13.0) (119.7) (132.7)
LIABILITIES
NOLES PAYabIE.......vcviieiiiiciieiictieeceeeee et $ 6671 $ 174 $ — 3 17.4

The estimated adverse effects on the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2012 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)

Interest Equity Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk Market Risk
ASSETS
Investments in Fixed Maturities...........coovevveiererieieenreieeeeseeeeeere e $ 4860.2 $ (334.0) $ — $ (334.0)
Investments in EqQUity SECUIItIES.........cecveriiriirieieniirieieiereeeeee e 521.9 (19.0) (82.3) (101.3)
LIABILITIES
NOLES PAYADIE. ......cvcviieviiieieiiietceceeetetee ettt $ 6755 3% 231 $ — 23.1

The market risk sensitivity analysis assumes that the composition of the Company’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities,
including, but not limited to, credit quality, and the equity price sensitive assets existing at the beginning of the period remains
constant over the period being measured. It also assumes that a particular change in interest rates is uniform across the yield
curve regardless of the time to maturity. Interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of
changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes in market rates. Also, any future
correlation, either in the near term or the long term, between the Company’s common stock equity securities portfolio and the
S&P 500 may differ from the historical correlation as represented by the weighted-average historical beta of the common stock
equity securities portfolio. Accordingly, the market risk sensitivity analysis may not be indicative of, is not intended to provide,
and does not provide, a precise forecast of the effect of changes of market rates on the Company’s income or shareholders’
equity. Further, the computations do not contemplate any actions the Company may undertake in response to changes in interest
rates or equity prices.

To the extent that any adverse 100—basis point change occurs in increments over a period of time instead of instantaneously, the
adverse impact on fair values would be partially mitigated because some of the underlying financial instruments would have
matured. For example, proceeds from any maturing assets could be reinvested and any new liabilities would be incurred at the
then current interest rates.

Qualitative Information About Market Risk

Market risk is a broad term related to economic losses due to adverse changes in the fair value of a financial instrument and is
inherent to all financial instruments. SEC disclosure rules focus on only one element of market risk—price risk. Price risk
relates to changes in the level of prices due to changes in interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates or other factors
that relate to market volatility of the rate, index, or price underlying the financial instrument. The Company’s primary market
risk exposures are to changes in interest rates and equity prices.

The Company manages its interest rate exposures with respect to Investments in Fixed Maturities by investing primarily in
investment-grade securities of moderate effective duration.

65



Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
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Note 12—Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income..........c.cccccvveeeenenn.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2013 2012
Assets:
Investments:
Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Amortized Cost: 2013 - $4,370.5; 2012 - $4,283.8)................ $ 45750 $ 4,860.2
Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2013 - $530.0; 2012 - $462.7).....ccoceeieeenireieieee 598.5 521.9
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative Undistributed
BAITUINEZS ...ttt ettt ettt et e b et e e bt esb e beebeesbesbesaeesaessebeeseestenbeebeeseenbebeereenaans 245.1 253.0
Short-term Investments at Cost which Approximates Fair Value.............cccccevveverviecienenennennn. 284.7 327.5
Other INVESTMENES .....ceuveiiiiieiieieitieitetese ettt sttt s b et e b e beese e st ensesbesseentensesbeeneenes 448.0 497.5
TOtAl INVESTIMEITS. .....oeiiviiiieiie ettt ee e et e et e e et e e e aeeeeaaeesteeesaaeesssaeesnsseesnaeesnnneeanaeesnes 6,151.3 6,460.1
(7 1] E USRS PTRR 66.5 96.3
Receivables from POLCYNOIAETS .........ccocoviiiiiiiiiiieeiececcie ettt 331.6 369.3
Other RECEIVADIES .......cciiiiiieiiciecie sttt ettt ettt ste s e b e s e eseeseessesseeseessensesseessenes 193.1 206.1
Deferred Policy ACqUiSitION COSES.......ueruiriirierierienieeeieieriestteetetesiesreesaessessesseesessessesseensesessesssenes 302.9 303.4
GOOAWIIL ...ttt ettt ettt et et e bt e st e b e e beeteeabesbeeteessesbabeessessessesseeteessessesreessenns 311.8 311.8
Current and Deferred INCOME TaX ASSEIS......ccecveruereeieiieriestieieiestesreeseessesseessesessessesseessessessesssenes 31.8 54
OLHET ASSEES ...euveutetietieiteteete ettt st e et et e bt s bt et et et e et e estenbe et e eseentebesbeestenbeseeseentenbesseeseensensessesneenes 267.4 256.7
TOTAL AASSEES. ...ttt ettt ettt e e et e et et et eea e e ea e e st e s et e e e e sae e aeeetteeaee et e e st estesteeteseaeenean $ 7,656.4 $ 8,009.1
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Insurance Reserves:
Life and HEAItN «...o..ooveieee et $ 32175 § 3,161.6
Property and CaSUALLY ........cceecveriiriieieieieeeeeetete sttt ettt st e sbeete et ebesbeeseensensesreennens 843.5 970.6
Total INSUIANCE RESEIVES ......coiuviiieiieieie ettt e e e et e et e e et e e eeateeseatessaaeesaneesaeessaseesneesns 4,061.0 4,132.2
UNEArned PrEmMIUMS.........ccviviiiieiiitiiieieiesie ettt ettt ettt et sbestesteesaessessaeseessesasseessensessesssessans 598.9 650.9
Liabilities fOr INCOME TaAXES .....cc.eruiiirieriiriieieieiesteetetee sttt sttt be et ebesaeeseenaebesbeeneenes 83 21.5
Notes Payable at Amortized Cost (Fair Value: 2013 - $667.1; 2012 - $675.5)......ccocevveeeicrennne. 606.9 611.4
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities........cc.ccvevierieieiienienieieiesieeeeiesiesie e seesse e eeese e sreesnens 329.8 431.4
TOtAl LAADILILIES .....ecveveeieiieieieecetiete ettt ettt ettt sbe s eseesesse s eseese b esseseesesenaeseesesseneesenns 5,604.9 5,847.4
Shareholders’ Equity:
Common Stock, $0.10 Par Value Per Share, 100 Million Shares Authorized; 55,653,437
Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 58,454,390 Shares Issued and
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 .......ccoeviivieieieieieeieieie ettt ennens 5.6 5.8
Paid-in CaPItAl .....ooviiiiieieiceee ettt b bt n s e e eneenas 694.8 725.0
Retained Earnings ........c.coivieieiiiiiicieiesieeeetetesie sttt sttt s teesaeae st e eseessessesaeessessessessaesnens 1,215.8 1,118.2
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME.........coeveriiiiiierienienieeeeeeeee e 135.3 312.7
Total Shareholders’ EQUILY........ccooiiiiieriiiiieieieieeteettet ettt ettt sve et eb et as s e s e eaeeteessesesreessenns 2,051.5 2,161.7
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ EQUItY........cccceeieierierierieieiesie ettt eenens $ 7,656.4 $ 8,009.1

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

For The Years Ended December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2013 2012 2011
Revenues:
Earned PremIUmIS. ........ccvoiiviiiiiieiiieciie ettt st e e eaaeeeaeeesaeeeeneas $2,025.8 $2107.1 $2173.6
Net Investment INCOME...........coueiiiriniiiiininiiencecrece et 314.7 295.9 298.0
Other INCOME ......eeeuiiiiceieieieeeetet ettt ettt e st e te et e sbeeseesaebesseeseessebesreessans 0.8 0.8 1.0
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENES ........cc.evueieiriinieieinineeeeeeee e 99.1 65.4 33.7
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment LOSSeS..........cccervereeierieneeierienieeeeveie e (15.8) (7.2) (11.4)
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.........c.ccoeoeeeveneenene. 1.9 0.3 0.1
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........cccccvevevieviieeeievienieeeeieie e (13.9) (6.9) (11.3)
TOtAl REVEIUES ....c.eetiiiieieitee ettt ettt sttt ea et b e ea e ene s 2,426.5 2,462.3 2,495.0
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses................. 1,357.2 1,582.1 1,645.7
INSUraNCe EXPENSES. ... .eeiuiieiieiieitieeiie ettt ettt et e 654.4 672.3 683.6
Write-off of Intangibles ACQUITed............c.eeevieiieiiieiiiiiiecieeeieeeee e — — 13.5
Interest and Other EXPENSEs .......ccocieievieriiriieiieieiie sttt sn b s 100.5 85.5 83.9
TOtAl EXPEINISES....cvieuieiiitieeieieitieeeetete sttt et e steste st essestesttessessesseeseensensaeseessensansesseessensesseesnens 2,112.1 2,339.9 2,426.7
Income from Continuing Operations before Income TaXes .........cccevererierieneneesieneneenns 314.4 122.4 68.3
INCOME TaX EXPEINSE.....ccuiieiiiiiieeieiieiesieeteeteste ettt et et ettt et e steesaessesseeseessessassesssessesesreesaans 99.9) (30.6) (6.6)
Income from Continuing OPEratioNS..........ecuerveruireerierierierierieseetesiesteeeetessessesseesessesseenens 214.5 91.8 61.7
Income from Discontinued OPErations .............ceeceevveirieierienreiteeeesiesreeeeeesseereereesesreereesnens 3.2 11.6 12.8
INEE TIICOIMIE ..ottt sttt b e ettt e s be b e neeneeneas $ 2177 $§ 1034 $§ 745
Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share: -
BASIC .ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt n et et e et ettt et ae e enenenas $ 375 §$ 155 $ 1.02
DHIULEA .o $ 374 § 154 § 102
Net Income Per Unrestricted Share: -
BASIC .ttt ettt ettt ettt e et et et ae et et e e te et ean et teeetennnas $ 381 $ 175 $§ 1.23
DHIUEA e $ 38 S 174 $ 123
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share .............ccoceeriiriniririeieieieeesieieee e $ 09 $ 09 $ 096

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For The Years Ended December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011

NEEITICOMIE ... ettt ettt e e et e e e s e saae e e e e eaeeeteeeaeesaeesaeesnesnesaeens $ 2177 $ 1034 $ 745

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes:

Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES) ......ccveviiruiriieieriiitieeiesieiteeteesiesiesteeseesessesreessessesseeseesnas (362.8) 96.7 201.2

Foreign Currency Translation AdjUStMENTS.........ccevvirvieierierieeieiesieeeeeesiesieseeerese e eenens 0.2 1.6 0.4

Decrease (Increase) in Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs...........cccoeveneeene.. 86.6 (13.2) (45.2)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes........cccceveeeecienienineecienieieennns (276.0) 85.1 156.4
Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (EXPense).........cccveeeevevienieeeeiienienenieienie s 98.6 (30.4) (55.8)
Other Comprehensive INCOME (LLOSS)......cuevueruirrieieiiiiticeieteete et et ve et s v e esseeve e esnens 177.4) 54.7 100.6
Total Comprehensive INCOME.........c.ccveviiiveeiieeeeieeeeceee ettt aees $ 403 $ 1581 $ 175.1

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For The Years Ended December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Operating Activities:
NEE INCOMIE <.ttt ettt a ettt s et e e esesenas $ 2177 $ 1034 § 745
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:
Decrease (Increase) in Deferred Policy Acquisition COstS.........c.eeevvvveeieeeieeceeerieeieennenn 0.5 9.4) (7.8)
Amortization of Life VIF and P&C Customer Relationships ...........ccccevvevercveneniniennnne 8.3 8.0 11.4
Impairment of P&C Customer Relationships........c.ccceeevieeiieriieiienienieciece e — — 13.5
Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments............c.cccccevvnen. (26.4) 9.3) 9.6)
Distribution of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability
INVESTMENLS ...ttt s s e 15.4 154 —
Amortization of Investment Securities and Depreciation of Investment Real Estate ..... 16.2 15.2 16.0
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENES ...........cecveriereeierienieeeeeeiee e 99.1) (65.4) (34.1)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings..........cocoeeveevieneneniienienienencenenieneenen 13.9 6.9 11.3
Gain on Sale of Portfolio of Automobile Loan Receivables...........ccocevevirienienrnerennene. — (12.9) 4.5)
Benefit fOr Loan LOSSES.......ccueiiiriiiieiieeie et eie ettt et e saeseaeesaeessesbeenseenseenseas — (2.0) (42.0)
Depreciation of Property and EQUIPMENt ........ccoeveveriiriiiieiieiineeceieie e 17.4 15.3 10.9
Decrease (Increase) in Other Receivables.........cccooivieriiriinieiieienenieieeneseeneeene 43.5 13.9 0.2)
Decrease in INSUrance RESETVES ......c.evuiruieieiienienieieiesie ettt st (72.5) (1.1) (52.1)
Decrease in Unearned Premitms..........cccooereeieniiiinienieniineeteesesicete et (52.0) (15.2) (12.4)
Change 1N INCOME TAXES......ccueruirieieieieeteeieierie st eteste et etessesreeseesaesesseeseensessesseensenes 57.9 (14.9) 17.2
Decrease in Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities. ........ccceovevvereririienenenieneneneenne (54.8) (15.6) (47.5)
ORET, INET ...ttt sttt ettt ettt et be e 36.1 334 30.4
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating ACHVILIES ....c..evveeveriiriirieienienieeieieniesicecesie s 122.1 65.7 (25.0)
Investing Activities:
Sales, Paydowns and Maturities of Fixed Maturities ..........c.ccoeeveerenienieirenieneeeneneeeene. 664.4 914.4 650.3
Purchases of FiXed Maturities ........cceeverierierieieienieciceeeie ettt sae s s ense st seeeneenns (744.5) (872.6) (663.4)
Sales Of EQUILY SECUTTEIES.....cueruertirieiiriieiieierie sttt ettt ettt st e enee 182.1 70.8 248.3
Purchases of EQUItY SECUTTHIES ....cvevvieieieriiitieiieieie ettt sttt ste et saeeseseeessenteseeeneenns (213.4) (137.7) (199.2)
Acquisition and Improvements of Investment Real Estate ...........ccccoceevieveneniniienencneenns 5.4) (5.5) (6.4)
Sales of Investment Real EState .........cccooeiririinieiiiiieeeee e 102.7 6.0 0.3
Sales of and Return of Investment of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments......... 31.3 56.0 57.0
Acquisitions of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments ...........cccceveeeeceerieneneennenn. (20.5) (31.0) (25.7)
Decrease (Increase) in Short-term INVEStMENLtS ..........ceeevieiiieiiiiieiiieie e 41.8 (80.0) 155.5
Receipts from Automobile Loan Receivables..........ccvevvevieriiierienienieieiesieeeee e — 2.0 166.5
Net Proceeds from Sale of Portfolio of Automobile Loan Receivables.............ccccecenveueenee. — 16.7 220.7
Disposition of Business, Net of Cash DiSpoSed.........ccccveviiiieierienieieieieneeeeeeiese e 3.8 — —
Increase in Other INVESTMENTS .......ccuiiiiiiiiieiieii ettt et a e aeebeebeebeesreeseeeees “.1) (12.4) (15.6)
ACQUISTHON OF SOFEWATE ....o.viiiieieiiciieeeeeeeee et (15.2) (26.5) (23.2)
OET, NET ...ttt ettt ettt ettt a ettt eae e neenes (13.2) (6.4) (0.5)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by INVESting ACHVILIES .....ccvvveeeieriiiiieieiesieseeeeiesieeeeevesse e esaennens 4.8 (106.2) 564.6
Financing Activities:
Repayments of Certificates 0f DEPOSIES ....ccueereiiieeriieiieieerieee e — — (321.8)
Proceeds from Issuance of Notes Payable..........cccoocivieierininienienienceieeeseeeeee e — — 95.0
Repayments 0f NOtes Payable.........ccceveieriiriieieieiecieiee ettt (5.5) — (95.0)
Common StOCK REPUICRASES . ......ccuivuieiieieiiriieiieieiesieeee et s (100.4) (60.7) 27.4)
Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders ..........ccoccvevieriiiecieniiiicieiese e (54.9) (56.9) (58.2)
Cash EXercise of StOCK OPiONS ........ceveieriirtirieienienieeiete ettt sttt sttt seeeneenes 1.7 1.3 0.2
Excess Tax Benefits from Share-based Awards..........ccccooveririenieninininiinennceneeeenn 1.3 0.5 0.2
OFREE, NET ..ttt e et e e et e e eeteeeeaaeeeteeeeteeeeaseeenveeeeaseesreeennns 1.1 1.4 1.4
Net Cash Used by FINancing ACHIVILIES .....c.eecueeruierieriesieeieeieeeeeieeieesee e seee e seeeenseenseenneas (156.7) (114.4) (405.6)
Increase (Decrease) iN CaSh ......cc.ivieieierieeieieecetee ettt st sttt s (29.8) (154.9) 134.0
Cash, BegINning Of Y@aT........cccieiiiriiiieeie ettt ettt st sae e et e eseesseensaenns 96.3 251.2 117.2
Cash, BN OF YEATL......c.oooviiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt eae s $ 665 $ 963 § 2512

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

For The Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Accumulated

DOLLARS AND SHARES IN Number Other Total
MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE of Common Paid-in  Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
AMOUNTS Shares Stock Capital  Earnings Income Equity
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2010 ........................ 61.1 $ 6.1 §$ 751.1 $ 1,1085 $ 1574 3 2,023.1
Net INCOME ..o — — 74.5 — 74.5
Other Comprehensive Income (note 12) .................... — — — 100.6 100.6
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.96 per share) .... — — (58.2) — (58.2)
Repurchases of Common Stock .......c.cccceveecrcnnnenne. 0.9) 0.1) (11.6) (15.7) — (27.4)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (note 9)................. — 53 — — 53
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(NOTE D) ettt 0.1 — (0.9) (0.4) — (1.3)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2011 ........................ 603 § 60 $ 7439 §$ 1,108.7 $ 2580 $ 2,116.6
Net INCOME .....ovviiiiiiiiicirccrccee e — — 103.4 — 103.4
Other Comprehensive Income (note 12) .................... — — — — 54.7 54.7
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.96 per share) .... — — (56.9) — (56.9)
Repurchases of Common Stock .........ccccceveereinnencne. (2.0) 0.2) (24.9) (35.6) — (60.7)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (note 9)................. — 5.8 — — 5.8
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(DIOT€ 9) oo 0.2 — 0.2 (1.4) — (1.2)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2012 ........................ 585 § 58 $§ 7250 $ 1,1182 $ 3127 $ 2,161.7
Net INCOME ....cooviiiiiiiiicceece — — — 217.7 — 217.7
Other Comprehensive Loss (note 12)........cccccevnenene. — — — — 177.4) 177.4)
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.96 per share) .... — — — (54.9) — (54.9)
Repurchases of Common Stock ..........ccceoeveinceniencne 3.0) 0.2) (36.8) (63.4) — (100.4)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (note 9)................. — — 5.5 — — 5.5
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(O D) et 0.2 — 1.1 (1.8) — 0.7)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2013 ........................ 55.7 § 56 $ 6948 $ 12158 § 1353 8§ 2,051.5

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES

The Consolidated Financial Statements included herein have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of Kemper Corporation (“Kemper”) and its subsidiaries
(individually and collectively referred to herein as the “Company”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could materially differ from
those estimates and assumptions.

The fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities, Investments in Equity Securities, Short-term Investments,
Trading Securities and Notes Payable are estimated using a hierarchal framework which prioritizes and ranks market price
observability. The carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets approximate fair value for Cash, Short-term
Investments and certain other assets and other liabilities because of their short-term nature. The actual value at which financial
instruments could actually be sold or settled with a willing buyer or seller may differ from estimated fair values depending on a
number of factors, including, but not limited to, current and future economic conditions, the quantity sold or settled, the
presence of an active market and the availability of a willing buyer or seller.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for losses and LAE for property and casualty insurance is inherently
uncertain and the actual ultimate net cost of known and unknown claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts
reserved. The reserving process is particularly imprecise for claims involving long-tailed exposures, which may not be
discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Management considers a variety of factors,
including, but not limited to, past claims experience, current claim trends and relevant legal, economic and social conditions, in
estimating reserves. A change in any one or more factors is likely to result in the ultimate net claim costs to differ from the
estimated reserve. Changes in such estimates may be material and would be recognized in the Consolidated Financial
Statements when such estimates change.

The process of determining whether an asset is impaired or recoverable relies on projections of future cash flows, operating
results and market conditions. Projections are inherently uncertain and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ
materially from projected cash flows. As a result, the Company’s assessment of the impairment of long-lived assets is
susceptible to the risk inherent in making such projections.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES
Investments

Investments in Fixed Maturities include bonds, notes and redeemable preferred stocks. Investments in Fixed Maturities are
classified as available for sale and reported at fair value. Net Investment Income, including amortization of purchased
premiums and accretion of market discounts, on Investments in Fixed Maturities is recognized as interest earned using the
effective yield method.

Investments in Equity Securities include common and non-redeemable preferred stocks and other equity interests and are
reported at fair value. Investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks with readily determinable fair values are
classified as available for sale. Dividend income on investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks is recognized
on the ex-dividend date. Other equity interests primarily consist of exchange traded funds and interests in limited liability
companies and limited partnerships in which the Company’s interests are deemed minor. The Company’s share of distributed
earnings from other equity interests is recognized as dividend income when received.

Unrealized appreciation or depreciation, net of applicable deferred income taxes, on fixed maturities and equity securities is
reported in AOCI included in Shareholders’ Equity.

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments include investments in limited liability investment companies and limited
partnerships in which the Company’s interests are not deemed minor and are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

Short-term Investments include fixed maturities that mature within one year from the date of purchase, U.S. Treasury bills,
money market mutual funds and repurchase agreements. Short-term Investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair
value.

Other Investments primarily include loans to policyholders and real estate. Loans to policyholders are carried at unpaid
principal balance. Real estate is carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Real estate is depreciated over the estimated
useful life of the asset using the straight-line method of depreciation. Real estate is evaluated for impairment when events or
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment on real estate is recognized when the
carrying value exceeds the sum of undiscounted projected future cash flows.

Gains and losses on sales of investments are computed on the specific identification method and are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period in which the sales occur. The Company regularly reviews its investment
portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment is other than temporary. Losses are computed
on the specific identification method and reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the decline is
determined to be other than temporary. The portion of an impairment of an investment in a fixed maturity attributed to a credit
loss is reported in Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings in the Consolidated Statement of Income, with the portion of
the impairment that is not attributed to a credit loss reported in AOCI.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a hierarchal framework which prioritizes and ranks the market observability of inputs used in fair value
measurements. Market price observability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of asset or liability and the
characteristics specific to the asset or liability being measured. Assets and liabilities with readily available, active, quoted
market prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally are deemed to have a higher degree
of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. The Company classifies the inputs
used to measure fair value into one of three levels as follows:

* Level 1 — Quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilities;

* Level 2— Observable inputs other than Level 1, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, and model-derived prices whose
inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable; and

* Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability being measured.

Observable inputs are based on market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs are based on the
Company’s market assumptions. Unobservable inputs require significant management judgment or estimation. In some cases,
the inputs used to measure an asset or liability may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair
value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level of input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Such determination requires significant management judgment. In accordance with
GAAP, the Company is not permitted to adjust quoted market prices in an active market.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs directly associated with the successful acquisition of business, principally commissions and certain premium taxes and
policy issuance costs, are deferred. Costs deferred on property and casualty insurance contracts and short duration health
insurance contracts are amortized over the period in which premiums are earned. Costs deferred on traditional life insurance
products and other long-duration insurance contracts are primarily amortized over the anticipated premium-paying period of the
related policies in proportion to the ratio of the annual premiums to the total premiums anticipated, which is estimated using the
same assumptions used in calculating policy reserves.

Goodwill

The cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of net assets acquired is reported as Goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized, but
rather is tested annually for recoverability or when certain triggering events require testing.
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Insurance Reserves

Reserves for losses and LAE on property and casualty insurance coverage and health insurance coverage represent the
estimated claim cost and loss adjustment expense necessary to cover the ultimate net cost of investigating and settling all losses
incurred and unpaid. Such estimates are based on individual case estimates for reported claims and estimates for incurred but
not reported losses. These estimates are adjusted in the aggregate for ultimate loss expectations based on historical experience
patterns and current economic trends, with any change in the estimated ultimate liabilities being reported in the Consolidated
Statements of Income in the period of change. Changes in such estimates may be material.

For traditional life insurance products, the reserves for future policy benefits are estimated on the net level premium method
based on rates for expected mortality, lapse rates and interest rates, including provisions for adverse mortality. These
assumptions vary by such characteristics as plan, age at issue and policy duration. Mortality assumptions are based on the
Company’s historical experience and industry standards. Interest rate assumptions principally range from 3% to 7%. Lapse rate
assumptions are based on actual and industry experience.

Other Receivables
Other Receivables primarily include reinsurance recoverables and accrued investment income.
Other Assets

Other Assets primarily include property and equipment, internal use software, insurance licenses acquired in business
combinations, the value of other intangible assets acquired and prepaid expenses. Property and equipment is depreciated over
the useful lives of the assets, generally using the straight-line or double declining balance methods of depreciation depending on
the asset involved. Internal use software is primarily amortized over the useful life of the asset using the straight-line method of
amortization. Insurance licenses acquired in business combinations and other indefinite life intangibles are not amortized, but
rather tested periodically for recoverability. Insurance Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 includes a charge of
$1.4 million to write down the value of insurance licenses acquired for one of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to its estimated
fair value.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in life insurance in force acquired (“Life VIF”)
based on actuarial estimates of the present value of estimated net cash flows. Life VIF was $41.2 million and $46.4 million at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Life VIF is amortized using the effective interest method using interest rates
consistent with the rates in the underlying insurance contracts. The Company estimates that it will record Life VIF amortization,
net of interest, of $4.6 million in 2014, $4.2 million in 2015, $3.7 million in 2016, $3.2 million in 2017 and $2.9 million in
2018. The Company evaluates the Life VIF for recoverability annually.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in Property and Casualty Insurance Customer
Relationships Acquired (“P&C Customer Relationships™) based on the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
customer relationships acquired. P&C Customer Relationships was $15.8 million and $18.7 million at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively. P&C Customer Relationships is amortized using the effective interest method. P&C Customer Relationships
is tested for recoverability using undiscounted projections of future cash flows and written down to estimated fair value if the
carrying value exceeds the sum of such projections of undiscounted cash flows. The Company recorded a loss of $13.5 million
before tax for the year ended December 31, 2011 to write down the carrying value of P&C Customer Relationships related to
the acquisition of Direct Response to its estimated fair value.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities primarily include accrued salaries and commissions, pension benefits, postretirement
medical benefits and accrued taxes, licenses and fees.

Recognition of Earned Premiums and Related Expenses

Property and casualty insurance and short duration health insurance premiums are deferred when written and recognized and
earned ratably over the periods to which the premiums relate. Unearned Premiums represent the portion of the premiums
written related to the unexpired portion of policies in force which has been deferred and is reported as a liability. A premium
deficiency reserve is established if the sum of expected claim costs, claim adjustment expenses, unamortized deferred policy
acquisition costs and

74



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

maintenance costs exceeds the related unearned premiums. For each business segment, the analysis is performed at a product
line level, namely automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and other insurance, which is consistent with the manner in
which the Company acquires, services and measures profitability. Anticipated investment income is excluded from such
analysis.

Traditional life insurance premiums are recognized as revenue when due. Policyholders’ benefits are associated with related
premiums to result in recognition of profits over the periods for which the benefits are provided using the net level premium
method.

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses include provisions for future policy benefits under
life and certain accident and health insurance contracts and provisions for reported claims, estimates for claims incurred but not
reported and loss adjustment expenses. Benefit payments in excess of policy account balances are expensed.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries reinsure certain risks above certain retention levels with
other insurance enterprises. These reinsurance agreements do not relieve Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries of their legal
obligations to the policyholder. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are included in Other Receivables.

Gains related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortized over the life of the underlying reinsured
policies. Losses related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are recognized immediately. Any gain or loss associated with
reinsurance agreements for which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries have been legally relieved of their obligations to the
policyholder is recognized in the period of relief.

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is maintained for the portion of deferred income tax assets that
the Company does not expect to recover. Increases in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets are recognized as
income tax expense. Decreases in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets are recognized as income tax benefit.
The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period in which
the change is enacted.

The Company reports a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken, or expected to be
taken, in an income tax return. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income. The new standard amends and enhances disclosure requirements by requiring an entity to report the
effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income on the respective line items in a statement
of income. The Company adopted the standard in the first quarter of 2013. Except for the additional disclosure requirements,
the initial application of the standard did not have an impact on the Company.

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There were twelve ASUs issued in 2013 that amend the
original text of the ASC. Except as described in the following paragraph and also under the caption “Adoption of New
Accounting Standard” above, the ASUs are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss
Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. The standard is effective for the first interim or annual
period beginning on or after December 15, 2013 with early adoption permitted. The standard amends ASC Topic 740, Income
Taxes, to provide guidance and reduce diversity in practice on the financial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax
benefit when a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. Except for the changes, if
any, in the Company’s presentation, the initial application of the standard will not impact the Company.
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The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2013 were:

Gross Unrealized

Amortized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.........c.ccocvvneene.. $ 3511 $§ 228 $§ (11.7) $ 3622
States and Political SUbAiVISIONS .........ccoeevvieiieiiieiiiieeciieeee e 1,327.4 53.8 (20.2) 1,361.0
Corporate Securities:

Bonds and NOTES ..........ooiiiiiiiieiieie ettt ettt e 2,636.4 205.0 47.7)  2,793.7

Redeemable Preferred StOCKS ........cevevirieniininieieieseceeeeseeeeee e 6.6 0.8 — 7.4

Mortgage and Asset-backed........c.ccevviiiiieriiieieieeeeeeeee e 49.0 1.8 0.1) 50.7
Investments in Fixed Maturities...........cccueevierieiieiiieiecieeie e e $43705 § 2842 § (79.7) $ 4,575.0

Included in the fair value of Mortgage and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2013 are $44.7 million of collateralized
loan obligations, $4.6 million of collateralized debt obligations, $1.2 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed
securities and $0.2 million of other asset-backed securities.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2012 were:

Gross Unrealized

Amortized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.......................... $ 3840 $ 451 § (0.2) $ 4289
States and Political SUDAIVISIONS .........cceiiiuiiiiiiiiiieeceeeeeeeeeceee e 1,251.0 150.5 (0.1) 1,401.4
Corporate Securities:

Bonds and NOTES .....cc.vviveiiiiiieeie ettt ettt eeteeeeaeeseaeeesaeesenaeeas 2,615.5 385.4 (7.5)  2,993.4

Redeemable Preferred StOCKS ........coviiieieviiiiieieiesieseeeeiee e 30.1 2.5 — 32.6

Mortgage and Asset-backed..........ccevuiririeriininieieieeeeeee e 32 1.0 0.3) 3.9
Investments in Fixed Maturities. ..........c.covvevveierieieeeriireeeeee oo eveeneseenas $42838 $ 5845 $§  (8.1) $4,860.2

Included in the fair value of Mortgage and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2012 are $2.3 million of collateralized
debt obligations, $1.3 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed securities and $0.3 million of other asset-
backed securities.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2013 by
contractual maturity were:

Amortized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Fair Value
DUE IN ONE Y AT OF LLESS....eicuiiiiiieiiieiieieeeteeett et et e ettt e et e et e ete e vt e bt e s atestbeesseeaseesseesseessaesseesssesssesssassseans $ 813 § 829
Due after One Year 10 FIVE YEaIS.......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiictie ettt ettt ettt e e e tae e e tee e raeeeteeeeereean 724.8 766.0
Due after FIVE Years t0 TN Y AIS......ccoviiiiuiiicirieitie et e ettt et et et e et eae s eeaaeeeaeseeteeeeaeeeereeeenaeeeenneen 1,304.4 1,324.4
DUE AftET TN YEATIS.....uvviiiiieeiiee ettt e ettt e e et e e e et et e e e et et e e e eaaaeeeseesaaeeesansseeeesanssreessssaseeasas 2,051.1 2,183.4
Asset-backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date..........ccceeveviiriecienieneeieieiese e 208.9 218.3
Investments I FIXEA IMATUITTIES .......vvviiiiiiiie ettt eeeee e e e e e e e eeaaaeeesetaaeesssnnsseesssnaneeaens $ 43705 $ 4,575.0

The expected maturities of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities may differ from the contractual maturities because
issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Investments in Asset-
backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date at December 31, 2013 consisted of securities issued by the Government
National Mortgage Association with a fair value of $155.9 million, securities issued by the Federal National Mortgage
Association with a fair value of $11.3 million, securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with a fair
value of $0.4 million and securities of other non-governmental issuers with a fair value of $50.7 million.
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Other Receivables at December 31, 2013 includes a receivable of $2.5 million primarily from sales of Investments in Fixed
Maturities that settled in January 2014. There were no unsettled purchases of Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31,
2013. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities at December 31, 2012 includes a payable of $1.5 million for purchases of
Investments in Fixed Maturities that settled in January 2013. There were no unsettled sales of Investments in Fixed Maturities
at December 31, 2012.

Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2013
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate..............ccoooooviiiiiiiiiicieeeeeeeeeeee $ 854 § 29 § 25) $ 858
Other INAUSIIIES .....ovveevieeiecieeetie ettt ettt ettt eaae e eave s 20.1 4.4 (0.1) 24.4
Common Stocks:
MANUTACTUTING ....evvevveieeeieieteete et ete e ete et et e ste e esessesseeseessesesseessensensessaensas 83.4 21.3 0.1) 104.6
Other INAUSIIIES .....ouveeviiiieciieeeie ettt ettt ettt te et e e e eeaeeebeenseenneas 68.8 17.0 (0.9) 84.9
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded FUnds.........cocoecveieriiinieiinecieeesceeeee e 122.0 3.9 (1.0) 124.9
Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships...........c..ccccceceeuenneee. 150.3 25.2 (1.6) 173.9
Investments in EQUItY SECUTTHIES.......ccvevirieieeieririeieeeteeeeee et $ 5300 $ 747 $ (6.2) $ 5985

Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2012
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate...........cccoooverieoinineneniiineecceecee, $ 754 % 39§ (0.1) $ 792
Other INAUSIIIES .....c.veevieiieciieeeie ettt ettt ettt ste et e saeeeeaeeeseeaseenneas 18.4 3.8 (0.9) 21.3
Common Stocks:
MANUTACTUTING ...ttt ettt sttt sttt e st e steeseessesesseeseensensesseenean 67.0 20.9 (0.4) 87.5
Other INAUSLIIS ....covvetiiieieierieeieeere ettt b 59.1 8.1 (0.5) 66.7
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded FUnds.........cocooceieriiinieniinieeieeeeeeese e 119.6 6.3 — 125.9
Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships............cccccervennnee. 123.2 19.5 (1.4) 141.3
Investments in EQUity SECUITHES........cccvvveviieviriieiiicieieetee e $§ 4627 $ 625 $§ (33) $ 5219
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An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2013 is
presented below:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUhOTILIES ... $ 958 § (109) $ 44 3 0.8 $ 1002 $ @11.7)
States and Political Subdivisions...........cccecverunnen. 222.9 (20.1) 2.0 0.1) 224.9 (20.2)
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOtEs ........cccceveeeerierieneeieiese e 699.8 39.4) 103.2 8.3) 803.0 47.7)
Mortgage and Asset-backed............cocceeveennenn 13.9 0.1 1.1 — 15.0 0.1
Total Fixed Maturities..........ccccevveereeeevieneeeeienreenees 1,032.4 (70.5) 110.7 9.2) 1,143.1 (79.7)
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate................... 22.5 2.5) 2.5 — 25.0 2.5)
Other IndUStries..........coveeveeeriecieciecieeeeeee e 4.3 ©0.1) 0.7 — 5.0 (0.1)
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing.........ceeveeveeeeeereereseeeesiesseseeenns 5.0 0.1) 0.2 — 5.2 (0.1)
Other Industries..........ccooeeveeeeeeieeieiieeieeee e 14.2 0.9) 0.5 — 14.7 (0.9)
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........ccccccevveveviennennnnne. 67.6 (1.0) — — 67.6 (1.0)
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.........ccceeeveeeeeevieneceeieeeeeen 53.1 0.9) 5.0 0.7) 58.1 (1.6)
Total Equity SeCUrities........cccevvererrereerieneneeieienienes 166.7 (5.5) 8.9 0.7) 175.6 (6.2)
TOtAl .o e $1,1991 § (76.0) $§ 1196 $ 9.9) $1318.7 $ (85.9)

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment
is other than temporary. The credit loss portions of the declines in the fair values of investments that are determined to be other
than temporary are reported as losses in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the periods when such determinations are made.
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Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company has determined to be temporary at December 31, 2013, were $79.7
million, of which $9.2 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
There were no unrealized losses at December 31, 2013 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses
in earnings in the preceding table under the heading “Less Than 12 Months.” Included in the preceding table under the heading
“12 Months or Longer” there were unrealized losses of $0.3 million at December 31, 2013 related to securities for which the
Company has recognized credit losses in earnings. Investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $74.2 million and
below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $5.5 million of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed
maturities at December 31, 2013. For below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments in an unrealized loss position, the
unrealized loss amount, on average, was less than 5% of the amortized cost basis of the investment. At December 31, 2013, the
Company did not have the intent to sell these investments and it was not more likely than not that the Company would be
required to sell these investments before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which may be at maturity. Based on the
Company’s evaluation at December 31, 2013 of the prospects of the issuers, including, but not limited to, the credit ratings of
the issuers of the investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s intention to not sell and its determination that it would
not be required to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such investments, the Company concluded that the declines in
the fair values of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities presented in the preceding table were temporary at the
evaluation date.

For equity securities, the Company considers various factors when determining whether a decline in the fair value is other than
temporary, including, but not limited to:

+ The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;

* The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

+ The volatility of the investment;

* Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;

* Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

* Market liquidity;

+ Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and

* The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

The Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments in preferred and common stocks at December 31, 2013
were temporary based on various factors, including the relative short length and magnitude of the losses and overall market
volatility. The Company’s investments in other equity interests include investments in limited liability companies and limited
liability partnerships that primarily invest in distressed debt, mezzanine debt and secondary transactions. By the nature of their
underlying investments, the Company believes that its investments in the limited liability companies and limited liability
partnerships also exhibit debt-like characteristics which, among other factors, the Company considers when evaluating these
investments for impairment. Based on Company’s evaluations of the factors in the preceding paragraph, the Company
concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in equity securities presented in the preceding table
were temporary at December 31, 2013.
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An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2012 is
presented below:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AULhOTITIES. ... $ 408 $ (02) $ — 3 — $ 408 $ (0.2
States and Political Subdivisions............cccceeeruennenn 6.3 0.1 0.3 — 6.6 0.1)
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and Notes..........ccccoveeiiiiieiciieeieeeee 268.5 5.2) 38.1 2.3) 306.6 (7.5)
Redeemable Preferred Stocks.........cceceevveriennenne. — — 0.4 — 0.4 —
Mortgage and Asset-backed .............ccocevenrnenne. — — 1.7 0.3) 1.7 0.3)
Total Fixed Maturiti€s..........ccocveveeveecvenenenieieniesennns 315.6 (5.5 40.5 (2.6) 356.1 &.1)
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate................... — — 2.4 (0.1) 2.4 (0.1)
Other IndUStries .........cccoeveeveeeevieeieeeiereere e 2.3 (0.8) 3.7 (0.1) 6.0 (0.9)
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ..........ceceveeeevverieneneerenienesenens 6.3 0.4) — — 6.3 0.4)
Other IndUStries .........ccoeveeveeievieeeeeeieieere e 14.2 (0.4) 1.3 0.1) 15.5 (0.5)
Other Equity Interests:
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships........coeveveeeecieneceeeeiee e 5.5 0.5) 6.7 0.9) 12.2 (1.4)
Total Equity SeCUrities.......cccevvereererrverienierieienieneenns 28.3 2.1 14.1 (1.2) 42.4 3.3)
TOtAL .o $ 3439 § (76) § 546 $ (3.8) $ 3985 $ (11.4)

Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company determined to be temporary at December 31, 2012, were $8.1
million, of which $2.6 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
Included in the preceding table under the heading “Less Than 12 Months” there were unrealized losses of $0.3 million at
December 31, 2012 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses in earnings. There were no
unrealized losses at December 31, 2012 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses in earnings in
the preceding table under the heading “12 Months or Longer.” Included in the preceding table under the heading “12 Months or
Longer” are unrealized losses of $0.1 million at December 31, 2012 related to securities for which the Company has recognized
foreign currency losses in earnings. Investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $3.8 million and below-
investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $4.3 million of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed maturities
at December 31, 2012. Unrealized losses for below-investment-grade fixed maturities included unrealized losses totaling $0.1
million for one issuer that the Company recognized foreign currency impairment losses in earnings for the year ended
December 31, 2012. For the other remaining below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments in an unrealized loss position,
the unrealized loss amount, on average, was less than 3% of the amortized cost basis of the investment. At December 31, 2012,
the Company did not have the intent to sell these investments and it was not more likely than not that the Company would be
required to sell these investments before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which may be at maturity. Based on the
Company’s evaluation at December 31, 2012 of the prospects of the issuers, including, but not limited to, the credit ratings of
the issuers of the investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s intention to not sell and its determination that it would
not be required to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such investments, the Company concluded that the declines in
the fair values of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities presented in the preceding table were temporary at the
evaluation date.

The Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments in preferred and common stocks at December 31, 2012
were temporary based on the relative short length and magnitude of the losses and overall market volatility. The Company’s
investments in other equity interests include investments in limited liability partnerships that primarily invest in distressed debt,
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mezzanine debt and secondary transactions. By the nature of their underlying investments, the Company believes that its
investments in the limited liability partnerships also exhibit debt-like characteristics which, among other factors, the Company
considers when evaluating these investments for impairment. Based on evaluations of the factors described above that the
Company considers when determining whether a decline in the fair value of an investment in equity securities is other than
temporary, the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in equity securities
presented in the preceding table were temporary at December 31, 2012.

The following table sets forth the pre-tax amount of OTTI credit losses, recognized in Retained Earnings for Investments in
Fixed Maturities held by the Company as of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, for which a portion of the OTTI loss has been
recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, and the corresponding changes in such amounts.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Balance at Be@inning 0f YEaLi..........covevouieiiueeieeeieeeieeceeeeeeeeeee et $ 46 $ 39 §$ 2.4
Additions for Previously Unrecognized OTTI Credit LOSSES.......ccveveveeierienieninieienieeeeennnn 1.8 1.1 2.2
Increases to Previously Recognized OTTI Credit LOSSES.........cocvieviiieeiieiieiieciieeiieciieeiienns 7.3 — —
Reductions to Previously Recognized OTTI Credit LOSSES ......ccccvevvirreeeeecienieriieieiesie e, — (0.1) 0.7)
Reductions for Change in Impairment Status:

From Status of Credit Loss to Status of Intent-to-sell or Required-to-sell........................ 3.2) — —
Reductions for Investments Sold During Period ............cccoeveviiieieniinieieieseceeeeese e (0.6) 0.3) —

Balance at ENA OF YEaL.......ccvioiiiiiieeeeeceeeeeeeeee ettt ettt $ 99 § 46 $ 39

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments include investments in limited liability investment companies and limited
partnerships in which the Company’s interests are not deemed minor and are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. The Company’s investments in Equity Method Limited Liability Investments are generally of a passive nature in
that the Company does not take an active role in the management of the investment entity. In 2012, aggregate investment
income (losses) from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments exceeded 10% of the Company’s pretax consolidated net
income. Accordingly, the Company is disclosing aggregated summarized financial data for its Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments. Such aggregated summarized financial data does not represent the Company’s proportionate share of the Equity
Method Limited Liability Investment assets or earnings. Aggregate total assets of the Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments in which the Company invested totaled $3,392.1 million and $3,643.6 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Aggregate total liabilities of the Equity Method Limited Liability Investments in which the Company invested
totaled $576.3 million and $421.0 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Aggregate net income of the Equity
Method Limited Liability Investments in which the Company invested totaled $181.1 million and $134.6 million for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Aggregate net loss of the Equity Method Limited Liability Investments in
which the Company invested totaled $13.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. The aggregate summarized financial
data is based on the most recent and sufficiently-timely financial information available to the Company as of the respective
reporting dates and periods. The Company’s maximum exposure to loss at December 31, 2013 is limited to the total carrying
value of $245.1 million. In addition, the Company had outstanding commitments totaling approximately $50.4 million to fund
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at December 31, 2013.
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NOTE 3. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The carrying values of the Company’s Other Investments at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012

Loans to Policyholders at Unpaid PrincCipal..........ccccovieriirieierienienieieiece et sie e see e $ 2754 § 2663
Real Estate at Depreciated COST......ouiiiiiiiieieriiriieiieientest ettt sttt sttt ettt et et e ae et esteneenbesaeeneenes 167.1 226.2
Trading Securities at Fair VAIUC.........cccoociiiiieiicieeee et es 5.0 4.5
ORET ..ttt ettt b bttt e h et bt bttt b e bttt ettt b et be b 0.5 0.5
TOTAL ..ttt ettt ettt ettt e n sttt n e e Rt R et et e Rt R et et ene R et et ene e s e se s eneeneesenneneenes $ 4480 $ 4975

In the third quarter of 2013, the Company sold the 41-story office building where Kemper’s corporate offices are headquartered
for a gain of $43.6 million before income taxes. Proceeds from the sale, net of transaction costs, were $101.5 million.

NOTE 4. GOODWILL

Goodwill balances by business segment at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012

KEMPET PIEfEITEA .....vvcviviiieietccteeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt et et aeete et et eaeeseete et enseseeseesenseneas $ 496 $ 496
KeMPET SPECIAILY ...evieuiiiieiieieieeieeeetete ettt ettt ettt et s te et ebesbeessessessesseessensesesseessensensessaensans 42.8 42.8
Life and Health INSUTANCE .........ccoeiieriiriieieiesieeee ettt ettt sttt et bttt besaeennens 219.4 219.4
TOALL .ttt ettt ettt ettt et e st st e st et e st esene s e s e et be st e R e st s eRe st e st s ese st ae st st eneesesenteseneanas $ 311.8 $ 3118

The Company tests goodwill for recoverability on an annual basis at the beginning of the first quarter and, if circumstances or
events indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit may have declined below its carrying value, such tests are performed at
intervening interim periods. The Company principally used projections of discounted future cash flows to estimate the fair
values of the reporting units tested. For each reporting unit tested, the estimated fair value exceeded the carrying value of the
reporting unit, and the Company concluded that the associated goodwill was recoverable at the aforementioned dates tested.
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NOTE 5. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserve activity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Beginning Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves:
Gross of Reinsurance at Beginning of Year...........cccoovevieriniriienienenieieieseseeeene e $ 9706 $1,029.1 $1,118.7
Less Reinsurance Recoverables and Indemnification at Beginning of Year.................... 66.2 74.5 78.1

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification at
Beginning of YEar........ccocooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicc s 904.4 954.6 1,040.6

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

CONtINUING OPETALIONS ....vvevveviiieeieiesieeteetertesieeteetesesseeseessessesseeseessessessesssessessesseessens 1,056.5 1,253.1 1,338.5
Prior Years:
CoNtiNUING OPETALIONS .....eveeuiieiieiiesiieseeseieeieeaeereeseesseesseesseesseesseesssesssesssessesssessses (59.8) (25.2) (35.0)
DiscontinUed OPETatiOnS.........cc.eeverierieeeeieierieeteeeestesteseesessesseeseessessessesseessessessesssens 4.8) (6.3) 1.9
Total Incurred Losses and LAE related to Prior Years.........ccooevevieeeiieiiecieeciieneeeeeeene (64.6) (31.5) (33.1)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ..........oooviiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeee ettt e eae e 991.9 1,221.6 1,305.4

Paid Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

CONtINUING OPETALIONS ....vvevverieiieeieierieeteeietestesteestetestesseessessesseeseensessessesseensessessesssens 682.2 801.4 887.7
Prior Years:

CONtINUING OPETALIONS ....vvevverreriieeieierteereetetestesteetessesseeseessessesseeseessessessesssessessesseessens 421.7 451.2 472.9

DiscontinUed OPETations.........cc.eeeerierieriieieienienteeitestestesteestestesteeseeseessessesseensensesseennens 12.3 19.2 30.8
Total Paid Losses and LAE related to Prior Years.......ccoceeveeeeerieneeierienieseeeeieseevnennas 434.0 470.4 503.7

Total Paid Losses and LAE
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification at

1,116.2 1,271.8 1,391.4

ENA OF YOAL.c..itieiiii ettt ettt ettt e st sbeenean 780.1 904 .4 954.6
Plus Reinsurance and Indemnification Recoverables at End of Year.........ccccocvevveeieiiennnns 63.4 66.2 74.5
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Gross of Reinsurance at End of Year............... $ 8435 $ 970.6 $ 1,029.1

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are estimated based on historical experience patterns and current economic trends.
Actual loss experience and loss trends are likely to differ from these historical experience patterns and economic conditions.
Loss experience and loss trends emerge over several years from the dates of loss inception. The Company monitors such
emerging loss trends on a quarterly basis. Changes in such estimates are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income in
the period of change.

In 2013, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $64.6 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $56.8 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $7.8 million. Personal
automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $30.1 million, homeowners insurance loss and LAE
reserves developed favorably by $20.1 million and other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $6.6
million. The personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more
favorable loss patterns than expected for the four most recent accident years. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves
included favorable development of $3.0 million from continuing operations and $4.8 million from discontinued operations.
Commercial lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably from continuing operations due primarily to the
emergence of more favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2011, 2010 and 2009 accident years, partially offset by less
favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2012 accident year.
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NOTE 5. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES (Continued)

In 2012, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $31.5 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $12.6 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $18.9 million. Personal
automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed adversely by $2.2 million, homeowners insurance loss and LAE
reserves developed favorably by $11.7 million and other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $3.1
million. Personal automobile loss and LAE reserves developed adversely for the 2011 accident year and developed favorably
for the 2010, 2009 and 2008 accident years. Homeowners insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily
to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2011, 2010 and 2009 accident years and favorable
development on certain catastrophes. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves included favorable development of
$12.6 million from continuing operations and $6.3 million from discontinued operations. Commercial lines insurance losses
and LAE reserves developed favorably from continuing operations due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss
patterns than expected for the four most recent accident years. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed
favorably from discontinued operations due primarily to the commutation of certain insurance liabilities that had been
previously assumed.

In 2011, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $33.1 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $29.3 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $3.8 million. Personal lines
insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than
expected for the 2010, 2009 and 2008 accident years and favorable development on certain catastrophes.

The Company cannot predict whether loss and LAE reserves will develop favorably or unfavorably from the amounts reported
in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company believes that any such development will not have a material
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, but could have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial results for a given period.

Reinsurance and indemnification recoverables on property and casualty insurance reserves were $63.4 million and $66.2
million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These recoverables are concentrated with several reinsurers, the vast
majority of which are highly rated by one or more of the principal investor and/or insurance company rating agencies. While
most of these recoverables were unsecured at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the agreements with the reinsurers generally
provide for some form of collateralization upon the occurrence of certain events.

NOTE 6. NOTES PAYABLE

Total amortized cost of debt outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Senior Notes:
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ....ccveviiieieieieeeeeeierie ettt sttt e e saesse e aessesseessenes $ 3579 §$ 3573
6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015, . .cuuiiiiiiiieieeeeie ettt e e e e s eeraeees e 249.0 248.6
Mortgage Note Payable due September 1, 2013 ........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt — 5.5
TOtal NOLES PAYADIE..........ocuiviiveeieietieceieeceteteeee ettt ettt ettt ettt as e e s e ss st ese et ess s eseennas $ 6069 $ 6114
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Interest Expense, including facility fees, accretion of discount and write-off of unamortized credit agreement issuance costs for
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit AZIreement..........c.ccvevveeeeierieeeeiesieneeieeeesiesreeeeennes $ 14 § 19 §$ 2.0
Senior Notes Payable:

6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ...ooveiiiiieieieieieeeeeeeeee e 22.2 22.1 22.0

6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 15.4 154 154
Mortgage NOte PayabIe.........ccovieieiieiieieieieseceeee ettt sttt eneas 0.2 0.4 0.4
Interest Expense before Capitalization of Interest...........ccccovieieviiniinieieieeecccieese e, 39.2 39.8 39.8
Capitalization Of INETEST........ecieieriiriieieieiese ettt ettt te bt e s e eaeesessesreeseessessessaensens (0.9) (1.8) 2.5)
Total INTErESt EXPEIISE. ......vovviveevierireeeeteeteeteee et eteeteeeeae et et se et seaeete et eseseeseesenserseseesenseneens $ 383 § 380 $ 373

Interest Paid on Notes Payable, including facility fees, for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit AGreement.............cceeveeeeeievreerieeenieereceeeeere e $ 0.8 $ 23§ 1.2
Senior Notes Payable:
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ....ccovivieriiiiiieierieeeeeeiesie et 21.6 21.6 21.6
6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 .........coiioieoieeieceeeeeee e 15.0 15.0 15.2
Mortgage NOte Payable..........cccveieiiiriieieieieeieeeetee sttt sttt besreennens 0.3 0.4 0.4

Total INEEreSt PAId ........c.ooviiiiiiiieiiieeeecee ettt ettt et et eae et $ 377 $ 393 $ 384

On March 7, 2012, Kemper entered into the 2016 Credit Agreement, a four-year, $325.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit
agreement, expiring March 7, 2016, with a group of financial institutions. Effective December 31, 2013, Kemper amended the
2016 Credit Agreement to, among other things, reduce the amount of the aggregate commitments under the 2016 Credit
Agreement by $100.0 million, bringing the amount of aggregate commitments to $225.0 million, and to increase the amount of
indebtedness that may be incurred and outstanding in the aggregate at any time in connection with borrowings from the FHLB
or issuances of surplus notes by $150.0 million, to $250.0 million, provided that the aggregate indebtedness incurred and
outstanding in connection with issuances of surplus notes may not exceed $100.0 million at any one time. The action resulted
from the completion in December 2013 of a process initiated by Kemper’s subsidiaries, United Insurance and Trinity, to
become members of the FHLBs of Chicago and Dallas, respectively. The FHLB memberships provide United Insurance and
Trinity with access to additional sources of liquidity and consequently reduce the need for such liquidity at the parent company
level.

The 2016 Credit Agreement replaced Kemper’s Former Credit Agreement, a $245.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit
agreement which was scheduled to expire on October 30, 2012 and was terminated on March 7, 2012. There were no
borrowings under the Former Credit Agreement at either December 31, 2011 or at its termination. The 2016 Credit Agreement
provides for fixed and floating rate advances for periods up to six months at various interest rates. The 2016 Credit Agreement
contains various financial covenants, including limits on total debt to total capitalization, consolidated net worth and minimum
risk-based capital ratios for Kemper’s largest insurance subsidiaries, United Insurance and Trinity. Proceeds from advances
under the 2016 Credit Agreement may be used for general corporate purposes, including repayment of existing indebtedness.
There were no outstanding borrowings under the 2016 Credit Agreement at December 31, 2013, and accordingly, $225.0
million was available for future borrowings.

In connection with the finalization of their FHLB memberships, United Insurance and Trinity purchased capital stock in the
FHLBs of Chicago and Dallas, respectively. In addition, to complete Trinity’s membership in the FHLB of Dallas, which
became effective as of December 31, 2013, Trinity and the FHLB of Dallas entered into agreements pursuant to which Trinity
may obtain advances from the FHLB of Dallas. The specific terms of each advance, including the amount and rate of interest,
will be specified in a written or electronic confirmation of advance. The amount of advances that may be obtained by Trinity
will be determined as of any particular date based on a multiple of the amount of capital stock in the FHLB of Dallas that has
been purchased by Trinity as of such date, as determined in accordance with the policies and procedures for members of the
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FHLB of Dallas, subject to any applicable limitations under the 2016 Credit Agreement. Advances are subject to collateral
requirements as specified in the agreements. There were no advances from the FHLB of Dallas outstanding at December 31,
2013.

In 2011, Kemper borrowed and repaid $95.0 million under the Former Credit Agreement. Kemper had no outstanding advances
under the Former Credit Agreement at December 31, 2011.

In 2010, Kemper issued $250 million of its 6.00% senior notes due November 30, 2015. The 2015 Senior Notes are unsecured
and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices.
Kemper issued the 2015 Senior Notes for proceeds of $247.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an effective yield of 6.21%.

In 2007, Kemper issued $360 million of its 6.00% senior notes due May 15, 2017. The 2017 Senior Notes are unsecured and
may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. Kemper
issued the 2017 Senior Notes for proceeds of $354.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an effective yield of 6.19%.

NOTE 7. LEASES

The Company leases certain office space under non-cancelable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to
twelve years, along with options that permit renewals for additional periods. The Company also leases certain equipment under
non-cancelable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to five years. Minimum rent is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Net rental expense for operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Minimum Rental EXPense .......ccccceirieiiininiiiiieieieeeeeeseeec et $ 283 $ 332 § 315
Less Sublease Rental INCOME ........ccvevvieuieieiieriicieieie ettt ettt raesaens (1.8) 2.5) 2.1
Net RENTAL EXPENSE ...v.viviveeieietieietetiieteieeietisteteie st tess et etese st ss st esessebessssesesessesessesesnsnas $ 265 $ 307 $§ 294

Future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases at December 31, 2013 were:

Capital Operating

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Leases Leases
2014 ettt ettt ettt bt a e et b et e eatea b e be ekt e Rt en b ekt eReent et e nse e st en s e beeaeentenseteereeneenes $ 47 § 251
20 LS ettt ettt ettt et e beeteett e beeheete st e b et e etteab e beeteesteab e beeteerbeabeeaeetsensebeessersenbebeereentenns 2.2 18.7
2016 ueeuieieeie ettt ettt e ettt ettt ettt e te et e et t et e bt et e e a b et e esees e e st e be ekt e Rt enbeebeeR e e st e beaseeseentebeeneestenseteneeentenes 2.1 16.7
2017 ettt ettt h e h et b e bt e a e e a b et ekt Rt e ekt bt e a b et e bt eneen b e be bt eht e st e besheentenee 1.5 151
2018 ettt ettt et ettt ettt ettt et e beete et b e b et e e tt Rt et eabe et e est e beebeeRten b e teeteenb et e eaeesaenb e beeteeseensebenteeneenns 0.1 8.9
2019 ANA TRETEATLET .....evivieeieiieieeieeeeee ettt ettt sttt et e bt et et e sbe e st ensesesseeseensensesseensenes — 15.3
TOtal FULULE PAYIMENLS. .. c.ecuieuiiteieiietieteietete ettt sttt ettt et e st st et e e e st et eeseaeneesenseneeneesessenseneenes $ 106 $ 9938
LSS TMPULEA INEETESE ....veevienriiiieieiesieeteieie ettt ettt ettt et e steste et e besbeeseensesseesaessensensesseensensesseassenes any -
Present Value of Minimum Capital Lease Payments...........cccceceriririenininieiienieneeteeseseeeeesie e $ 9.5

The total of minimum rentals to be received in the future under non-cancelable subleases was $5.5 million at December 31,
2013.
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Kemper is authorized to issue 20 million shares of $0.10 par value preferred stock and 100 million shares of $0.10 par value
common stock. No preferred shares were issued or outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012. There were 55,653,437 shares
and 58,454,390 shares of common stock outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Common stock outstanding
included 278,427 shares and 313,424 shares at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, that have been issued, subject to
certain vesting and other requirements, in connection with the Company’s long-term equity compensation plans. See Note 9,
“Long-Term Equity-based Compensation,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the restrictions and
vesting provisions.

On August 4, 2004, the Board of Directors declared a dividend distribution of one preferred share purchase right for each
outstanding share of common stock of Kemper, pursuant to a shareholder rights plan. The rights have a term of 10 years. The
description and terms of the rights are set forth in a rights agreement between Kemper and Computershare Trust Company,
N.A., as rights agent.

Kemper repurchased and retired 3.0 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of
$100.4 million in 2013. Kemper repurchased and retired 2.0 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at
an aggregate cost of $60.7 million in 2012. Kemper repurchased and retired 0.9 million shares of its common stock in open
market transactions at an aggregate cost of $27.4 million in 2011.

Various state insurance laws restrict the amount that an insurance subsidiary may pay in the form of dividends, loans or
advances without the prior approval of regulatory authorities. Also, that portion of an insurance subsidiary’s net equity which
results from differences between statutory insurance accounting practices and GAAP would not be available for cash dividends,
loans or advances. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries paid dividends of $95.0 million in cash to Kemper in 2013. In 2014,
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries would be able to pay $217 million in dividends to Kemper without prior regulatory approval.
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries had net assets of $2.4 billion, determined in accordance with GAAP, that were restricted from
payment to Kemper without prior regulatory approval at December 31, 2013.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required to file financial statements prepared on the basis of statutory insurance accounting
practices, a comprehensive basis of accounting other than GAAP. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s life and
health insurance subsidiaries was $430.2 million and $457.8 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Statutory net
income for the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries was $81.5 million, $102.0 million and $116.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s property and
casualty insurance subsidiaries was $989.7 million and $844.8 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Statutory
net income for the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries was $138.8 million, $40.6 million and $30.6 million
for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus and statutory net income
exclude parent company operations.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are also required to hold minimum levels of statutory capital and surplus to satisfy regulatory
requirements. The minimum statutory capital and surplus, or company action level RBC, necessary to satisfy regulatory
requirements for the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries collectively was $123.7 million at December 31, 2013.
The minimum statutory capital and surplus necessary to satisfy regulatory requirements for the Company’s property and
casualty insurance subsidiaries collectively was $286.4 million at December 31, 2013. Company action level RBC is the level
at which a company is required to file a corrective action plan with its regulators and is equal to 200% of the authorized control
level RBC.

In 2013, Kemper paid dividends of $54.9 million to its shareholders. Except for certain financial covenants under the 2016
Credit Agreement, there are no restrictions on Kemper’s ability to pay dividends to its shareholders. Certain financial
covenants, namely minimum net worth and a maximum debt to total capitalization ratio, under the 2016 Credit Agreement
could limit the amount of dividends that Kemper may pay to shareholders at December 31, 2013. Kemper had the ability to pay
without restrictions $407 million in dividends to its shareholders and still be in compliance with all financial covenants under
the 2016 Credit Agreement at December 31, 2013.
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

On May 4, 2011, Kemper’s shareholders approved the 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan (“Omnibus Plan”). The Omnibus Plan
replaced the Company’s previous employee stock option plans, director stock option plan and restricted stock plan (collectively,
the “Prior Plans”). Awards previously granted under the Prior Plans remain outstanding in accordance with their original terms.
Beginning May 4, 2011, equity-based compensation awards may only be granted under the Omnibus Plan. A maximum number
of 10,000,000 shares of Kemper common stock may be issued under the Omnibus Plan (the “Share Authorization”). As of
December 31, 2013, there were 8,750,768 common shares available for future grants under the Omnibus Plan, of which
390,486 shares were reserved for future grants based on the achievement of performance goals under the terms of outstanding
performance-based restricted stock awards.

The design of the Omnibus Plan provides for fungible use of shares to determine the number of shares available for future
grants, with a fungible conversion factor of three to one, such that the Share Authorization will be reduced at two different rates,
depending on the type of award granted. Each share of Kemper common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or
stock appreciation rights will reduce the number of shares available for future grant under the Share Authorization by one share,
while each share of Kemper common stock issued pursuant to “full value awards” will reduce the number of shares available
for future grant under the Share Authorization by three shares. “Full value awards” are awards, other than stock options or stock
appreciation rights, that are settled by the issuance of shares of Kemper common stock and include restricted stock, restricted
stock units, performance shares, performance units, if settled with stock, and other stock-based awards.

Outstanding awards under the Omnibus Plan and Prior Plans at December 31, 2013 consisted of tandem stock option and stock
appreciation rights (“Tandem Awards”), time-vested restricted stock, performance-based restricted stock and deferred stock
units (“DSUs”). Recipients of restricted stock receive full dividend and voting rights on the same basis as all other outstanding
shares of Kemper common stock, and all awards are subject to forfeiture until certain restrictions have lapsed.

For equity-based compensation awards with a graded vesting schedule, the Company recognizes compensation expense on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately-vesting portion of the awards as if each award were, in
substance, multiple awards. Compensation expense is recognized only for those awards expected to vest, with forfeitures
estimated at the date of grant based on the Company’s historical experience and future expectations. Equity-based
compensation expense was $5.5 million, $5.8 million and $5.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Total unamortized compensation expense related to nonvested awards at December 31, 2013 was $5.4 million,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.4 years.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, or the Board’s authorized designee, has sole discretion to determine
the persons to whom awards under the Omnibus Plan are granted, and the material terms of the awards. For Tandem Awards,
material terms include the number of shares covered by such awards and the exercise price, vesting and expiration dates of such
awards. Tandem Awards are non-transferable. The exercise price is the fair value of Kemper’s common stock on the date of
grant. Employee Tandem Awards generally vest, beginning six months after date of grant, in four equal annual installments over
a period of three and one-half years and expire ten years from the date of grant.

Each new member of the Board of Directors who is not employed by the Company (“Non-Employee Director”) receives an
initial option to purchase 4,000 shares of Kemper common stock immediately upon becoming a director. Thereafter, on the date
of each annual meeting of Kemper’s shareholders, eligible Non-Employee Directors automatically receive annual grants of
options to purchase 4,000 shares of common stock. Prior to May 1, 2013, such options granted to Non-Employee Directors
were exercisable one year from the date of grant at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of Kemper’s common stock
on the date of grant and expire ten years from the date of grant. Effective May 1, 2013, new grants of such options are fully
vested and exercisable on the date of grant at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of Kemper’s common stock on the
date of grant. In addition to the option awards, effective May 1, 2013, annual awards to each Non-employee Director include
500 DSUs. DSUs give the recipient the right to receive one share of Kemper common stock for each DSU issued. The DSUs
granted to Non-Employee Directors are fully vested on the date of grant. Holders of DSUs are entitled to receive dividend
equivalents in cash in the amount and at the time that dividends would have been payable if the DSUs were shares of Kemper
common stock. Conversion of the DSUs into shares of Kemper’s common stock is deferred until the date a director’s board
service terminates. On May 1, 2013, the Company issued 4,000 DSUs at a fair value of $31.50 per DSU.

All of the Company’s prior stock option plans included provisions, subject to certain limitations, to automatically grant
restorative, or reload stock options (“Restorative Options™), to replace shares of previously owned Kemper common stock that
an exercising option holder surrenders, either actually or constructively, to satisfy the exercise price and/or tax withholding
obligations relating to the exercise. The restorative feature was eliminated prospectively for original option awards granted on
or after February 3, 2009. Restorative Options may still be granted, subject to certain limitations, in connection with the
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exercise of original options granted before February 3, 2009. Restorative Options are subject to the same terms and conditions
as the original options, including the expiration date, except that the exercise price is equal to the fair value of Kemper common
stock on the date of grant of a Restorative Option and cannot be exercised until six months after the date of grant. The grant of a
Restorative Option does not result in an increase in the total number of shares and options held by an employee, but changes the
mix of the two.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of each option on the date of grant. The
expected terms of options are developed by considering the Company’s historical share option exercise experience,
demographic profiles, historical share retention practices of employees and assumptions about their propensity for early
exercise in the future. Further, the Company aggregates individual awards into relatively homogenous groups that exhibit
similar exercise behavior to obtain a more refined estimate of the expected term of options. Expected volatility is estimated
using weekly historical volatility. The Company believes that historical volatility is currently the best estimate of expected
volatility. The dividend yield in 2013, 2012 and 2011 was calculated by taking the natural logarithm of the annualized yield
divided by the Kemper common stock price on the date of grant. The risk free interest rate was the yield on the grant date of
U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues with a maturity comparable to the expected term of the option.

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes pricing model for options granted during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, were as follows:

2013 2012 2011
RANGE OF VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS
Expected VOlatility......ccocceeeeeverienieieienieceeieeceee 39.10% - 48.23%  29.36% - 53.84% 41.26% - 55.16%
Risk Free Interest Rate ..........ccoecveviiiieeiicieeieeeee, 0.62 - 1.38 0.16 - 1.26 1.30 - 2.87
Expected Dividend Yield........cccooevveievieninieieieiee, 283 - 3.00 292 - 3.26 3.15 - 3.38
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE EXPECTED LIFE IN YEARS
Employee Grants...........cccceeeeeevienenennienenenienenennn 4 -7 1 -7 35 -7
Director Grants............cceeeveeeveeeueeereeseeeeeeeeeeeeere e 6 6 6

Option and SAR activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 is presented below:

Weighted-
Weighted- average Aggregate
Shares average Remaining Intrinsic
Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Value

Options Per Share ($) Life (in Years) ($ In Millions)
Outstanding at Beginning of the Year.........ccecevvvvcveveninvennnnn. 3,192,054 $ 40.53
GIanted.......c.ooooviiirieeeee et 283,750 33.20
EXEICISE....eieiieeiieieeie ettt (364,750) 25.32
Forfeited or EXpired........ccccevirieienieneeieieieseeeeeie e (567,381) 42.83
Outstanding at December 31, 2013......cccccceievininiieneninieenne, 2,543,673 41.38 357 §$ 9.3
Vested and Expected to Vest at December 31, 2013.................. 2,512,512 $ 41.51 351 § 9.0
Exercisable at December 31, 2013........cccoeviviiiiriiiiieecieeeenee 2,226,795 $ 42.81 287 § 6.3

89



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 9. LONG-TERM EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of options granted during 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $10.20, $9.40 and $9.11,
respectively. Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $4.1 million, $3.0 million and $0.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Cash received from option exercises was $1.7 million, $1.3 million and $0.2
million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Total tax benefits realized for tax deductions from
option exercises were $1.4 million, $1.0 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Information pertaining to options outstanding at December 31, 2013 is presented below:

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted-
Weighted- average Weighted-
Shares average Remaining Shares average
Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Subject to Exercise Price
Range of Exercise Prices ($) Options Per Share ($) Life (in Years) Options Per Share ($)

$ 10.00 - $ 15.00 16,750 $ 13.55 5.10 16,750 $ 13.55
15.01 - 20.00 8,000 16.48 5.35 8,000 16.48
20.01 - 25.00 38,250 23.43 6.07 38,250 23.43
25.01 - 30.00 404,000 28.87 7.58 250,812 28.77
30.01 - 35.00 255,375 33.19 9.08 91,685 32.72
35.01 - 40.00 314,500 37.22 3.97 314,500 37.22
40.01 - 45.00 311,868 43.57 0.71 311,868 43.57
45.01 - 50.00 958,222 48.64 1.85 958,222 48.64
50.01 - 55.00 236,708 50.51 0.36 236,708 50.51
10.00 - 55.00 2,543,673 41.38 3.57 2,226,795 42.81

The grant-date fair values of time-based restricted stock awards are determined using the closing price of Kemper common
stock on the date of grant. Activity related to nonvested time-based restricted stock for the year ended December 31, 2013 was
as follows:

Weighted-
average

Time-based Grant-date

Restricted Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Nonvested Balance at Beginning 0f the Year.........ccoccvevieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeseeeet et 126,349 $ 26.19
GIANTEA ... e et e ettt e et e eate e e et e e e ae e e eaaeeeteeeenaeeseaeeeenteeeeneeeeteeeenteesnteeeerteeenes 75,625 33.33
VESEEA ..ttt ettt ettt ettt e e e e e bt e teestteetbeetbeeaaeesbeeabeeabe e beetaeetaeetbeetaeeabeesbeenbeebeenreanns (59,065) 24.99
o) (<] 1!« AU (41,282) 27.98
Nonvested Balance at ENd 0f PEriod.........cc.oooouviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceei et 101,627 $ 31.48

Prior to February 3, 2009, only awards of time-vested restricted stock had been granted. Beginning on February 3, 2009, in
addition to time-vested restricted stock granted to certain employees and officers, the Company began awarding performance-
based restricted stock to certain officers and employees. The initial number of shares awarded to each participant of a
performance-based restricted stock award represents the shares that would vest if the performance goals were achieved at the
“target” performance level. The final payout of these awards will be determined based on Kemper’s total shareholder return
over a three-year performance period relative to a peer group comprised of all the companies in the S&P Supercomposite
Insurance Index.
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Performance-based restricted stock awards are earned over a three-year performance period. If, at the end of the performance
period, the Company’s relative performance:

»  exceeds the “target” performance level, additional shares of stock will be issued to the award recipient;

* is below the “target” performance level, but at or above a “minimum” performance level, only a portion of the shares
of performance-based restricted stock originally issued to the award recipient will vest; or

* is below a “minimum” performance level, none of the shares of performance-based restricted stock originally issued to
the award recipient will vest.

The grant date fair values of the performance-based restricted stock awards are determined using the Monte Carlo simulation
method. The Monte Carlo simulation model produces a risk-neutral simulation of the daily returns on the common stock of
Kemper and each of the other companies included in the peer group. Returns generated by the simulation depend on the risk-
free interest rate used and the volatilities of, and the correlation between, these stocks. The model simulates stock prices and
dividend payouts to the end of the three-year performance period. Total shareholder returns are generated for each of these
stocks based on the simulated prices and dividend payouts. The total shareholder returns are then ranked, and Kemper’s
simulated ranking is converted to a payout percentage based on the terms of the performance-based restricted stock awards. The
payout percentage is applied to the simulated stock price at the end of the performance period, reinvested dividends are added
back, and the total is discounted to the valuation date at the risk-free rate. This process is repeated approximately ten thousand
times, and the grant date fair value is equal to the average of the results from these trials.

Activity related to nonvested performance-based restricted stock for the year ended December 31, 2013 was as follows:

Weighted-
Performance average-

-based Grant-date

Restricted Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Nonvested Balance at Beginning of the Year..........cccceviiririiieniniciciee e 187,075 $ 36.70
GIANTEA ..ottt et e et e ettt e e et e e seateeeateesaaeeesaseesanaeessteeanteesenteesareesenteesreeeas 70,675 42.12
VESTEA ...ttt e e et ettt et e e et e et e e te e teeeteeateeeaeeeteeeteeeaeeaneean (53,118) 33.14
FOTTRILEA ..ottt et ettt et eete e e ta e eaaeeaseeabeenaeeteeaeesteessseeanesanaas (27,832) 39.16
Nonvested Balance at ENd Of PErTOd ..........oocviiiiuiiiieiiiceieeeeee ettt ettt 176,800 $ 39.54

The number of additional shares that would be granted if the Company were to meet or exceed the maximum performance
levels related to the outstanding performance-based shares for the 2013 and 2012 three-year performance periods was 60,150
common shares and 59,775 common shares, respectively, (as “full value awards,” the equivalent of 180,450 shares and 179,325
shares, respectively, under the Share Authorization) at December 31, 2013. For the 2011 three-year performance period, the
Company exceeded target performance levels with a payout percentage of 118%. Accordingly, an additional 9,014 shares of
stock were issued to award recipients on February 1, 2014. For the 2010 three-year performance period, the Company exceeded
target performance levels with a payout percentage of 114%. Accordingly, an additional 6,996 shares of stock were issued to
award recipients on February 2, 2013 (the “2010 Additional Shares”). For the 2009 three-year performance period, the
Company exceeded target performance levels with a payout percentage of 183%. Accordingly, an additional 40,727 shares of
stock were issued to award recipients on January 31, 2012 (the “2009 Additional Shares™).

The total fair value of restricted stock, including the 2010 Additional Shares, that vested during the year ended December 31,
2013 was $4.1 million and the tax benefits for tax deductions realized from the vesting on such restricted stock was $1.4
million. The total fair value of restricted stock, including the 2009 Additional Shares, that vested during the year ended
December 31, 2012 was $4.0 million and the tax benefits for tax deductions realized from the vesting on such restricted stock
was $1.4 million. The total fair value of restricted stock that vested during the year ended December 31, 2011 was $1.4 million
and the tax benefits for tax deductions realized from the vesting on such restricted stock was $0.5 million.
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Activity related to restructuring costs from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 is
presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Liability at the Beginning of Year:

Employee Termination COSTS........ccueruirieeierieiieieriesieeeesiessesseeseessessesseessessessesssessessesseesses $ 26 $ 07 $ 0.6

Early Lease Termination COStS........ccveeeierieririerienieeiteiesiesteetetessesseesesessesseensessesseenns 2.3 1.0 0.1

Other ASSOCIATEA COSES.....eeviriiriieietirieeitete sttt ettt et ettt et b st et sbeeieens — — —
Liability at the Beginning of Year........c.cceverirircieiiniiieierie et 4.9 1.7 0.7
Expenses Incurred:

Employee Termination COSTS......c.ccueririecierierieieriesieetesiessesseeseessessesseesessessesssessessesseesses 1.8 5.1 2.1

Early Lease Termination COStS........ccviveierieririerieniesiieieniesteeteeessesseesesessesneensessesseennes — 2.0 1.4

Other ASSOCIATEA COSES......eviriiriieietirtieitete sttt ettt et ettt et sbesbe et et sbeeaeens — 0.1 0.1
Total EXPenses INCUITEA .........ecuieieierieeiieieieriecieeieie ettt et saesteeeeeseensessesseensessesraennens 1.8 7.2 3.6
Payments of:

Employee Termination COSTS.......ccueririerierieiieieriesieeeestesiesseessessesseeseesessessesssessessesseenses 2.8 3.2 2.0

Early Lease Termination COStS........ccivieieriirieierierieniieienienteetetessesseesessessesneensessesseennes 1.4 0.7 0.5

Other ASSOCIATEA COSES......eviruiriieierierieeitete sttt ettt ettt s besbe et nbe b eaeens — 0.1 0.1
TOtAl PAYIMENLS ...e.vieiieiiitieiieiesie ettt ettt ettt sttt et s teesa et e sbeeseestensessesseensesesseennens 4.2 4.0 2.6
Liability at End of Year:

Employee Termination COSTS........ccueririerierierieierienieeeesiessesseeseessesseeseesessessesssensessesseenses 1.6 2.6 0.7

Early Lease Termination COStS........ccueeeieriririerienieniieienieseeetetesiesseesesessesneensessesseennes 0.9 2.3 1.0

Other ASSOCIATEA COSES ... eevviruiriieierierteeiteteste ettt ettt et ettt ettt et et b eaeens — — —
Liability at ENd OF YEaT......cocviuiieiiiiieiitcietietete ettt $ 25 % 49 $ 1.7
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NOTE 11. INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE

The Company’s awards of restricted common stock contain a right to receive non-forfeitable dividends and participate in the
undistributed earnings with common shareholders. Accordingly, the Company is required to apply the two-class method of

computing basic and diluted earnings per share.

A reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the calculation of Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per
Unrestricted Share and Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share for the years ended December 31,

2013, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

2013 2012 2011

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
Income from Continuing OPErations ............cc.eevuieriieriieriesieiieeteereereereesseesseesseesseessaessseens $ 2145 § 918 § 617
Less Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Restricted Shares..............ccccueeeen. 1.1 0.5 0.3
Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares...........c.ccccecevecnenn. 213.4 913 61.4
Dilutive Effect on Income of Kemper Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares ....... — — —
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares................... $ 2134 $§ 913 §$§ 614
SHARES IN THOUSANDS
Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares Outstanding............ccoceevevverienieeeerieneneeeeniesieseeennes 56,856.9 58,857.3  60,262.6
Kemper Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares .............ccccoovevevieinineceinineennn, 126.7 141.7 103.9
Weighted-Average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming

DIIUEION. c.. ettt sttt ettt 56,983.6 58,999.0 60,366.5
PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE IN WHOLE DOLLARS
Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share..............ccccooveevevenennnen. $ 375 $ 155§ 1.02
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share............cccecvevierirnnnnnen. $ 374 § 154 $ 1.02

Options outstanding to purchase 2.1 million, 2.8 million and 3.3 million shares of Kemper common stock were excluded from
the computation of Kemper Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares and Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares and
Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming Dilution for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively,

because the exercise price exceeded the average market price.
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NOTE 12. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

The components of Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes:

Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Period Year Reclassification

AQJUSTITIENE ...ttt ettt a s et e bt eee st e s e e e e e s s $ (3249) $ 1579 §$§ 2321
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income............cccocverrerirnnnnnen. (37.9) (61.2) (30.9)
Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES).......cccuevuiivieieriiiiierieieiteeteeeeeeesteereessesesveessesesreeseennas (362.8) 96.7 201.2
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Year Before

Reclassification AdJUStMEnt.............ccvevviiiiiieriiiiiiiieieieeie ettt 0.2 1.6 0.4
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income..........ccccccvviiinncnens — — —
Foreign Currency Translation AdjUStMENtS.........cceveeverierieneieierienieeceieie e eeeie e eeeennes 0.2 1.6 0.4
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year............cccccoveneeee. 61.6 (29.4) (53.9)
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs .........cccceeevevirircienienennnen. 25.0 16.2 8.7
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS ........cccovvririerieniineeieriereeceiee e 86.6 (13.2) (45.2)

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes........c.cccoeeeeevieviinieeecienieieennn, $ (276.0) $ 851 $ 1564

The components of Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (Expense) for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011

Income Tax Benefit (Expense):

Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses Arising During the Year Before Reclassification

AQJUSEMENT ..ottt ettt e s et b st et es et b b eas s esnsnesesnanas $ 1159 $§ (559) $ (82.5)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income..........c..coevevinnrnenen. 13.2 21.5 10.9
Unrealized Holding Gains and LOSSES ........ccccvecieriiiieierieniieeeiesieeeeeeresie e 129.1 (34.4) (71.6)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Year Before

Reclassification AdJUSIMENT ........c.ccvecieriirieieieii ettt sre e b e eeeene 0.1) (0.6) 0.1)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.........c..cocccveninccnncn. — — —
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment............c.ceeverierieereeiesieseeeeiesie e 0.1) (0.6) 0.1)
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year..........c..ccccevvvneenen. (21.6) 10.3 19.0
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs........cccoeceevverererienenineennn. 8.8) 5.7 3.1
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS .........cccveviieeeierieiieieienieeeeieie e 30.4) 4.6 15.9

Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (EXPEnse) ..........ccoovvveveeeveivereeiererieereeeeeeene, $ 986 $ (304) $ (55.8)

The components of AOCI at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Unrealized Gains on Investments, Net of Income Taxes:
Available for Sale Fixed Maturities with Portion of OTTI Recognized in Earnings..................c........ $ 03 $ 1.4
Other Net Unrealized Gains on INVESIMENTS.........cc.ccueruieieiieriiiiieieiesieeeeetesie st eeeee e sre e eae e seeesnenes 175.5 408.1
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments, Net of INCOME TaXES.......ccvervirierierienieieienieneeieiese s 0.8 0.7
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs, Net of Income TaXes.........ccceeveeeeievienieneeienienieeiennns (41.3) (97.5)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME ..........ocvecueriirieieieriecieieie ettt senenaens $ 1353 §$ 3127
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Components of AOCI were reclassified to the following lines of the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Reclassification of AOCI from Unrealized Gains and Losses on Available For Sale
Securities to:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENLS..............covovivieeeieeieeeiceeeecee e $ 518 $ 650 $ 350
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ............cceceveveeeecienieneneecieneneenn 13.9) (3.8) 4.1
Total Before INCOME TaXES.......cc.evuiirieieiiiirieeieieiteeteeteete et ese e ese s estesbeeesessesreeseennas 379 61.2 30.9
INCOME TaX EXPENSE ....vveviiieeieiieiiitieieie sttt eie ettt ste s e et eaesseeseessebesteesaensessesseensas (13.2) (21.5) (10.9)
Reclassification from AOCI, Net of InCome Taxes.......occvvveviiveieeiiiieiieieeeiiee e 24.7 39.7 20.0
Reclassification of AOCI from Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit
Costs to:
Interest and Other EXPENSES........ccviuieiiiiiiiieieiiiteeieeieste ettt ettt et v ete et esesveseeennas (25.0) (16.2) 8.7
INCOME TaX BENETIt.....cviiieiieiieieiieiieieie sttt st et enees 8.8 5.7 3.1
Reclassification from AOCI, Net of Income Taxes.........cceevveiieeiieciieieeiieieeereeeeenne (16.2) (10.5) (5.6)
Total Reclassification from AOCI to Net INCOME........coccvevuiririeiiniereeieieeseeeeee e $ 85 § 292 § 144
NOTE 13. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Investment Income:
Interest and Dividends on FiXed Maturiti€s ..........coovevevieieieeieeeeeiee e $ 2355 $ 246.1 $ 246.6
Dividends on EQUItY SECUITHES ...ccuevveruieieriiiiieieiesieeiieie ettt st eeens 38.0 25.7 252
Equity Method Limited Liability INVEStMENts .........cccceveriiriereneniiierieneneeeene e 26.4 9.3 9.6
Short-term INVESTMENES .......ecieieieeieeiieierie ettt ettt ee et esteeseesesbe s e eseessessesseensas 0.1 0.2 0.1
REAL ESTALE .....eeutetieeieiieieciietet ettt st ettt sttt st st et e be b e st e st enbesbeeneenes 20.8 27.4 26.0
L0ans to POICYNOLARTLS ......couveiiiiiriiiieieicieteee e 19.8 18.9 17.7
L0733 1<) O U RPN — 0.1 0.3
Total INVeStMENt INCOME.........ccueviiieiiiieieieereetee ettt ettt s eanens 340.6 327.7 325.5
Investment Expenses:
REAL ESTALE.....evieuieieiieiieieieetteete ettt sttt ettt e sbeese et e nbesteensenbeseeesnenes 18.3 26.1 25.9
Other INVestmMent EXPENSES ........cecuertiriiiiiniiriieieienieeiteie sttt st s 7.6 5.7 1.6
Total INVEStMENT EXPENSES.....eivireieieiieiieieiesiesieetetesteeteessestesseeseessessesseessessessesssessessessessaens 25.9 31.8 27.5
Net INVesStmMEnt INCOMIEC..........ooiviviiiiiiiiiee ettt eeere e e e eeareeeeeetreeeeeetreeeeeennes $ 3147 $ 2959 $ 298.0

Other Receivables includes accrued investment income of $66.7 million and $72.4 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012,

respectively.
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The components of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Fixed Maturities:

GAINS ON SALES.....c.veviviiieiiietieieietitetee ettt ettt b st ebese s tessebese s eseseesesessesessesesessesesnssas $ 309 $ 569 §$§ 142

LL0SSES ON SIS ....eeeuiieiiieiieiieee ettt ettt ettt et st e e e e ere et e et e seeteeneenes 0.4) (0.1) (0.1)
Equity Securities:

GAINS ON SALES......eeiieiiieiieie ettt te st e st e et e et e et e ebeesbeeseebeesteesssesseesssesssesssaesseenseensenn 21.8 8.3 34.0

LLOSSES ON SALES ....euviviivieiieieciieiete ettt e ste sttt e teste et e besteesaessesseeseesaessensesssessensessesseenes 0.5) 0.2) (13.5)
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:

GAINS ON SALES.....eieveiieiieieieeteetesteste et et et e ste et esbesteeteessessesseeseessessesseessessessesssessassesseassans 2.5 — —
Real Estate:

GAINS ON SALES......eeiieiiieiieii ettt ettt et eete et e eteebeesbeebeebeesseessaesseesssesssesssaessesnseessenn 44.2 0.2 0.1
Other Investments:

GAINS ON SALES...c.eeeuieiiitieieieeteetet ettt sttt ettt b et e st e st e e st et et e e st estebesbesbeentebesbeeneens 0.1 — —

LL0SSES ON SIS .....eeuiieiiieiieiieee ettt ettt ettt ettt st e et e e te e et e be et e e ns 0.1) — (0.1)

Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUTIIHIES .....c..everuereeierieriieieienieeeeteieseeseeeeese e eeeeneas 0.6 0.3 0.9)
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS ..........cccevvirieieiiiiiieieieieeeeeeiesre e $ 991 § 654 § 337
GTOSS GAINS ON SALES ....vovvvieiieiieieietiteteit ettt ettt ettt b et sbebese s eseseebesessesesesesenas $ 995 § 654 $ 483
GTOSS LOSSES ON SALES ...eouvieeieiiieeiieeiie ettt ettt ettt st e e e et e et e et e e be e eeeaeens (1.0) 0.3) (13.7)
Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUIILIES .......ecvevuirierierieieierieeieieriesieeeetesteseeeeesie e eenenes 0.6 0.3 (0.9)
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS ..........cccevviiuieieriiriieieieieeeeeeiesre e $ 991 § 654 § 337

The components of Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011

FIXE@A MALUIITIES. ... .cvveveeviveeeeeecteet ettt ettt ettt ettt et ev et et eteete s enseteeae et ensereeseesensenens $ @038 (19 $ (22
EQUILY SECUTTHIES ....veutveeiaieteiieiete ettt ettt b et s s se et ene s et ensesaneesenenis 3.6) (1.9) (1.9)
REAL ESALE ....eutitieiieiieie ittt ettt ettt sttt et e st et e b e e st entenbesbeeseensebesteennens — 3.1 (7.2)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............ccceovevverierieieenieninineseceeeeseeenne $ @139 § (69) $ (11.3)

NOTE 14. INSURANCE EXPENSES

Insurance Expenses for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
COMMIMESSIONS .vecuveteeitetescetetetet ettt te st st et e st ettt eses et ebea e et es e e ebe st s s et eneebeseaeesenessebeneeseneneenencs $ 3457 § 366.1 $ 363.5
General EXPENSES ......c.couirieieiiiiieieiiiietee ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt et 257.1 262.9 270.1
Taxes, LICENSES ANd FEES........oiiviiiiiiiiceiieieee ettt ee e e e eaeeeeaeeeeaaeeenes 42.8 44.7 46.4
Total CoStS INCUITE ....c..iieiiiiiiiiiiiccrct ettt ettt 645.6 673.7 680.0
Policy Acquisition Costs:

DIETRITEA ..ttt ettt (253.4) (266.4) (268.5)

AMOTEZEMA ..ottt ettt sttt ettt ettt a st se et e neneeneas 253.9 257.0 260.7
Net Policy Acquisition Costs Amortized (Deferred)..........ccevieievienieneeieieneeieieece e 0.5 9.4) (7.8)
Life VIF and P&C Customer Relationships AmMOrtized. ...........ccecvevveviereriienieneneeienieneenns 8.3 8.0 11.4
INSUTANCE EXPENSES ...ouvivievierieiieeieiesieeteeeeetestesteestesestesseessessesseeseessassesseessessessesssessessesseeseens $ 6544 § 6723 § 683.6

Commissions for servicing policies are expensed as incurred, rather than deferred and amortized.
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Current and Deferred Income Tax Assets at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Current INCOME TaAX ASSELS.....cccuiiiiuiieeiiieitieeeiee ettt e et e eete e et e e eteeeteeeeatee e taeesbaeesssaeensasessseeesseessseeensseens $ — 3 5.4
Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS.....iiiiiiieiiiiieeieeie et et e ettt e et eeteesteeste e teesaeeetbeeaseesseasseesseesseesseessesseessseses 31.8 6.6
Valuation Allowance for State INCOME TaAXES.......ccceceeriierieiierierie ettt e e e seeessaeseeeeneeens — (6.6)
Current and Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS......cccuiiiieiieiieiieie ettt ettt ettt e reeve v e eveeeaeesaeeeae e $ 318 § 54
The components of Liabilities for Income Taxes at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Current INCOme TaxX LIabIlItIES .........c.oeviveriierieeieeeeietet et ettt ee et eseseeeesessseseseeseseesesenessesensenas $ 15 $ —
Deferred INCOme TaX LIabilItI€S .......eeeviiiiiiieiiecciie ettt et e tae e et e et e e eteeeeereeeebaeesabeeeesveean — 15.1
Unrecognized TaX Benefits........cooiiiiiiiiiiiieieiesieecee ettt st sae st sbesneeneens 6.8 6.4
Liabilities fOr INCOME TaAXES.....cueiiiuiiieriieitiieeciee ettt ettt et e e et et e e et e e eteeeetaeeeeteeeeateeeeseeeesreeeesseeeaseeeesseean $ 83 §$§ 215

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Company’s Net Deferred Income Tax Assets

and Deferred Income Tax Liabilities at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Deferred Income Tax Assets:
TNSUTANCE RESETVES .....evieeiieiiieiieii ettt ettt e e te et e et e et e esbe e st esseesseesssessaessseassesnseansaenseenseenseenseennes $ 764 $§ 793
Unearned Premitm RESEIVES ......c.vecviriiiiiiieieriieiieieieste et eteie sttt st steessesaesseeseessesessesssensesesseessenes 40.2 44.1
Tax Capitalization of Policy AcquiSition COSES.........ccueiririeieiniinieieinienicieceentee et 73.3 73.6
Payroll and Employee Benefit ACCIUALS........c.cceeieieiieriicieieiecie ettt ssaenaens 38.8 79.9
Net Operating Loss CarryfOrWards .........c.eeeeiereririenieniiieiese ettt sttt sttt b b eseenees 53.3 100.7
OTT 1ttt ettt et et et e e teete et e b e e bt et b et e teetteab e beeheesb e b e ebeettentenbeebeestensabeereensenes 12.6 10.7
Total Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS......ccveriiierieriiriieierierteeteeeeteste st etetestesteessessesseeseessessessesseensessesseessenes 294.6 388.3
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities:
IIIVESEIMEIIES. ...ttt ettt ettt e et e et e e st e et e eae e et e e st ese e teesaeesneeeneeenteenbeenseenneensean 80.0 208.4
Deferred Policy ACqUISItION COSES.....couertirierierierieeieieriesieetete st ettetesiesbeestestesseeseestessessesseensessesseennens 106.0 104.1
Life VIF and P&C Customer RelationShips..........cccuviiieiiiiiieiiieiciesiesee e 20.2 25.2
GOOAWIIL ANA LACEINSES ....veveeuiiiietieeieiestteitete it ete ettt eete e stesstenbesbesseessensesseeseensensensesseensensesseensenes 26.8 23.5
DIEPIECIADIE ASSELS .....eeueiiiiieiieii ittt ettt et sb et e e bt bt et et s bt e st et e be e bt et e be s bt sbtente b sbeenten 26.0 29.3
(073 1<) USRI 3.8 6.3
Total Deferred Income Tax Liabilities........cccveruiriirierienieniiiieieriesieeeee et s 262.8 396.8
Valuation Allowance for State INCOME TaAXES.......ccceceerierieriieeierie et eie et ete e e ssee e ssaessnesneeens — 6.6
Net Deferred Income Tax AsSets (LIiabilities)......ccueeververieruirierienieiieieiesieetestesie e etetesse e eeeeaeseesseennens $ 318 $ (15.1)
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Deferred Income Tax Assets include net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards of $53.3 million and $100.7 million at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which include federal NOL carryforwards of $53.3 million and $94.4 million,
respectively, and a state NOL carryforwards of $6.3 million at December 31, 2012. The state NOL carryforwards relate to FAF,
the majority of which are scheduled to expire in 2029. Deferred tax asset valuation allowances of $6.6 million were required at
December 31, 2012 related to these state NOL carryforwards and other deferred state income tax assets. In 2013, the Company
wrote off $6.6 million of deferred state income tax assets that had been previously reserved for in the valuation allowance.

The expiration of the federal net operating loss carryforwards and the related deferred income tax assets is presented below by
year of expiration.

Canl'\lrgr)flarw Deferred

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS ards Tax Asset
Expiring in:

2020 1ttt bttt h e bt ettt h e eh et b e eb e e bt et nb e eheeee et s bt eaeennens $ 19.0 $ 6.7

2021 through 2025 ...ttt bbbttt ettt 32.9 11.5

2026 through 2030 ......ccuieeeieee ettt a e h et et e et st et neenesae e s s 30.0 10.5

2031 through 2032 ..ottt sttt 70.4 24.6

TOLAL AL YEAIS.....eviiieeiii ettt ettt ettt e e et e et e esaa e e e aaeesaseeeaaaeesaaeeeeaseesssaesasseesnsaesesseesneeesnaeeas $ 1523 § 533

Except for the federal NOL carryforwards scheduled to expire in 2031 through 2032, all of the federal NOL carryforwards were
acquired in connection with business acquisitions made in prior years and are subject to annual usage limitations under the
Internal Revenue Code. The Company expects to fully utilize these federal NOL carryforwards.

The Company has not provided Federal income taxes on $14.7 million of Mutual Savings Life’s income earned prior to 1984
which is not subject to income taxes under certain circumstances. Federal income taxes of $5.1 million would be paid on such
income if it is distributed to shareholders in the future or if it does not continue to meet certain limitations.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of Unrecognized Tax Benefits for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011 is as follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Balance at BeZinning 0f YEar.........ccocveveviriiieiieiiiieteieieeteteeee ettt $ 64 $ 62 $ 7.8
Additions (Reductions) for Tax Positions of Current Period .............ccceevevienienieninnienns 0.1 — (1.8)
Additions for Tax Positions Of Prior Years..........cecerievirierienienieieiesieeceieie et 0.3 0.2 0.2

Balance at ENA OF YT .......ooiiiiiiiiiieeiieeeee ettt et enae e s e e snveesenaeean $ 68 $ 64 $ 6.2

The statute of limitations related to Kemper and its eligible subsidiaries’ consolidated Federal income tax returns is closed for
all tax years up to and including 2006. The expiration of the statute of limitations related to the various state income tax returns
that Kemper and its subsidiaries file varies by state.

During the first quarter of 2012, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) began an audit of the Company’s 2009 and 2010 federal
income tax returns. The Company reported a capital loss and a net operating loss in its 2009 federal income tax return and a net
operating loss in its 2010 federal income tax return. The Company has carried these losses back to earlier tax years. Even
though the Company has already received the refunds from carrying these losses back to such earlier tax years, approval by the
Joint Committee on Taxation (“JCT”) is still required by law. The JCT has requested that the IRS perform an audit of these
years before approving the refunds. During the second quarter of 2013, the Company extended the federal statute of limitations
related to its 2007 through 2010 tax years to December 31, 2014. The extension was requested by the IRS to provide additional
time for the IRS to finish processing its audit of the Company’s 2009 and 2010 federal income tax returns and related refund
claims and for the IRS to prepare the necessary documentation for the JCT’s review required by statute. The Company does not
anticipate a material modification to the filed returns or the related refunds that have been received.
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During 2012, the Illinois Department of Revenue began an audit of the 2009 and 2010 tax years. The Company does not
anticipate a material modification to the filed returns.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 include $3.4 million, $3.5 million and $3.7 million,
respectively, for tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the
timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred income tax accounting, other than for interest and penalties, the
disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the effective income tax rate but would accelerate the payment
of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The liability
for Unrecognized Tax Benefits included accrued interest of $3.4 million, $2.9 million and $2.5 million at December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively. Tax expense includes interest expense of $0.4 million related to unrecognized tax benefits for each
of the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

The components of Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Current INCOME TaX EXPENSE ......oovivieeviriierieietetieteteeeesetee et eee ettt s et s s s aees $ 494) $ (433) § 434
Deferred Income Tax Benefit (EXPEnse)........cceveeierieniiriienieninieieienieeieetesie st (50.1) 12.9 352
Decrease (Increase) Unrecognized Tax Benefits........ccvvvvevueririeienienenieieieseseeiese e 0.4) 0.2) 1.6
INCOME TAX EXPENSE. .....ovvivieiieririereiiieteetetetisiet ettt ettt ettt et ebetessesese st eseseebessssesesesenens $ (999) $ (30.6) $ (6.6)

Net income taxes paid were $42.4 million and $52.2 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Income taxes refunded, net of
income tax paid of $57.1 million, were $4.1 million in 2011.

A reconciliation of the Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense and Rate to the Company’s Effective Income Tax Expense and
Rate from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was:

2013 2012 2011

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense..................... $ (110.0) 35.0% $§ (42.8) 35.0% $ (23.9) 35.0%
Tax-exempt Income and Dividends Received

Deduction .....c..coeererienieiriree e 10.6 (3.4 13.9 (11.4) 17.7 (26.0)
State Income Taxes........ceevveerievieeneenienienienieeieee 0.2) 0.1 (0.8) 0.7 (1.0) 1.5
Other, Net......ooeoeirieeeeeeeeee e 0.3) 0.1 (0.9) 0.7 0.6 (1.0)
Effective Income Tax Expense from Continuing

OPEIALIONS ..ttt $ (99.9 31.8% $ (30.6) 25.0% $  (6.6) 9.5%

Comprehensive Income Tax Expense included in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Income Tax Expense:

CONtINUING OPETATIONS ....cuvevierierierierreeeetesteeteetestestesseesessesseeseessessesseessessessesssessessessesssens $ (999 $§ (30.6) $ (6.6)

DiscontinUed OPETAtIONS .......ccueeieierieriieierieniieteiestesttetestesteestetesseeseessesessesseensessesseeneas .7 (7.3) (6.7)
Unrealized Depreciation (Appreciation) on SECUTILIES.......c.evveeieeriierieeriierieseesieeee e eaens 129.1 (34.4) (71.6)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments on INVeStmMents............coceeeeveerieneeeecvenieneennnn 0.1) (0.6) (0.1)
Tax Effects from Postretirement Benefit Plans...........c.ccoooveiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, (30.4) 4.6 15.9
Tax Effects from Long-Term Equity-based Compensation included in Paid-in Capital....... 0.2 0.1) (1.0)
Comprehensive INCOme TaX EXPENSE.......c.ciieriririiriiiieiiiereiiieieeeietesiet ettt ese e $ (8 $ (684) $ (70.1)
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The Company sponsors a qualified defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan). The Pension Plan covers approximately
9,000 participants and beneficiaries, of which 2,400 are active employees. The Pension Plan is generally non-contributory, but
participation requires or required some employees to contribute 3% of pay, as defined, per year. Benefits for participants who
are or were required to contribute to the Pension Plan are based on compensation during plan participation and the number of
years of participation. Benefits for the vast majority of participants who are not required to contribute to the Pension Plan are
based on years of service and final average pay, as defined. The Company funds the Pension Plan in accordance with the
requirements of ERISA.

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Projected Benefit Obligation for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning 0f Year.........cccooerieieiieniniiieiececeeeie et $ 4576 $§ 4413
Actual Return 01 PIAn ASSELS. ....c..ovuiruiiiiriiiieieiesteet ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt s b st e e b sbeeneen 34.5 38.0
EMPIOYET CONTIIDULIONS ... .evvetiieieiieieeieeietesteee et eteeteeetetestesteesbestesseessessessesseessensessesssensesesseensensesseessenes 55.0 —
BENEfitS PAId ..c..vicviiiiieiieiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt e e b e et eeab e et e esbeesbeetaeetaeeteeesaeeraeenraans (22.6) (21.5)
SettleMEnt BENETILS .....iiuiiieiiiicieiesieeeeetese ettt ettt et e e te e b ebesbeese et e sbeereesaebesreeseenes — 0.2)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at ENd of Year.......cccoovivieieriieicieeeceeeee e 524.5 457.6
Projected Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year........ccccoevieiiiniiiniiiinineeeeieceteeeeneeeee e 553.9 499.2
SEIVICE COSE -ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et s ettt s et e b e e st e bt s b e e st eb e eb et e st e bt et et eseebe et et entebenteneeneenens 10.8 10.8
INEETEST COSE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et h ettt b s e bt s b bt st e ae b eaeebesaenneneenes 224 224
Benefits Paid .....ccueiiiiei ettt et e et eebe e te et e e st enee st enneennes (22.6) (21.5)
Settlement BENETILS .......cc.iiiiiiiiiiiicic ettt ettt ettt te e e aa e e ae et e eabeere e beeaeeees — 0.2)
Actuarial LoSSES (GAINS) ....eeviervierieiiieeieeie et et eteeteesteesseesteesseessaesssessseasseasseasseesseesseenssesseesssesssesssenssenns (49.0) 43.2
Projected Benefit Obligation at End of Year........ccoovvirieiiiiiiieies e 515.5 553.9
Funded Status—Plan Assets in Excess (Deficit) of Projected Benefit Obligation..........cccceeceeveriineennens $ 9.0 $ (96.3)
Amount Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income: -
Accumulated ACTUATIAL LOSS .......c..cueeveeveeiericieeeeeete ettt ettt ettt eaeete et eseseeseese s eseeteerensensereeaensensns $ (86.3) § (166.4)
PrIOT SETVICE COSt.uuiuiiiuiiiiitieteti ittt ettt b e bt et b e s bt et e b be e bt et e aesbeebeestenbesbeennens — 0.1
Amount Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME .........ccvevveruereeierierenieieieneeiennns $ (86.3) $ (166.3)
Accumulated Benefit ODIIZAtION .......cecviriiiieieiiiiieeeierteee ettt ettt aessesseesaesessesseessensessessnensens $ 4962 $§ 5313

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year presented in the preceding table under the headings, “2013”
and “2012” were December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.
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The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to estimate the components of the
Projected Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

2013 2012
DISCOUNT RALE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et ekt et s e e b et et e st e b et e e e st e se s e e eseesesseneeneenes 4.90% 4.05%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LeVelS .........ccceeieieiieriinirienienicieieieseeeee et 3.05 3.08
Weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2013 and 2012 by asset category were:
ASSET CATEGORY 2013 2012
Cash and Short-term INVESTMENLTS ..........coiiiiiiiiiirieiee ettt e 8% 12%
Corporate Bonds and NOLES .......c.eceeieiieriiiieieiesteeteierte sttt sttt eee e bt sreestesbessesseessensessesseensensesseensenes 27 33
Common and Preferred STOCKS .......coiiiiriiiiieiiiieeetee ettt s 34 31
EXChange Traded FUNAS........cccooieiiiiieieieeeeeeeees ettt sttt e saesae s esaesbessaessesesreesnenes 22 17
ORET ASSELS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et et b et ebe b s e e ae b st a et bttt ebe b e st enes 9 7

TOTAL ... et 100% 100%

The investment objective of the Pension Plan is to produce current income and long-term capital growth through a combination
of equity and fixed income investments which, together with appropriate employer contributions and any required employee
contributions, is adequate to provide for the payment of the benefit obligations of the Pension Plan. The assets of the Pension
Plan may be invested in fixed income and equity investments or any other investment vehicle or financial instrument deemed
appropriate. Fixed income investments may include cash and short-term instruments, U.S. Government securities, corporate
bonds, mortgages and other fixed income investments. Equity investments may include various types of stock, such as large-
cap, mid-cap and small-cap stocks, and may also include investments in investment companies and Kemper common stock
(subject to Section 407 and other requirements of ERISA). The Pension Plan has not invested in Kemper common stock.

The trust investment committee for the Pension Plan, along with its third party fiduciary advisor, periodically reviews the
performance of the Pension Plan’s investments and asset allocation. Several external investment managers, one of which is
Fayez Sarofim & Co. (“FS&C”) (see Note 24, “Related Parties,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements), manage the equity
investments of the trust for the Pension Plan. Each manager is allowed to exercise investment discretion, subject to limitations,
if any, established by the trust investment committee for the Pension Plan. An independent fiduciary had sole investment
discretion with respect to shares of Intermec common stock contributed by the Company to the Pension Plan in 2011 until such
shares were fully disposed of in 2012. All other investment decisions are made by the Company, subject to general guidelines as
set by the trust investment committee for the Pension Plan.

The Company determines its Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan Assets based primarily on the Company’s
expectations of future returns, with consideration to historical returns, for the Pension Plan’s investments, based on target
allocations of the Pension Plan’s investments.
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Fair value measurements for the Pension Plan’s assets at December 31, 2013 are summarized below:

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUROTIEES 1. reeesseen $ 121 $ — 3 — 3 12.1
States and Political Subdivisions ...........ccccceeveenee — 3.1 — 3.1
Corporate Bonds and NOtes .........cccoeceververernenen. — 127.0 — 127.0
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 4.0 — 4.0
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing .........ceceeeveveerereeneenieneeeeneneennes 97.5 7.8 — 105.3
Other INdUSHIIES ....ocveeeeeeeieeieeieeeeeeeee e 67.2 1.8 — 69.0
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........cccccoeniniennnnnne. 111.7 — — 111.7
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.........cccecevevecininccecnincecne — — 46.9 46.9
Short-term Investments.........ceceveeeecverieneeeenennnnnns 42.6 — — 42.6
Receivables and Other .........c.cooceveeierieneniinienenienene 2.3 — 0.5 2.8
TOtAL .ot $ 3334 § 143.7 $ 474 $ 524.5

Additional information pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Pension Plan’s assets classified as Level 3 for the year

ended December 31, 2013 is presented below:

Other Equity Receivables
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Interests and Other Total
Balance at Beginning of Year........ccoccvevieriiriieiieiereeteieieeeeeeie et $ 269 $ 0.6 $ 27.5
Return on Plan Assets Held.........c.ooooviiiiiiiiiiice e 35 — 35
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, Net..........cccoooieiiiiieeiieieeieeee e 16.5 0.1) 16.4
Balance at December 31, 2013 ....cooioiiiiiiiecieeeee e S 469 $ 05 $ 47.4

102



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Fair value measurements for the Pension Plan’s assets at December 31, 2012 are summarized below:

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AULNOTIHIES .. $ 6.1 $ — 3 — % 6.1
States and Political Subdivisions ...........ccccceeveenee — 3.3 — 33
Corporate Bonds and NOtes .........ccccecevercveriennenenn — 142.7 — 142.7
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 34 — 34
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ........ceeeevveveerereereeneneeeeneneennes 82.2 5.6 — 87.8
Other IndUSHIIES ....ocvveeeveeieeieeieeeeeeee e 48.2 0.7 — 48.9
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........cccccoeveriennnnnne. 79.6 — — 79.6
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships........coeeeevverenenienineneeiencnee — — 26.9 26.9
Short-term Investments.........cccceveeeecverieneeeeniennnnnns 55.8 — — 55.8
Receivables and Other .........cccooceveeievienenieieieneee 2.5 — 0.6 3.1
TOtAl .t $ 2744 $ 1557 $ 275 $ 457.6

Additional information pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Pension Plan’s assets classified as Level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2012 is presented below:

Corporate Other Equity Receivables
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Bonds Interests and Other Total
Balance at Beginning of Year...........ccoceoivveviiiieiiereieeeeseeenna, $ 1.0 $ 372§ 32 % 414
Return on Plan Assets Held ............oooveieviiiiiiiciiiceceeceec e — 1.7 0.1 1.8
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, Net ........ccccceevveviereniecieneninenenn — (12.0) 2.7 (14.7)
Transfers out of Level 3......ccooiiiieiiiiiiiieieee e (1.0) — — (1.0)
Balance at December 31, 2012.......coovviiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeecee e $ — 3 269 $ 06 $ 27.5

The components of Comprehensive Pension (Income) Expense for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Service Cost Earned DUuring the Year........cccoeeeiecierieniiieiericseeeeiesie et $ 108 $ 108 $ 102
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligation............ccvveevierieriieienienieneeieieseeeeese s 22.4 22.4 22.9
Expected Return on Plan ASSEtS........c.cccieeiiiciieiiieiiieiesieseeste ettt es (29.7) (29.8) (24.4)
Amortization Of ACtUATIal LOSS .....cecueruiriieieiiieiieieie ettt enaes 26.2 18.8 9.4
SETIETIIETILS ...ttt ettt ettt st et et bt e bt et et s bt e st et e bt sbeentenbesbeeaeenee — 0.3 —
Pension Expense Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income...........ccceevevieriirniennne 29.7 22.5 18.1
Unrecognized Pension (Gain) Loss Arising During the Year........ccccoocevevevieneninceeneneneenen. (53.8) 34.8 52.4
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized Pension LoOSS.........ccccveveeviienienienieniesieeens (26.2) (18.8) 9.4)
Comprehensive Pension (INCOME) EXPENSE ........ccvoviviiveviieriiiieiiieieiiieieeeeeee e $ (503) $ 385 §$§ 611
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NOTE 16. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

The Company estimates that Pension Expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 will include expense of $9.2 million
resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated actuarial loss included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income at December 31, 2013.

Total Pension Expense Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income as presented in the preceding table includes
service cost benefits earned and reported in discontinued operations of $0.5 million and $0.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The weighted-average discount rate, rate of increase in future compensation levels and expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets used to develop the components of the Pension Expense for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
were:

2013 2012 2011
DISCOUNE RALE ...ttt ettt st 4.05% 4.60% 5.35%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels..........cccccvinerieiinincniiinincneeeneneceenn 3.08 3.27 247
Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan ASSetS..........cevvveeeverienieeeeiienieneeieiesie e 7.00 7.00 7.00

On September 3, 2013, the Company made a voluntary cash contribution of $55.0 million to its defined benefit pension plan.

The Company does not expect that it will be required to contribute to its Pension Plan in 2014, but could make a voluntary
contribution pursuant to the maximum funding limits under ERISA.

On September 14, 2011, the Company made a voluntary contribution of $83.7 million to its defined benefit pension plan. The
contribution consisted of $32.2 million in cash and 7,309,764 shares of Intermec common stock with a fair value of $51.5
million on the date of contribution. On May 23, 2011, the Company requested a waiver from the U.S. Department of Labor
(“DOL”) related to the prohibited transaction rules under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code for the one-time in-kind
contribution of the shares of Intermec common stock. On January 19, 2012, the DOL granted relief, from the prohibited
transaction rules retroactive to September 1, 2011.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Years Ending December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019-2023

Pension Benefits ..........cccccveiiiiiniiiniiiiciie $ 244 § 254 § 267 $ 279 § 291 § 1634

The Company also sponsors a non-qualified supplemental defined benefit pension plan (the “Supplemental Plan). The
unfunded liability related to the Supplemental Plan was $23.3 million and $24.0 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Pension expense for the Supplemental Plan was $1.8 million, $1.8 million and $3.3 million for the years ended
December 31,2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. An actuarial gain of $1.5 million before tax, an actuarial loss of $1.3 million
before tax and an actuarial gain of $2.9 million before tax is included Other Comprehensive Income for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company also sponsors several defined contribution benefit plans covering most of its employees. The Company made
contributions to those plans of $7.3 million, $7.8 million and $7.3 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Under these
plans, the participants have several investment alternatives, including Kemper’s common stock held through the Kemper
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) Fund and the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. FS&C (see Note 24, “Related Parties,” to
the Consolidated Financial Statements) is a sub-investment advisor of the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. The fair value of
participants’ investments in Kemper’s ESOP Fund was $19.3 million, or 5.6% of the total investments in the defined
contribution benefit plans at December 31, 2013. The fair value of participants’ investments in the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund
was $22.5 million, or 6.5% of the total investments in the defined contribution benefit plans at December 31, 2013.
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NOTE 17. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The Company sponsors an other than pension postretirement employee benefit plan (“OPEB”) that provides medical, dental
and/or life insurance benefits to approximately 600 retired and 300 active employees (the “OPEB Plan”). The Company
generally is self-insured for the benefits under the OPEB Plan. The medical plan generally provides for a limited number of
years of medical insurance benefits at retirement based on the participant’s attained age at retirement and number of years of
service until specified dates and generally requires participant contributions, with most contributions adjusted annually.

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
Fair Value of Plan Assets at BEZINNINg 0f YEar.......cccccuerieririeiieriiiieieiesieetet ettt $ — 3 —
EMPloyer CONIIDULIONS .....c.ueeiiiiieiieciieeie ettt ettt et e et e teesaaesaeessaeensessseensesaseanseenseenseesseenseennes 2.9 3.0
Plan Participants’ CONtIIDULIONS. .........ecuerviiieierientieieiesiesteetetestesteeeeesestesreessensesseeseensensessesseensensesseensenes 1.2 1.0
BENE LS PAIA ..c.vvieeiieiieiicieeee ettt ettt ettt e st e s e e b e e tb e e st e e b e enba e beeseensaeetteasaensreenaeans “.1) (4.0)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at ENd Of Y@ar........coeoiiiiiieiiiieeeeeeee e — —
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year.........ccccooeveevienenenenceneniniens 42.8 447
SETVICE COST ..envertiiieniiieeit ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt b e bt et e bt bt e st e s bt s bt e bt et e st e e bt e st et e s bt eb e et e bt sbe e st e bt sbeebeenee 0.2 0.2
INEETEST COSE ..ttt ettt ettt ettt et h et b e s b bt b e s b bt et e bbbt e bt b et eseenes 1.2 1.6
Plan Participants’ CONIIDULIONS. ......cc.eeuirtiririeierieeieetetest ettt sttt ettt ettt et sbe s bt saeentesbesbeennens 1.2 1.0
BeNEIts Paid .....c.oiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt e et e e ae e eteeae e teeeaeeenes “.1) (4.0)
Medicare Part D Subsidy RECEIVE ........couiruiriiriiriieiieieieceeteet ettt st st — 1.0
ACTUATIAL GAINS ...eiieiiieie ettt ettt et et et e e ae e s bt e seesseeeseessseenseenseenseensaenseenseenseesseennnesssennsanns (6.2) (5.5)
Obligations Transferred INt0 PLAN..........cccoiieiiriiiiiieieie ettt e — 3.8
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at End of Year.........ccccooveviiiiinininiiiininenecceens 35.1 42.8
Funded Status—Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation in Excess of Plan Assets.................... $ (351§ 42398
Actuarial Gain Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income..........coceeeevevieneniecveniennne $ 184 § 134

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year in the preceding table under the headings “2013” and “2012”
were December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to develop the components of the
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

2013 2012
DiISCOUNE RALE ....c.viiiiiieiciieccc ettt sttt sttt 4.00% 3.15%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LevVels .........ccccvirieiiininieiiiiiiiniieiesceceeseeeeeseeeenes 2.10 2.10

The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31,
2013 was 8.5% for 2014, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2021 and remaining at that level thereafter for medical
benefits and 8.0% for 2014, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2022 and remaining at that level thereafter for prescription
drug benefits. The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at
December 31, 2012 was 7.0% for 2013, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2017 and remaining at that level thereafter for
medical benefits and 8.5% for 2013, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2020 and remaining at that level thereafter for
prescription drug benefits.

A one-percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would increase the Accumulated
Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2013 by $2.1 million and 2013 OPEB expense by $0.1 million. A one-
percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would increase the Accumulated
Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2012 by $2.8 million and 2012 OPEB expense by $0.1 million.
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NOTE 17. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)

The components of Comprehensive OPEB (Income) Expense for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
Service Cost Earned DUuring the Year..........ccevivveieieiinieieiciicieeeeeteeteeeve e $ 02 $ 02 $ 0.1
Interest Cost on Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation ...........ceccecvevevvrienienenen. 1.2 1.6 1.9
Amortization of Actuarial GaiN.........c.ceceeiierieiierierie e e st seeeenee e 1.2) (1.2) (0.6)
OPEB Expense Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income ..........ccccoecevenenccnnnn. 0.2 0.6 1.4
Unrecognized OPEB (Gain) Loss Arising During the Year........c.ccccceverirvenenenieneneneennen (6.2) (5.5) 4.4
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized OPEB Gain..........cccccceveeeecienienenieieneseenns 1.2 1.2 0.6
Comprehensive OPEB (INCOME) EXPENSE.......c.ouirviviirieiiiereiiieieeieieiisiereiesteieseeseressesessssesenas $ @48 $ @37 S 6.4

The Company estimates that OPEB Expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 will include income of $1.5 million
resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated actuarial gain included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income at December 31, 2013.

The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to develop OPEB Expense for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

2013 2012 2011
DiISCOUNE RALE ...t 3.15% 4.25% 4.40%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels..........cccccoineveiiniinciiinincneieneeeeenn, 2.10 2.10 1.50

The Company expects to contribute $3.7 million, net of the expected Medicare Part D subsidy, to its OPEB Plan to fund benefit
payments in 2014.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Years Ending December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019-2023
Benefit Payments:
Excluding Medicare Part D Subsidy...................... $ 41 $ 42 $ 42 3 41 $ 39 § lo4
Expected Medicare Part D Subsidy ...........c.......... (0.4) 0.4) 0.4) 0.4) 0.4) (2.0)
Net Benefit Payments .........cocccveveveveveveenriirienenerenennns $ 37§ 38 § 38 § 37§ 35 § 144
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NOTE 18. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance businesses.
The Company conducts its operations through four operating segments: Kemper Preferred, Kemper Specialty, Kemper Direct and
Life and Health Insurance.

The Kemper Preferred segment provides preferred and standard risk personal automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and
other personal insurance through independent agents. The Kemper Specialty segment provides automobile insurance to individuals
and businesses in the non-standard market through independent agents. The non-standard automobile insurance market consists
of individuals and companies that have difficulty obtaining standard or preferred risk insurance, usually because of their adverse
driving records or claim or credit histories. The Kemper Direct segment currently distributes personal automobile, homeowners
and renters insurance products through employer-sponsored voluntary benefit programs and other affinity relationships. Prior to
ceasing direct-to-consumer marketing activities in the third quarter of 2012, Kemper Direct also distributed its products directly
to consumers through a variety of direct-to-consumer websites, including its own websites. The Life and Health Insurance segment
provides individual life, accident, health and property insurance.

The Company’s earned premiums are derived in the United States. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Capital expenditures for long-lived assets by operating segment are immaterial.

It is the Company’s management practice to allocate certain corporate expenses, primarily compensation costs for corporate
employees and related facility costs, included in Interest and Other Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income to its
insurance operations. The amount of such allocated corporate expenses was $39.7 million, $31.7 million and $33.0 million for
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company does not allocate Net Realized Gains on Sales
of Investments, Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings, interest expense on debt or postretirement benefit plans, and
actuarial gains and losses on its postretirement benefit plans to its operating segments.

Segment Assets at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012
SEGMENT ASSETS

KeMPET PIEIEITEA ... eouieiiiieeieeee ettt ettt sttt et et e s b et e e aeeaeeseensenbeseeeneenes $ 1,600.9 $ 1,562.0
KeMPET SPECIALLY ...ttt sttt sttt 655.4 684.6

Kemper Direct.......cccoceveveenirenenne. 392.3 4533
Life and Health Insurance 4,545.6 4,781.8
Corporate and Other, Net 462.2 527.4
TOTAL ASSEES ..veeeee ettt ettt et e et eae e e e e e eae e eae e e st eeaeeeae e et e e eaeeeateereeeaeeeneeenn e et e et e e aeeneeereeeneeenes $ 7,656.4 $ 8,009.1

107



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 18. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment Revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
REVENUES
Kemper Preferred:

Earned PremMIUMIS..........ccveierieeiieieiesieeteetetesteetetesteste e e e saessaeseessessesseessessessesssessessesseensas $ 8767 $§ 8794 § 85938

Net Investment INCOME.......c..ooviiiiiiiiiiiieee et st 55.7 45.0 48.8

Other INCOMIE ......oeeeiieiieeieeieee ettt et e e e bt ete e teessaessaesssenssesssaesseenseensenn 0.2 0.4 0.3
Total Kemper Preferred........oooiiieieieeieieeseeeee ettt s enaens 932.6 924.8 908.9
Kemper Specialty:

Earned PremilmS . .......c.ooiviiiiiieiieeie ettt sete et e et e ae e eseeas 392.8 419.8 445.2

Net InVestment INCOME...........eorveriiiieieierieeeeeee ettt st eeeeneas 21.8 19.0 22.8

Other INCOMIE ..ottt e et e be et e e st ese et e essaessaesssesssessseensesnseensenn 0.3 0.3 0.5
Total Kemper SPECIAILY .......ovviriieieieieeieeteee ettt ettt ettt see e e sbesreennens 414.9 439.1 468.5
Kemper Direct:

Earned PremilmsS . .......c.coiuioiiiieiiecie ettt st e ettt e s ns 1234 168.0 222.7

Net InVestment INCOME.........c.couiriirieieieieeieee ettt s eneas 134 13.9 17.4

Other INCOMIE ......ooeuiieiiieie ettt ettt e e e et et e et e e ssaesaeessneessessseenseenseensenn — — 0.1
Total KemMPETr DITECL. ... .c.ieieieriieiieieieeeeteteste ettt ettt te e saesseeseestensessesseensessesseennens 136.8 181.9 240.2
Life and Health Insurance:

Earned PremilmsS . .......c.coiuioiiiiiiiiecie ettt ettt ettt e et e ae et e e ns 632.9 639.9 645.9

Net InVestment INCOME...........coouiriiriiiieieieeeeee ettt s eneas 209.9 204.3 200.5

Other INCOMIE ......oeeuiieiiieiiee ettt ettt e bttt et e te e saesaeessaeessesnsaenseenseensenn 0.2 0.1 0.1
Total Life and Health INSUTANCE .......ccueevieieiieriiiieieie sttt ennens 843.0 844.3 846.5
Total SEZMENt REVEIUES .....c.eevuiriiiiiiiiiiiieieereee ettt sttt e 2,327.3 2,390.1 2,464.1
Net Realized Gains on the Sales of INVEStMENTS ......ccvevvieieieriirieieieeeeeeieie e 99.1 65.4 33.7
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.............ceceeveverieiienieninieiieneneeiese e (13.9) (6.9) (11.3)
ORI ettt ettt et ettt et e te et e b e beete e st et e ebeeraenb e beeseestenbesbeeteensebeereesaens 14.0 13.7 8.5
TOtAl REVEIIUES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt eaeeereeeaeesneeensseneeenseenssenseesaeenneennes $24265 $24623 $2495.0
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Segment Operating Profit for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
SEGMENT OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS)
KemPEr PIEfeITed ......c.voveviieiieiiieiiieieiiietet ettt ettt es et s b s s sessesens $ 877 $ (28.00 $ (40.6)
KeMPET SPECTALLY ..vvviuviiiieieiesieeeteiet ettt ettt ettt et et e sa e s e sbeeseestessessesssessessesreessans 12.3 (2.8) 24.2
KEMPET DIFECT ..ttt ettt sttt ettt et et e sae e st eneenbesbesseensenbesseennans 39.6 4.8) (47.2)
Life and Health INSUTANCE .........coeiiiiieiieiieieeieeit et es 136.9 140.4 152.3
Total Segment Operating Profit........cceeieierierinieieiecit ettt esnens 276.5 104.8 88.7
Corporate and Other Operating LOSS......ccccecveriiririerieriiniieieriesieetete ettt 47.3) (40.9) (42.8)
Total OPerating Profit........c.ccciiieieiieriieieieiese ettt ettt ve et ebe b e ssaessesbesraesnens 229.2 63.9 45.9
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS ..........cceveririenieninieieieseeeeiee e 99.1 65.4 33.7
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........cceceevevereriiinenininiienenenieneneeeenn 13.9) (6.9) (11.3)
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes ........ccecveveeeerienieneniecienieneennns $ 3144 $§ 1224 $ 683
Segment Net Operating Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
SEGMENT NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
KempPer PreferTed ......ooviiiiiiiiiieeeceeeee ettt e te bbb et esb e beeaeenaas $ 631 § (11.2) $ (17.6)
KEMPET SPECIAILY ....vevviiieeieieitt ettt ettt ettt sttt et e besaeesaensesseeseensensesseennenes 10.4 1.2 19.8
KEMPET DITECE ...ttt ettt b ettt s bt et e e besbeenean 27.1 0.9) (27.5)
Life and Health INSUTANCE .........ecveieriieiieieiesiececteie ettt ve et re s essesbe e esnens 89.3 90.8 98.9
Total Segment Net Operating INCOME ........ccuevuiririeriiiieieiereseeteste ettt eneens 189.9 79.9 73.6
Unallocated Net Operating LOSS ...cc.ceouereririirininieieneeiteteseseet ettt 30.7) (26.1) (26.5)
Consolidated Net Operating INCOME .......cccecvervirieiierieniieiieierieeeeeesee et eteseseeseeese e sreennens 159.2 53.8 47.1
Net Income (Loss) From:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS .......ccvevveecieriiiieieieieeeeieiesre e eeeae e eeeennas 64.4 425 21.9
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings..........coccoovvvvevienieneerienieneneeieiese e “.1) 4.5) (7.3)
Income from Continuing OPEratioNS...........cceeruereeuerreriereeneeeeeseeeereeteeeneeseseesseeesessesseneesenes $ 2145 § 918 $ o617

Amortization of Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs by Operating Segment for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011

KEmPETr PIEfErTed ......c.oviiiviiiieiiieieiiietetet ettt ettt ettt et b s sens $ 1483 $§ 1478 $ 1444
KeMPET SPECIAILY ...uvieiieiieie ettt st e et et e e et eeseeseennaens 54.3 58.7 62.6
KEMPET DIFECT ..ttt ettt sttt et be et e b e sbe e st entensassesseensensesseennans 4.6 6.1 8.8
Life and Health INSUTANCE .........eeeiiiiiiiieiieieeie ettt be e ebaesbeennaees 46.7 44 .4 44.9

TOtal ATNOTTIZATION. .......viieieieie ettt et e et e e e seeeeaaesaae et e eeeeseeseeesneennes $ 2539 $ 257.0 $ 260.7

109



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 18. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

Earned Premiums by product line for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011
EARNED PREMIUMS
L0 ettt bbbt h e it et b e h e et e e be s bt et et beenten $ 3927 § 3934 § 3951
Accident and Health ..........ccooouioiieieieiececcee ettt enaas 161.4 165.2 166.3
Property and Casualty:
Personal Lines:
AULOMODILE ...ttt ettt st et e b et e eaeeseesesseesesseensensesseennens 959.1 1,050.1 1,129.4
HOIMEOWIIETS ....cuevieiiiiiiiteiteie sttt sttt ettt s besaeentenbesbeennens 326.2 318.0 304.1
Other PerSONaAl........cccviiiiiieieiiiiiieiesiesieeeetete sttt ettt e saesteeseesessesseessensessesseensans 134.1 136.9 138.7
Total Personal LLINES .........ccovveieviiieiiiiiee ettt ere et ete e e e eaveeeeaeeeeaneeennas 1,419.4 1,505.0 1,572.2
Commercial AULOMODILE........ccocuieiiiiieiieeie ettt eea e s aeebeebeennees 52.3 43.5 40.0

Total Earned Premiums

NOTE 19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

......................................................................................................... $ 2,025.8

$ 2,107.1

$2,173.6

The Company accounts for Kemper’s subsidiary, FAF, and the Company’s former Unitrin Business Insurance operations as

discontinued operations.

Summary financial information included in Income from Discontinued Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013,

2012 and 2011 is presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2013 2012 2011
Interest, Loan Fees and Earned DISCOUNTS..........ocveeeveeeuieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeaeeere e e $ — 3 — 3 31.8
Other Automobile Finance ReVENUES...........cccociiieieiiiiieieieceeeeeese et — — 1.4
Gain on Sale of Loan Portfolios .........cccovieieriiiiieienecieeieceeeeesc et — 12.9 4.5
Total Automobile Finance ReVENUES...........ccecivvirieieiiieieieieeeee s — 12.9 37.7
Net Investment INCOME........cciiiiiiiiiiiieicee ettt — — 0.5
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS ........ccceviririenieniiiieieiereeeeiee e — — 0.4
Total Revenues Included in Discontinued Operations..............ccceeevevreereeeerienieeeereenresreennens $ — 8 129 § 386
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes:

RESUILS OF OPETAtIONS .......c.eevvieeeeeeeeetceeeeetcee ettt ettt eaeee e eees $ — 3 02) $ 187

Gain on Sale of Loan Portfolios........cccceeieieriiniiieieeseceeieeeeeeee e — 12.9 4.5

Change in Estimate of Retained Liabilities Arising from Discontinued Operations.. 4.9 6.2 3.7
Income from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes..........ccceeeeceevierieeeecienieireennns 4.9 18.9 19.5
INCOME TaX EXPENSE....cvicvieeieieiieiieteiesteeitesie et eitestesteestetesteeeeessessesseeseensessesseessensesseannans .7 (7.3) (6.7)
Income from Discontinued OPerations............c.cccueevieriierieeriieniieriesieeeeeaeeeeeseeseesseesseesnas $ 32 § 11.6 $ 12.8

Income from Discontinued Operations Per Unrestricted Share:
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NOTE 19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

During 2011, FAF sold its active portfolio of automobile loan receivables at a gain of $4.5 million, net of transaction and other
costs, while retaining its inactive portfolio of loans that had been previously charged-off (the “Inactive Portfolio”). The Inactive
Portfolio was not carried on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. During 2012, FAF sold $283 million of loans in the
Inactive Portfolio at a gain of $12.9 million, net of transaction, shutdown and other costs of $13.3 million, of which $1.0
million was unpaid at December 31, 2013.

In 2008, the Company sold its Unitrin Business Insurance operations. The Company retained Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves for unpaid insured losses that occurred prior to the date of the sale. Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves reported
in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets include $82.0 million and $99.2 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, for the retained liabilities. In accordance with GAAP, changes in the Company’s estimate of such retained
liabilities after the sale are reported as a separate component of the results of discontinued operations. See Note 5, “Property
and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

NOTE 20. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE

Catastrophes and natural disasters are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events
and natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and
winter storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and will continue to be, a material factor in the results of operations
and financial position of the Company’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of these insured
losses occurring in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses may contribute to material year-to-year
fluctuations in the results of operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more
likely to occur at certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty
insurance claims. The Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events
promulgated by ISO to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when the event
causes $25.0 million or more in direct insured losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers.
ISO-classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions
that follow utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in certain regions, and reinsurance. To limit
its exposures to catastrophic events, the Company maintains various catastrophe reinsurance programs for its property and
casualty insurance businesses.

Coverage for each catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 is provided in various
layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses and

Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Kemper Preferred, Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty Segments:

RELAINEA ...ttt $ — 3 50.0 —%

1St Layer Of COVETAZE. .....c.evieieiertieieieieeieetete ittt ettt sttt stesbe et esessesseeneensenae e 50.0 100.0 65.0

20d Layer Of COVETAZE ...c..cevveruiriieieieniieiieiesie ittt ettt sttt sbe e e 100.0 200.0 95.0

3rd Layer OF COVETAZE ....cvevveereeeieieieetieeieiesieeeete e steessesesteereestesessesseensesesseesnensenes 200.0 350.0 90.0

4th Layer Of COVEIAZE ....ceveierieiieietieieetete sttt sttt ettt ettt sae et et sae e ense e 350.0 450.0 50.0

The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Kemper Preferred segment in 2013 also included reinsurance coverage, under a
policy that expired on June 1, 2013, for catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than those presented in the
preceding table. The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Life and Health Insurance and Kemper Direct segments in 2013
also included reinsurance coverage from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described
above.
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Coverage for each catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 is provided in various
layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses and

Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Kemper Preferred, Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty Segments:

REEAINEA ...ttt ettt ettt ae e $ — 3 50.0 —%

1St Layer Of COVETAZE.....c.cevveteruieieieitieiieie sttt ettt sttt sttt be st et aesbe b nee b e 50.0 100.0 65.0

21d LaYer OFf COVETAZE ...ecvvevevievieieieitieieie st eteetesteeteeseesesseeseessessessesseessessesseessensens 100.0 200.0 95.0

30d Layer Of COVETAZE ....cverveeuieeieieieeiieieie st eitete st siee e ste st seeetestesseeneensesaesneensenaenee 200.0 350.0 90.0

4th Layer Of COVEIAZE ....eouveiiriiriieieierieeitete ettt ettt ettt ettt st sbeesaeae 350.0 450.0 50.0
Life and Health Segment—Property Insurance Operations:

RETAINEA ...ttt $ — $ 8.0 —%

1St Layer Of COVETAZE.......ieuieeieiieiieeiieeiie ettt ettt et e st e st eseeesateeneeenseenseenseens 8.0 15.0 70.0

20d Layer OFf COVETAZE ....cververueeeieierieeiieieiesteeitete sttt ete e st enteaesteeaeeneenbesreeneensenseas 15.0 40.0 70.0

The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Kemper Preferred segment in 2012 also included reinsurance coverage for
catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than those presented in the preceding table. The catastrophe reinsurance
program for the Life and Health Insurance and Kemper Direct segments in 2012 also included reinsurance coverage from the
FHCEF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described above.

Coverage for each catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 is provided in various
layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE

Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Kemper Preferred Segment:

RELAINEA . vttt ettt b ettt ettt b bbb e e s s besetenas $ — $ 50.0 —%

1St Layer Of COVETAZE.....c.cevveieruieieierieeiieieste sttt sttt st ettt sttt sbesaeenee b e 50.0 100.0 65.0

20d LaYer OFf COVETAZE ...eevvevveerieiieieriieiieieie st eteetestesteeseessesseeseessessessesssessessesseessensens 100.0 200.0 95.0

3rd Layer of Coverage 200.0 350.0 90.0
Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty Segments:

REEAINE ..ttt sttt bbb $ — 3.0 —%

ISt Layer Of COVEIAZE. ...c..oeiuiriiieiiiiirieieiieiesteteitete ettt ettt 3.0 16.0 100.0
Life and Health Segment—Property Insurance Operations:

RETAINEA ...ttt $ — $ 8.0 —%

1St Layer Of COVETAZE....c.vievievieiieiieeiieeiieetesteeteeteebe et e seesseestaessaeseseessesnseanseenseens 8.0 15.0 70.0

20d Layer OFf COVETAZE ...eveveerieeieierieeiieieiestteitete st et eaestesteesaesessesseensensesseeseensensens 15.0 40.0 100.0

The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Kemper Preferred segment in 2011 also included reinsurance coverage for
catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than those presented in the preceding table. The catastrophe reinsurance
program for the Life and Health Insurance and Kemper Direct segments in 2011 also included reinsurance coverage from the
FHCEF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described above.

In the event that the Company’s incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered by any of its catastrophe reinsurance programs
presented in the three preceding tables exceed the retention for that particular layer, each of the programs required one
reinstatement of such coverage. In such an instance, the Company is required to pay a reinstatement premium to the reinsurers
to reinstate the full amount of reinsurance available under such layer. The reinstatement premium is a percentage of the original
premium based on the ratio of the losses in excess of the Company’s retention to the reinsurers’ coverage limit.
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Reinsurance premiums for the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs, the Kemper Preferred NC Program and
the FHCF Program reduced earned premiums for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 by the following:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011

KemPer PIrEfeITed ........oveuiieiieiiieiiieieiiietet ettt ettt ettt es bt be b s s s $ 232 § 246 $ 200
KeMPET SPECIALLY ..vvvenviiiieiieiecieeieeteteee ettt ettt et te e e s e sseeseessessessesssessesesreesnens 0.1 0.1 0.1
KEMPET DIFECT ..ttt sttt ettt ettt et e b e be e st entenbesbesseensenbesreennens 0.3 0.4 0.8
Life and Health INSUTANCE ......cc.eeueiiiiiiriiiiiieiiieetee ettt — 2.0 23
Total Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premiums..........ooveeveeveeieeienienieeeeiienieneeeeeesie e $ 236 $ 271 §$§ 232

Catastrophe losses and LAE (including reserve development), net of reinsurance recoveries, for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 by business segment are presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2012 2011

KemPer PIEfErTed ......ccuiiuiiieieiicicieee ettt ettt ve et b e b seaesbesbesreesnens $ 292 § 992 § 1387
KeMPET SPECIALLY ..ottt ettt et este e st et esbe s b e sseensebesreennens 3.7 4.9 3.9
KEMPET DITECE ...ttt bttt b ettt sb et e e b bt eneen 1.7 8.0 7.2
Life and Health INSUANCE ......c..oouiieiiiiiiiieiceesee et 1.6 6.1 7.6
Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........ccccocoiiiiiiiniiiiieieieeeeieseeceteee e $ 362 § 1182 $ 1574

Total Catastrophe loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables, developed favorably by $14.5 million, $6.3 million
and $6.4 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Kemper Preferred segment reported favorable catastrophe reserve
development of $11.9 million, $6.2 million and $5.5 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Life and Health
Insurance segment reported favorable catastrophe reserve development of $2.0 million and $1.5 million in 2013 and 2011,
respectively, and adverse catastrophe reserve development of $0.1 million in 2012.

In late October 2012, Superstorm Sandy, at one point a level two hurricane while over the Atlantic Ocean, caused a significant
amount of damage in several northeastern states. Catastrophe losses and LAE for the year ended December 31, 2012 include $48.5
million related to Superstorm Sandy, of which $44.0 million is included in the Kemper Preferred segment.

In the second quarter of 2011, the United States experienced a high volume of spring storms, including a record level of
tornadoes in April. In the third quarter of 2011, the Company incurred claims related to Hurricane Irene. Catastrophe losses and
LAE for the year ended December 31, 2011 include $23.0 million related to Hurricane Irene, of which $22.1 million is included
in the Kemper Preferred segment.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of actual reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. The Company’s
estimates of direct catastrophe losses are generally based on inspections by claims adjusters and historical loss development
experience for areas that have not been inspected or for claims that have not yet been reported. The Company’s estimates of
direct catastrophe losses are based on the coverages provided by its insurance policies. The Company’s homeowners and
dwelling insurance policies do not provide coverage for losses caused by floods, but generally provide coverage for physical
damage caused by wind or wind driven rain. Accordingly, the Company’s estimates of direct losses for homeowners and
dwelling insurance do not include losses caused by flood. Depending on the policy, automobile insurance may provide coverage
for losses caused by flood. Estimates of the number and severity of claims ultimately reported are influenced by many
variables, including, but not limited to, repair or reconstruction costs and determination of cause of loss that are difficult to
quantify and will influence the final amount of claim settlements. All these factors, coupled with the impact of the availability
of labor and material on costs, require significant judgment in the reserve setting process. A change in any one or more of these
factors is likely to result in an ultimate net claim cost different from the estimated reserve. The Company’s estimates of indirect
losses from wind pools and joint underwriting associations are based on a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, actual
or estimated assessments provided by or received from such entities, insurance industry estimates of losses, and estimates of the
Company’s market share in the assessable states. Actual assessments may differ materially from these estimated amounts.
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NOTE 21. OTHER REINSURANCE

In addition to the reinsurance programs described in Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide
greater diversification of risk and to minimize exposures on larger risks. The ceding of insurance does not discharge the primary
liability of the original insurer. Accordingly, insurance reserve liabilities are reported gross of any estimated recovery from
reinsurers in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with
the insurance reserve liability and are included in Other Receivables in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Earned Premiums ceded on long-duration and short-duration policies were $33.9 million, $42.5 million and $40.7 million for
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Certain insurance subsidiaries assume business from other
insurance companies and involuntary pools. Earned Premiums assumed on long-duration and short-duration policies were $52.7
million, $44.0 million and $43.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Trinity and Capitol are parties to a quota share reinsurance agreement whereby Trinity assumes 100% of the business written by
Capitol. Earned Premiums assumed by Trinity from Capitol were $22.4 million, $25.0 million and $27.9 million for the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Capitol is a mutual insurance company and, accordingly, is owned by
its policyholders. In the second quarter of 2012, Capitol requested regulatory approval to amend such agreement with Trinity,
effective April 1, 2012, whereby ceded losses for dwelling coverage were capped. In the third quarter of 2012, Capitol received
such regulatory approval. Incurred losses and LAE assumed by Trinity were reduced by $2.6 million in the third quarter of
2012 in conjunction with such amendment. Trinity and ORCC, a subsidiary of Capitol, are also parties to a quota share
reinsurance agreement whereby prior to 2013, Trinity assumed 100% of the business written by ORCC. Earned Premiums
assumed by Trinity from ORCC were $7.2 million, $8.2 million and $9.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively. In the second quarter of 2013, ORCC received regulatory approval to amend its agreement with Trinity,
effective January 1, 2013, whereby Trinity continues to assume 100% of the business written by ORCC, subject to a cap for
ceded losses for dwelling coverage.

Five employees of the Company serve as directors of Capitol’s five member board of directors. Nine employees of the
Company also serve as directors of ORCC’s nine member board of directors. Kemper’s subsidiary, United Insurance, provides
claims and administrative services to Capitol and ORCC. In addition, agents appointed by Kemper’s subsidiary, The Reliable
Life Insurance Company, and who are employed by United Insurance, are also appointed by Capitol and ORCC to sell property
insurance products for the Company’s Life and Health Insurance segment. The Company also provides certain investment
services to Capitol and ORCC.
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The Company classifies its Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities as available for sale and reports these
investments at fair value. The Company classifies certain investments in mutual funds included in Other Investments as trading
securities and reports these investments at fair value. The Company has no material liabilities that are measured and reported at
fair value.

The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2013 is
summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUhOTIEIES ... $ 121.2  $ 241.0 $ — 3 362.2
States and Political Subdivisions ..........c.c...ccueeene. — 1,361.0 — 1,361.0
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOLES..........oovvveviiiiiiiiieeiiiieeeeinns — 2,429.6 364.1 2,793.7
Redeemable Preferred Stocks..........ccceveeuenen. — — 7.4 7.4
Mortgage and Asset-backed..........ccceecveniennenne. — 1.5 49.2 50.7
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities........................ 121.2 4,033.1 420.7 4,575.0
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 80.8 5.0 85.8
Other IndUStIIeS ....ocveeveeieieieeieieeeeee e — 10.5 13.9 24.4
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ........coeceevververeeeervenieseeceenseneeenns 95.1 7.3 2.2 104.6
Other IndUStIES ....ovevveeieieieeieiecceee e 71.7 2.2 11.0 84.9
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........ccccceovvvniennnnnne. 124.9 — — 124.9
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships........oceeeveveereeeecieneneeieieneeene — — 173.9 173.9
Total Investments in Equity Securities ...................... 291.7 100.8 206.0 598.5
Other Investments:
Trading SECUTItIes .....ccvevveeeerieriirieieiesieeee e 5.0 — — 5.0
TOtAL i $ 4179 $ 4,1339 § 626.7 $ 5,178.5

At December 31, 2013, the Company had unfunded commitments to invest an additional $121.1 million in certain limited
liability companies and limited partnerships that are reportable as Other Equity Interests.
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The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2012 is
summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AULNOTIHES <.t ee e eeeee e $ 1358 $ 2031 § — 3 428.9
States and Political Subdivisions ..........cc.cccceuvenn. — 1,401.4 — 1,401.4
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOLES.......c...oeveveveieiieiieeeeceieeee e — 2,632.4 361.0 2,993.4
Redeemable Preferred Stocks.........ccccecveuenneee. — 27.9 4.7 32.6
Mortgage and Asset-backed...........cocceceeninenne. — 3.8 0.1 3.9
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities .............ccuo...... 135.8 4,358.6 365.8 4,860.2
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 79.2 — 79.2
Other INdUSHIIES ....cvveeeveeereeieeie e — 15.3 6.0 21.3
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ........ceeceeevereereereerveneneeeeneneennes 79.6 6.0 1.9 87.5
Other INdUSHIIES ...coveeeereeieeieeeeeeeeee e 60.1 1.2 5.4 66.7
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........ccccooeveriennnnnne. 125.9 — — 125.9
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.......ccoeeeeveveneniienenenceencnee — — 141.3 141.3
Total Investments in Equity Securities ...................... 265.6 101.7 154.6 521.9
Other Investments:
Trading SeCUrities .......cceevvrerieeriierierre e e 4.5 — — 4.5
TOtAl i $ 4059 § 44603 $ 5204 $ 5,386.6

The Company’s investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 1 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of
U.S. Treasury Bonds and Notes. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 1 in the two
preceding tables consist of either investments in publicly-traded common stocks or exchange traded funds. The Company’s
investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 2 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of investments in
corporate bonds and redeemable preferred stocks, states and political subdivisions, and bonds and mortgage-backed securities
of U.S. government agencies. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 2 in the two
preceding tables primarily consist of investments in preferred stocks. The Company uses a leading, nationally recognized
provider of market data and analytics to price the vast majority of the Company’s Level 2 measurements. The provider utilizes
evaluated pricing models that vary by asset class and incorporate available trade, bid and other market information. Because
many fixed maturity securities do not trade on a daily basis, the provider’s evaluated pricing applications apply available
information through processes such as benchmark curves, benchmarking of like securities, sector groupings, and matrix pricing
to prepare evaluations. In addition, the provider uses model processes to develop prepayment and interest rate scenarios. The
pricing provider’s models and processes also take into account market convention. For each asset class, teams of its evaluators
gather information from market sources and integrate relevant credit information, perceived market movements and sector news
into the evaluated pricing applications and models. The Company generally validates the measurements obtained from its
primary pricing provider by comparing them with measurements obtained from one additional pricing provider that provides
either prices from recent market transactions or quotes in inactive markets or evaluations based on its own proprietary models.
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The Company investigates significant differences related to the values provided. On completion of its investigation,
management exercises judgment to determine the price selected and whether adjustments, if any, to the price obtained from the
Company’s primary pricing provider would warrant classification of the price as Level 3. In instances where a measurement
cannot be obtained from either pricing provider, the Company generally will evaluate bid prices from one or more binding
quotes obtained from market makers to value investments in inactive markets and classified by the Company as Level 2. The
Company generally classifies securities when it receives non-binding quotes or indications as Level 3 securities unless the
Company can validate the quote or indication against recent transactions in the market. For securities classified as Level 3, the
Company either uses valuations provided by third party fund managers, third party appraisers, the Company’s own internal
valuations or net asset values provided for Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships. These valuations typically
employ various valuation techniques, including earnings multiples based on comparable public securities, comparable market
yields as well as industry specific non-earnings based multiples or discounted cash flow models. Valuations classified as Level
3 by the Company generally consist of investments in various private placement securities of non-rated entities. In rare cases, if
the private placement security has only been outstanding for a short amount of time, the Company, after considering the initial
assumptions used in acquiring an investment, considers the original purchase price as representative of the fair value.

The majority of Investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 3 are priced using a market yield approach. A
market yield approach uses a risk-free rate plus a credit spread depending on the underlying credit profile of the security. For
floating rate securities, the risk free rate used in the market yield is the contractual floating rate of the security. For each
individual security, the Company or the Company’s third party appraiser gathers information from market sources, relevant
credit information, perceived market movements and sector news and determines an appropriate market yield for each security.
The market yield selected is then used to discount the estimated future cash flows of the security to determine the fair value.
The Company separately evaluates market yields based upon asset class to assess the reasonableness of the recorded fair value.
For Investments in Fixed Maturities, corporate bonds and notes makes up the majority of the Company’s investments classified
as Level 3. For corporate bonds and notes, the primary asset classes are investment grade private placements, non-investment
grade senior debt, non-investment grade junior debt and other debt. Non-investment grade senior debt includes those securities
that receive first priority in a liquidation and non-investment grade junior debt includes any fixed maturity security with other
than first priority in a liquidation.

The table below presents quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs utilized by the Company in
determining fair values for investments in corporate bonds and notes classified as Level 3 at December 31, 2013.

Weighted
Unobservable Total Range of Unobservable Average
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Input Fair Value Inputs Yield
Investment Grade..........cocerveeiecierieniieieienie e Market Yield $ 108.5 1.0% - 6.0% 4.3%
Non-investment Grade:
SeNIOr DEbt .....ovieiciieiieieciieeece e Market Yield 93.9 42 - 156 8.6
JUNIOT DEDL....c.eeeeieiiciicecceeee e Market Yield 153.5 88 - 26.6 14.2
Oher DEDL .....voveeieiieiiieeee ettt Various 8.2
Bonds and Notes Classified as Level 3.........cccccevveveeieceeiennnne. $ 364.1

The table below presents quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs utilized by the Company in
determining fair values for investments in corporate bonds and notes classified as Level 3 at December 31, 2012.

Weighted
Unobservable Total Range of Unobservable Average
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Input Fair Value Inputs Yield
Investment Grade..........c.oceveeieierieiieieienieeeeeeee e Market Yield $§  94.6 1.3% - 6.3% 4.0%
Non-investment Grade:
SeNIOr DEDt ...t Market Yield 71.7 57 - 18.0 9.1
JUNIOT DEbL....ceveeiiiiciieiee e Market Yield 173.2 88 - 214 14.8
Other DEDL ......voieeieiieiiieeee e Various 15.5
Bonds and Notes Classified as Level 3..........ccccevvevvevecieiennnne. $ 361.0
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For an investment in a fixed maturity security, an increase in the yield used to determine the fair value of the security will
decrease the fair value of the security. A decrease in the yield used to determine fair value will increase the fair value of the
security, but the fair value increase is generally limited to par if the security is currently callable.

Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2013 is presented below:

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities
Corporate Preferred
Bonds Redeemable Mortgage and Other
and Preferred and Asset- Common Equity
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes Stocks backed Stocks Interests Total
Balance at Beginning of Year............ccccou..... $ 3610 $ 47 § 0.1 $ 133 $§ 1413 § 5204
Total Gains (Losses):
Included in Consolidated Statement of
INCOME ..o, (7.9) 0.2 0.3 (1.0) (1.6) (10.0)
Included in Other Comprehensive Income. (7.8) 1.3) (0.1) 4.6 5.6 1.0
Purchases.........cccoeveieieniecieieeeeeeeeee 145.1 5.1 48.6 15.9 55.4 270.1
Settlements.........c..ccceeevieeieiieiieeieeie e (123.2) 1.3) (0.1) — (26.8) (151.4)
SAlES .ot 0.1) — (2.0) 0.7) — 2.8)
Transfers into Level 3 .......cccoevevinieieienienene 5.8 — 2.4 — — 8.2
Transfers out of Level 3 ......cc.coovvveivieeninenen. (8.8) — — — — (8.8)
Balance at End of Year.........cccccooeeveveiennnnen. $ 3641 § 74 $ 49.2 § 321§ 1739 §  626.7

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels as of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers
between Levels 1 and 2 or Levels 1 and 3 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The transfers into Level 3 and out of Level 3
for the year ended December 31, 2013 were due to changes in the availability of market observable inputs.

Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2012 is presented below:

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities
Corporate Preferred
Bonds Redeemable Mortgage and Other
and Preferred and Asset- Common Equity
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes Stocks backed Stocks Interests Total
Balance at Beginning of Year.............c.c.......... $ 2351 % 6.1 $ 03 $ 135 §$ 931 § 348.1
Total Gains (Losses):
Included in Consolidated Statement of
Income .......coeviviiiiiii 4.0 0.4) — 3.2 — 6.8
Included in Other Comprehensive Income. 1.4 0.5 — (1.3) 8.3 8.9
Purchases.........cccoeveeieienieseeeeeeseeeeee 199.7 0.1 — 1.6 52.0 2534
Settlements........cccoveeierereeeeieieseeeeee e (73.1) (1.6) (0.2) — (12.1) (87.0)
SAlES oot 0.9 — — 3.7 — (4.6)
Transfers into Level 3 .......ccceevvvienieieiienennne 0.9 — — — — 0.9
Transfers out of Level 3 .......ccccoeiiiiiiiienins 6.1) — — — — (6.1)
Balance at End of Year...........ccccoovevecvenennene. $ 3610 $ 47 $ 0.1 $ 133 § 1413 $ 5204

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels as of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers
between Levels 1 and 2 or Levels 1 and 3 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The transfers into Level 3 and out of Level 3
for the year ended December 31, 2012 were due to changes in the availability of market observable inputs.
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The fair value of Notes Payable is estimated using quoted prices in markets that are not active. The inputs used in the valuation
are considered Level 2 measurements. The fair value of Short-term Investments is estimated using inputs that are considered
Level 1 or Level 2 measurements.

NOTE 23. CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of its businesses, the Company is involved in legal proceedings, including lawsuits, regulatory
examinations and inquiries. Except with regard to the matters discussed below, based on currently available information, the
Company does not believe that it is reasonably possible that any of its pending legal proceedings will have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Over the last several years, certain state insurance regulators, legislators, treasurers/controllers, and their respective agents have
been involved in an array of initiatives that seek, in various ways, to impose new duties on life insurance companies to
proactively search for deaths of their insureds and contact the insureds’ beneficiaries even though such beneficiaries may not
have submitted claims, including due proof of death, as required under the terms of state-approved life insurance policy forms.

Legislation has been enacted in Kentucky, Maryland, Montana, Nevada, New York, North Dakota and Vermont, with varying
effective dates (the “DMF Statutes™), that requires life insurance companies to compare on a regular basis their records for all
in-force policies (including those policies issued prior to the effective dates of the legislation) against the database of reported
deaths maintained by the Social Security Administration or a comparable database (a “Death Master File”). In contrast, New
Mexico has enacted legislation that also requires such comparisons, but exempts life insurance companies, like Kemper’s life
insurance subsidiaries (the “Life Companies™), that have not previously utilized a Death Master File, and instead only requires
that such companies conduct Death Master File comparisons for life insurance policies issued and delivered in New Mexico
after the legislation’s effective date. Likewise, Alabama has enacted a statute that requires such comparisons, but only with
respect to policies issued on or after January 1, 2016.

In November 2012, certain of the Life Companies filed a declaratory judgment action in state court in Kentucky asking the
court to construe the Kentucky DMF Statute to apply only prospectively - i.e., only with respect to those life insurance policies
issued in Kentucky on or after the effective date of the Kentucky DMF Statute - consistent with what the Life Companies
believe are the requirements of applicable Kentucky statutory law and Kentucky and federal constitutional provisions. On April
1, 2013, the trial court denied the subject Life Companies’ motion for summary judgment and held that the requirements of the
Kentucky DMF Statute apply to life insurance policies issued before the statute’s January 1, 2013 effective date. The subject
Life Companies believe that the court did not correctly apply governing law and have appealed the trial court’s decision to the
Kentucky Court of Appeals, which issued a stay of enforcement of the Kentucky DMF Statute against the subject Life
Companies pending the appeal. A decision by the Court of Appeals is unlikely before the second half of 2014.

In July 2013, certain of the Life Companies filed a declaratory judgment action in state court in Maryland, asking the court to
construe the Maryland DMF Statute to apply only to policies issued in Maryland after the effective date of the statute for
essentially the same reasons asserted in the Kentucky proceeding. The State of Maryland defendants filed a motion to dismiss
the action, contending that the subject Life Companies did not exhaust their administrative remedies before filing their action in
the trial court. A hearing on the state’s motion to dismiss is scheduled in March 2014.

The Life Companies are the subject of an unclaimed property compliance audit (the “Treasurers’ Audit”) being conducted by a
private audit firm retained by the treasurers/controllers of thirty-eight states (the “Audit Firm”). In July 2013, the California
State Controller (the “CA Controller”) filed a complaint for injunctive relief against the Life Companies in state court in
California, seeking an order requiring the Life Companies to produce all of their in-force policy records to the Audit Firm to
enable the firm to perform a comparison of such records against a Death Master File and to ascertain whether any of the
insureds under such policies may be deceased. As described below, the Life Companies have filed a counterclaim in this case
against the CA Controller.

The Life Companies are the subject of a multi-state market conduct examination by six state insurance regulators that is focused
on the Life Companies’ claim settlement and policy administration practices, and specifically their compliance with state
unclaimed property statutes (the “Multi-State Exam”). The Multi-State Exam was originated in June 2012 as a single-state
examination by the Illinois Insurance Director. Insurance regulators from five additional states - California, Florida,
Pennsylvania, New Hampshire and
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 23. CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

North Dakota - joined the examination in May 2013. In July 2013, the Life Companies received requests from the Illinois
Department of Insurance, as the managing lead state for the Multi-State Exam, for a significant volume of additional
information, including their records of in-force policies and other information of the type previously requested by the Audit
Firm as part of the Treasurers’ Audit and which is the subject of the CA Controller’s complaint.

In September 2013, certain of the Life Companies filed declaratory judgment actions against the insurance regulators in the
states of California, Florida, Illinois and Pennsylvania, asking the courts in those states to declare that applicable law does not
require life insurers to search a Death Master File to ascertain whether insureds are deceased. The subject Life Companies are
also asking the courts to declare that regulators in those states do not have the legal authority to (i) obtain life insurers’ policy
records for the purpose of comparing those records against a Death Master File, and (ii) impose payment obligations on life
insurers before a claim and due proof of death have been submitted. The declaratory judgment action in California was filed as
a counterclaim to the CA Controller’s complaint, joining the California Insurance Commissioner and the Audit Firm as parties
to the counterclaim. These cases are in various stages procedurally and a decision in any of them is unlikely before the second
quarter of 2014.

The results of the Treasurers’ Audit, Multi-State Exam and the various litigation described above cannot currently be predicted.
The Life Companies continue to maintain that states lack the legal authority to establish new requirements that have the effect
of changing the terms of existing life insurance contracts with regard to basic claims handling obligations and processes. If
these state officials are able to apply such new requirements retroactively to the Life Companies’ existing life insurance
policies, it will fundamentally alter the nature and timing of their responsibilities under such policies by effectively eliminating
contractual terms that condition claim settlement and payment on the receipt of a claim, including “due proof of death” of an
insured. The outcome of the various state initiatives and related litigation could have a significant effect on, including
acceleration of, the Life Companies’ payment and/or escheatment of policy benefits, and significantly increase their claims
handling costs. Kemper cannot reasonably estimate the amount of loss that it would recognize if the Life Companies were
subjected to such requirements on a retroactive basis.

120



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 24. RELATED PARTIES

Mr. Fayez Sarofim, who served as a director of Kemper until May 1, 2013, is the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and the majority shareholder of FS&C, a registered investment advisory firm. Mr. Christopher B. Sarofim, who
currently is a director of Kemper and was elected as a director of Kemper on May 1, 2013, is Vice Chairman of FS&C.
Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity, is party to an agreement with FS&C whereby FS&C provides investment management services
with respect to certain assets of Trinity for a fee based on the fair market value of the assets under management. Such
agreement is terminable by either party at any time upon 30 days advance written notice. Trinity had $154.7 million, $125.2
million and $115.2 million in assets managed by FS&C at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Investment
Expenses incurred in connection with such agreement were $0.4 million, $0.3 million and $0.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

FS&C also provides investment management services with respect to certain funds of the Company’s Pension Plan. The
Company’s Pension Plan had $148.6 million, $120.7 million and $107.1 million in assets managed by FS&C at December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company’s Pension Plan incurred, in the aggregate, expenses of $0.3 million, $0.3
million and $0.3 million to FS&C for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

With respect to the Company’s defined contribution plans, one of the alternative investment choices afforded to participating
employees is the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund, an open-end, diversified managed investment fund. FS&C provides investment
management services to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund as a sub-investment advisor. According to published reports filed by
FS&C with the SEC, the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund pays monthly fees to FS&C according to a graduated schedule computed
at an annual rate based on the value of the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund’s average daily net assets. The Company does not
compensate FS&C for services provided to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. Participants in the Company’s defined contribution
plans had allocated $22.8 million, $20.4 million and $19.3 million for investment in the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund at
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, representing 6%, 7% and 7% of the total amount invested in the Company’s
defined contribution plans at such dates.

The Company believes that the transactions described above have been provided on terms no less favorable to the Company
than could have been negotiated with non-affiliated third parties.

As described in Note 21, “Other Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company also has certain
relationships with Capitol, a mutual insurance company which is owned by its policyholders, and its subsidiary, ORCC.
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NOTE 25. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Revenues:

Earned Premiums............covveeviiieieiieieicceiie e
Net Investment INCOME.............ooooivviiiiiiiniiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee
Other INCOME .......oviiieiieeiiieceeeeeee et

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments.............cccoeeuvveeennnn.

Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:

Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses.....................

Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive

INCOME....c..eiiiiiiiiic e
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.............cccc.......

Total REVEINUES .......eviiieiiiieiiiceie ettt sae e

Expenses:

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss

Adjustment EXPenses..........ccecererieienenieeiesienieseeienieseenennes
Insurance EXPenses ........ccccoevvieeiiiiieiiiiiiiiieee e
Interest and Other EXPenses ..........cccecvevverieeeeierieneeieiesie e

TOtal EXPENSES.....eerieuieuieieieeiieiieieniesieeeteniesteeseete e sae et eneenseseeeseenes
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes.............
Income Tax EXPense ........cccueveeiiieiiiiieieeieeeeee e
Income from Continuing Operations.............cocceveceeereneeereneneeenne
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations.............cccceeverveeneenen.

NGt INCOME ... e

Year
Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
$ 5099 $ 5128 $§ 5075 $ 495.6 $2,025.8
80.8 74.6 824 76.9 314.7
0.2 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.8
26.9 2.3 49.1 20.8 99.1
(2.4) (2.3) (3.5) (7.6) (15.8)
0.5 1.3 0.1 — 1.9
(1.9) (1.0) (3.4) (7.6) (13.9)
615.9 588.9 635.7 586.0 2,426.5
349.2 354.2 338.3 315.5 1,357.2
158.3 163.1 170.1 162.9 654.4
23.8 25.2 25.3 26.2 100.5
531.3 542.5 533.7 504.6 2,112.1
84.6 46.4 102.0 814 3144
(26.0) (13.9) (33.4) (26.6) (99.9)
58.6 325 68.6 54.8 214.5
0.2) 1.5 1.5 0.4 3.2
$ 584 $ 340 $ 701 $ 552 § 2177
$ 100 $ 056 $ 121 $ 098 $ 374
$ 100 $ 059 § 124 $ 099 $§ 381
$ 100 $ 059 § 1.23 0.99 3.80
$ 024 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.96

The sum of quarterly per share amounts does not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares

outstanding for each of the periods presented.

122



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 25. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited) (Continued)

Year
Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Revenues:
Earned Premiums. ........coooiiieieiiineeccsee e $§ 5292 $§ 5298 §$§ 5273 $§ 5208 $2,107.1
Net Investment InCome..........cccooeeviiniiiniiniinieiiecieeceen 77.4 75.2 70.4 72.9 295.9
Other INCOME ......ccuieviieiiiiiiiieeeeceee e 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.8
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments..............ccccevveeneeee. 4.9 4.1 50.9 5.5 65.4
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses..................... (0.5) 0.4) 3.2) 3.1 (7.2)
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive
INCOME.....eeieeiiieii ettt as — — — 0.3 0.3
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings......................... 0.5) 0.4) 3.2) 2.8) (6.9)
TOtal REVENUES......oovviiiiiiiiiiee ettt 611.2 608.9 645.6 596.6 2,462.3
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss
Adjustment EXPenses.........cccocvvieeeienienieeieiienieereeieie e 376.6 423.8 368.7 413.0 1,582.1
Insurance EXPenses .........ccceveerieiieeiieiiieieeieesecee e 162.4 167.7 172.7 169.5 672.3
Interest and Other EXPenses ........coceevevvevveerieienienrieeieiesre e 21.8 20.9 22.7 20.1 85.5
Total EXPENSES....ueveuieuiiiiieieieeieieie ettt 560.8 612.4 564.1 602.6  2,339.9
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes.. 50.4 3.5 81.5 (6.0) 122.4
Income Tax Benefit (EXPense)........cecooeruerierieenierieenenieieeseeenennes (14.1) 5.1 (25.9) 4.3 (30.6)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations ............ccceeeveeververveennene 36.3 1.6 55.6 (1.7) 91.8
Income from Discontinued Operations .........c..coeccverencccreneneennne. 7.3 0.7 — 3.6 11.6
NELINCOMIE ...ttt $ 436 $ 23 $§ 556 $ 1.9 § 1034
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted -
Share:
BaSIC .t $§ 061 $ 003 $§ 095 $ (0.03) § 1.55
DHIIEA oo & 060§ 0.03 § 095 § (0.03) § 154
Net Income Per Unrestricted Share: -
BaSIC .ottt $§ 073 $ 004 $§ 095 $ 003 $§ 175
DIIUted ...t § 072§ 004 $§ 095 § 003 $§ 174
Dividends Paid to Sharcholders Per Share.....cocoocccoommrrcccrs. $ 024§ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 096

The sum of quarterly per share amounts does not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares
outstanding for each of the periods presented.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KEMPER CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedules listed in Item 15. We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for these financial
statements and financial statement schedules, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and
financial statement schedules and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth herein. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (1992) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 14, 2014
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
Not Applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that, as of the end of such period, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms, and accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2013 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We, as management of the Company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC, internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or
under the supervision of, a company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

*  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

»  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

*  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on
the control criteria established in a report entitled Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued in 1992 by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation, we have concluded that the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2013.

The independent registered public accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP, as auditors of Kemper’s consolidated financial
statements, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of management’s internal control over financial reporting based
on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued in 1992 by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/S/" DONALD G. SOUTHWELL /S/" FRANK J. SODARO
Donald G. Southwell Frank J. Sodaro
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 14, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The attestation report of the independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is included in Item 8 under the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Election of Directors,”
“Executive Officers,” “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock™ and “Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement for
Kemper’s 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Kemper plans to file such proxy statement within 120 days after
December 31, 2013, the end of Kemper’s fiscal year.

Kemper’s code of ethics applicable to its chief executive officer, chief financial officer and principal accounting officer (“Code
of Ethics for Senior Financial Executives”) is posted in the “Governance” section of Kemper’s website, kemper.com. Kemper
also intends to disclose any future amendments to, and any waivers from (though none are anticipated), the Code of Ethics for
Senior Financial Executives in the “Governance” section of its website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Executive Compensation,”
“Executive Officer Compensation and Benefits,” “Director Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation,” and “Compensation Committee Report” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2014 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. The Compensation Committee Report to be included in such Proxy Statement shall be deemed to be furnished in
this report and shall not be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act as a
result of such furnishing in this Item 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this Item is set forth in the table below and incorporated herein by reference to the section
captioned “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average for Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Compensation Plans
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights or Programs (1)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by
Security Holders........cceveeeecienienieieieniecreenne 2,543,673 $ 41.38 8,750,768
Equity Compensatlon Plans Not Approved by
Security Holders... . — — —
Total..c.coiiiiciciccc e 2,543,673 § 41.38 8,750,768

(1) Includes 390,486 shares reserved for future grants based on the achievement of performance goals under the terms of
outstanding performance-based restricted stock awards.

Kemper’s Omnibus Plan permits various stock-based awards including, but not limited to, stock options, stock appreciation
rights, time-vested restricted stock and performance-based restricted stock.

The design of the Omnibus Plan provides for fungible use of shares to determine the number of shares available for future
grants, with a fungible conversion factor of three to one, such that the Share Authorization will be reduced at two different rates,
depending on the type of award granted. Each share of Kemper common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or
stock appreciation rights will reduce the number of shares available for future grant under the Share Authorization by one share,
while each share of Kemper common stock issued pursuant to “full value awards” will reduce the number of shares available
for future grant under the Share Authorization by three shares. “Full value awards” are awards, other than stock options or stock
appreciation rights, that are settled by the issuance of shares of Kemper common stock and include restricted stock, restricted
stock units, performance shares, performance units, if settled with stock, and other stock-based awards.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Related Person
Transactions” and “Director Independence” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the section captioned “Independent Registered Public
Accountant” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Documents filed as part of this Report

1.

3.

Financial Statements. The consolidated balance sheets of Kemper and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and
the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows and shareholders’ equity for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, together with the notes thereto and the report of Deloitte & Touche LLP thereon
appearing in Item 8 are included in this 2013 Annual Report.

Financial Statement Schedules. The following four financial statement schedules are included on the pages immediately
following the signature pages hereof. Schedules not listed here have been omitted because they are not applicable or not
material or the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Schedule I Investments Other Than Investments in Related Parties
Schedule II Parent Company Financial Statements

Schedule III Supplementary Insurance Information

Schedule IV Reinsurance Schedule

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, with regards to the Financial
Statement Schedules listed above, is incorporated by reference to the Report of Independent Registered Public Accountant
included in Item 8.

Exhibits. An Exhibit Index has been filed as part of this report on pages E-1 through E-4.

(b) Exhibits. Included in Item 15(a)3 above

(c) Financial Statement Schedules. Included in Item 15(a)2 above
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below on the following page hereby appoints each of Donald G. Southwell, Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer, Frank J. Sodaro, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and Scott Renwick,
Senior Vice President and General Counsel, so long as such individual remains an executive officer of Kemper Corporation, his
true and lawful attorney-in-fact with authority together or individually to execute in the name of each such signatory, and with
authority to file with the SEC, any and all amendments to this 2013 Annual Report of Kemper Corporation, together with any
and all exhibits thereto and other documents therewith, necessary or advisable to enable Kemper Corporation to comply with
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations, and requirements of the SEC in respect thereof,
which amendments may make such other changes in the 2013 Annual Report as the aforesaid attorney-in-fact executing the
same deems appropriate.

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Kemper Corporation has duly caused this

2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, on February 14, 2014.

KEMPER CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /S/' DONALD G. SOUTHWELL
Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of Kemper Corporation in the capacities indicated on February 14, 2014.

Signature

/S/ DONALD G. SOUTHWELL

Donald G. Southwell

/S/" FRANK J. SODARO

Frank J. Sodaro

/S/" RICHARD ROESKE

Richard Roeske

/S/ JAMES E. ANNABLE

James E. Annable

/S/" DOUGLAS G. GEOGA

Douglas G. Geoga

/S/ JULIE M. HOWARD

Julie M. Howard

/S/" ROBERT J. JOYCE

Robert J. Joyce

/S WAYNE KAUTH

Wayne Kauth

/S/" CHRISTOPHER B. SAROFIM

Christopher B. Sarofim

/S/" DAVID P. STORCH

David P. Storch

/S/ RICHARD C. VIE

Richard C. Vie

Title

Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(principal executive officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal
financial officer)

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (principal

accounting officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

INVESTMENTS OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES

DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Dollars in Millions)

SCHEDULE I

Amount
Amortized Carried in
Cost Fair Value Balance Sheet
Fixed Maturities:
Bonds and Notes:
United States Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.............. $ 3511 $ 3622 § 362.2
States and Political SUDAIVISIONS .........ccveievvieieiiiiirieeeiee et ceee e eeve et eevee s 1,327.4 1,361.0 1,361.0
Corporate Securities:
Other Bonds and NOLES ......c..eoeviiiiiiiieiie ettt e 2,685.4 2,844.4 2,844.4
Redeemable Preferred StOCKS .......cocuviiivieeiiiiiiiiececee et 6.6 7.4 7.4
Total Investments in FiXed MaturitieS........c..covviiivuieiiiieeeeeeeeeeeiee e et e e esveeeenneeen 4,370.5 4,575.0 4,575.0
Equity Securities:
Preferred StOCKS . ....oviiiieeeceeeeeee e 105.5 110.2 110.2
COMMON SOCKS ....uviiiiiiietiei ettt ettt ettt ettt e st e eebeeaaeeaseenbeenseesseas 152.2 189.5 189.5
Other EQUILY INEETESES .....veeiieeieieieeiieeie ettt eete e eseeneeas 272.3 298.8 298.8
Total Investments in EQUILY SECUITHES......ceverieriirieieriecieeierieseeeee e 530.0 598.5 598.5
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative
Undistributed Earnings ..........ccecvevievieeieiienienesieieniesie ettt sie st nes 245.1 XXX.X 245.1
Loans, Real Estate and Other INVeStmMENts ...........cccoeevvieeiiiieiiiiceiie et 448.0 XXX.X 448.0
Short-term INVESTMENTS ......c.ooiuiieeiiiiieie ettt ettt ettt eae e veeeveeaean 284.7 XXX.X 284.7
TOtal INVESTMENTS. .....coiiiuviiieiiiiiiie ettt eeee e ettt e e e et ta e e s e eaaeeeeesntaeesssanaseesesnnneas $ 5,878.3 $ 6,151.3

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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SCHEDULE II

KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Millions)

December 31,

2013 2012

ASSETS
INVEStMENTS 1N SUDSIAIATIES ......cvviiieiieieiieceie ettt ettt e et eae e et e e enaeeeeaaeeenaessereeeeaeeeeseeesneeennaeean $2,614.0 $2,744.0
Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2013 — $4.7; 2012 — $4.9)....ooveieiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee s 5.0 4.5
ShOTt-terM INVESTMENLS ....eecviiiiiieiiieii ettt ettt ete e te et e et e et eesbe et e eseesteessaessaessseensessseenseenseenseesseenssennes 130.8 183.5
CASI -t b bbbt bbbt bbbt bt bt be sttt enes 20.8 2.2
Other RECEIVADIES......eiiviiiiiieiiiiiieie ettt ettt sttt et e et e e te et e st esabestbeesseesseessaesseessaeseesssenssesssanssenns 4.9 7.2
Deferred INCOME TaAXES.....ccveriiiuiiierieriieeieiesteetee et este st etestesteessesesseeseessessessaessessesseeseessassessesssensessessaessans 35.0 75.4
ONET ASSEES.c.cuetiieiieieitiiet ettt ettt ettt eb et a ettt b et ebe bbb eaeeh et et eaeeae bt eae bt bt et enes 7.3 6.3
TTOTAL ASSEES...veiiiiiteiie e ettt ee ettt e ettt e e e et e e e e et e e e e eaaeee e e e aaeeeeeeaaaeeeea s teeeeeaaaeeeeaartaeeesaarrreeeeaarrraeeearareeeans $2,817.8 §$ 3,023.1
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY -
Senior Notes Payable, 6.00% due 2017 (Fair Value: 2013 — $395.5; 2012 — $393.7)..ccveivecvevninieienene $ 3579 § 3573
Senior Notes Payable, 6.00% due 2015 (Fair Value: 2013 — $271.6; 2012 — $276.3)...ccceirveeereenne. 249.0 248.6
Liabilities fOr INCOME TAXES......cc.coveireriiieiirienieieietestet ettt ettt ettt ettt b et ae e eseenes 90.5 77.6
Liabilities for Benefit Plans 63.9 172.8
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities ........ccevieieierienierieieieseeeeierie ettt ettt eseeneebe e sneenaens 5.0 5.1
TOAl LIADIIIEIES. ... ievieiieeiieeiie et ettt ettt et e et e st e et e eebeesbeesbeessaesseessaesssessseassessseessaanseensaeseesssenssesssenssenns 766.3 861.4
Shareholders’ Equity:

COMMON STOCK ...ttt ettt sttt st et a ettt eae bt eneenes 5.6 5.8

Additional Paid-in Capital...........ccecoieiiiiieei ettt ettt re e eneenns 694.8 725.0

REtaAINEd EAIMINGS .....cvevviiieieieciieieiese sttt ettt ettt et e e sbeeet et e sbesseeseensessesseeseensessesseensans 1,215.8 1,118.2

Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME..........c.ccveiiiiiiiiiiiiinciceeeceeeee e 135.3 312.7
Total Shareholders’ EQUILY ........ccvereruieieierieeieieteste et etest ettt e et etaesaessesseessessessesseessensesseessensessessaensens 2,051.5 2,161.7
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ EQUILY ........ccccceriririierinirieieseei ettt $2,817.8 §$ 3,023.1

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Net INVeStMENt INCOMIE. .........eveuiriiiieieiieteeieieiee ettt sttt se et seesesseseesessesseneenens $ 02 § 02 $ 0.4
Net Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of INVEStMENLS ........c.coevereeerenienieineneeiceesecenenne 0.6 0.3 0.2)
TOtAl REVEIUERS ....c.evviiiieiieiiititcies ettt ettt sttt et sb et 0.8 0.5 0.2
331G (e A Bhq 153 4 1 PP 39.0 39.5 394
Other Operating EXPENSES ......ccuieieierieriieieieseeitetete sttt ste e eseestesseeeeentessessesseensensesseennens 21.6 13.6 10.3
Total Operating EXPENSES..........coueieiriiriiiiiienieeeietestet ettt sttt 60.6 53.1 49.7
Loss before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries...........ccceevevvererrennnne (59.8) (52.6) (49.5)
Income Tax Benefit........cccoueiiiiriiiiiiiiniicncnece ettt 20.8 18.2 18.6
Loss before Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries...........cccovverieriieiienieeieeeeeeeeeeeene (39.0) (34.4) (30.9)
Equity in Net Income of SubSIAIaries. .........cereririerieririeierieseetesiesieeceteie e ennens 256.7 137.8 105.4
INEE TICOIMIC .ttt ettt st e e st st e et e st et et eneeseesenseneesensenneneenens $ 2177 $§ 1034 $§ 745

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
INEE TICOIMIE .ttt ettt ae st e e s e s et e st e st esenseneeseesesseneeseesenseneeneas $ 2177 § 1034 $§ 745
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SUbSIAIATIES ......ccueeeuieriierieiecieeie et (324.9) 157.9 231.5
Securities Held by Parent.........c.cceeieieiiiiiieieiecieeieseeeeeee et — — 0.6
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held by SUDSIAIATIES .......ceveviriiiiieieiiciieierieeieee e ennens (37.9) (61.2) (30.2)
Securities Held by Parent...........ocovieiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeseeee e — — 0.7)
Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES).......eecueeruiriiieiieiieiiesiiesitesee et eaeeee e ee e es (362.8) 96.7 201.2
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Yeart.........cccccocevveneenee. 61.6 (29.4) (53.9)
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs .........c..ccceceveniecereninicennens 25.0 16.2 8.7
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS ........ccvevverireeierienieeieieieseeieie e 86.6 (13.2) (45.2)
Foreign Currency Translation AdjUStMENtS.........ccevuevueerierierienierieneneeieie e sieenees 0.2 1.6 0.4
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.........ccocceevevverirennnee. — — —
Foreign Currency Translation AdjuStmMEnts..........cceceeverierierieeierienieeieienieseeeeeeesieseeennes 0.2 1.6 0.4
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) before Income TaXes.........ccoeverereenieneneenienenennens (276.0) 85.1 156.4
Income Tax Benefit (Expense):
Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SUDSIAIATIES .....c.eevveviriiieieieiiciieeieieeeee et eenens 115.9 (55.9) (82.3)
Securities Held Dy Parent.........c.coovieieiiiiiieieecieeterieeeeeee et — — 0.2)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held by SUDSIAIATIES .......ccveveriiieieieieiiieieiesieeeeeee et 13.2 21.5 10.7
Securities Held by Parent...........cooviiieiiiiiieieinieeee e — — 0.2
Unrealized Holding Gains and LOSSES.......ccevieierieriieieieniesieeeiesteeeeeete e sseese e sseennes 129.1 (34.4) (71.6)
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year.........ccoccecevvnneenee. (21.6) 10.3 19.0
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs ..........ccccveeieeviieveenieenennee. (8.8) 5.7) 3.1)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS ........oceririeierieniinieieieneeeeceie e 30.4) 4.6 15.9
Foreign Currency Translation AdjUStMEntS.........cceverueerierierienieienienteieie et seeenees 0.1) (0.6) (0.1)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.........ccocceeevevierirnnnnen. — — —
Foreign Currency Translation AdjUStMEntS.........cccevereeerierierieeierienieeceieie e seeie e eieennas 0.1) (0.6) (0.1)
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE) ....cc.ecveeiieiiieiieiieiierieseesitesetesteeae e eseeaeeseeneeeseeseenseens 98.6 (30.4) (55.8)
Other Comprehensive INCOME (LL0SS).....eeveveriirieierieiiieiieiertesieetesee e ereetesestesreensesbesreennens (177.4) 54.7 100.6
Total Comprehensive INCOME. ........c.eueueuiiririririeieieiet et $ 403 $ 1581 $§ 175.1

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Operating Activities:
INEE INCOIMIC. ...ttt sttt b et b s et e st ee b et ses e st eneeeenens $ 2177 $ 1034 $§ 745
Adjustment Required to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operations:
Equity in Net Income of SubSIdIaries ..........cccueeeuieiieiieiieseeceeeesee e (256.7) (137.8) (105.4)
Cash Dividends from Subsidiaries........c..coeceeerireirinineiiiieee et 95.0 95.0 70.8
Cash Contribution to Defined Benefit Plan ...........cccocovirienienininiiiinencncienceene (55.0) — (32.2)
Net Realized (Gains) Losses on Sales of Investments.........c.ccceeeevevienieneecienieneennennn. (0.6) (0.3) 0.2
OhET, NET..... ettt ettt ettt sttt sa et be e eaeenes 67.3 8.5 35.5
Net Cash Provided by Operating ACtIVItIeS.......ccveeieeiriieeiieiiecieeneesiee e ste e seeeeaeeaeeneees 67.7 68.8 43.4
Investing Activities:
Capital Distribution from Subsidiary..........cc.coccceeiiiiiniiiiiinineeeeeee e 50.5 20.0 250.0
Sales, Paydowns and Maturities of Fixed Maturities ..........ceeververiereereerienesreienieseesenenns — 13.1 —
Purchases of Common Stocks from Subsidiary...........cecevereerienienenieienieneeceieseeeenen — (50.8)
Change in Short-term INVEStMENLS .......cceeviiiiiiieeii et 52.7 (106.3) (35.4)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing ACHVILIES.......cveverueriereeieienieeeeieienieeeeeeneeseeennas 103.2 (73.2) 163.8
Financing Activities:
Notes Payable Proceeds:
Revolving Credit AGIEEMENL .......c.ceveruereirieierie ettt ettt st ee e st seeenees — 95.0
Notes Payable Payments:
Revolving Credit AGIeEMENL .........ccuerveereeieierieeiieieriesieeeeetestesteeeensessessesseensensesseennens — (95.0)
Cash Dividends Paid...........ccooiiiiieiriiieiee e (54.9) (56.9) (58.2)
Common StoCK REPUICNASES .......ccuevvireieieiiiieieieseet ettt ae e sre e b seeennens (100.4) (60.7) 27.4)
Cash Exercise of StOCK OPLIONS .....cc.evueeieriiririeieniiniteiesie ettt ettt eiens 1.7 1.3 0.2
Excess Tax Benefits on Share Based AWards...........ccoeoieirenieninineneceereeeeeseeeeeene 1.3 0.5 0.2
Net Cash Used by FINancing ACtIVItIES. ......cecvervirieierieniieieienieeeeeteiesieeeesenseseeeneesseseesenenns (152.3) (115.8) (85.2)
Increase (Decrease) N Cash .......ccviiiiiiieiieieeie et ns 18.6 (120.2) 122.0
Cash, Beginning Of YEar.........cccieieieriirieieiesieceeteie ettt sttt e ve e s e besseennesesreennens 2.2 122.4 0.4
Cash, ENA O YEAT......cueueuiieiiiiririeieieteie sttt $ 208 $ 22§ 1224

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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SCHEDULE IV

KEMPER CORPORATION
REINSURANCE SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011

(Dollars in Millions)

Percentage

Ceded to Assumed of Amount

Gross Other from Other Net Assumed to

Amount Companies Companies Amount Net
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Life Insurance in FOICE .......coouvvvvivviiviiieeieeee e $21,0060 $ 5764 $ 2295 $20,659.1 1.1%
Premiums: -
Life INSUTANCE ......ovviivieeieieiicieeeeieete et $ 3924 § 15 §$ 1.8 § 3927 0.5%
Accident and Health Insurance...........ccccceevevirveienirnnnne. 161.9 0.6 0.1 161.4 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance .........c..ccccevereevienicnnnne. 1,452.7 31.8 50.8 1,471.7 3.5%
Total PrEMIUITIS. ......vviviiviieeieceie et $ 2,007.0 $ 339 § 527 $ 2,025.8 2.6%
Year Ended December 31, 2012 -
Life Insurance in FOICE ...uuvviiiieoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen $ 21,3404 $ 6104 $ 2429 $20,972.9 1.2%
Premiums: -
Life INSUTANCE ......coviivievieieieeieeeeteete et $ 3928 § 14 $ 20 $ 3934 0.5%
Accident and Health Insurance...........ccccevervrvevieninnnnne. 165.5 0.4 0.1 165.2 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance .........c.cccccevevvevieniennenne. 1,547.3 40.7 41.9 1,548.5 2.7%
TOtal PLOIMIUINS. .ttt ettt e e eeeeeeeeaeas $ 2,1056 $ 425 $ 440 $ 2,107.1 2.1%
Year Ended December 31, 2011 -
Life Insurance in FOTCE ...uuvveiiieoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenn $ 21,6278 $ 6620 $ 2569 $21,222.7 1.2%
Premiums: -
Life INSUTanCe ........ocevveeieriineieieieseeeetee e $ 3943 § 15 §$ 23 $ 3951 0.6%
Accident and Health Insurance...........cccccoeverveevevieniennnne. 166.5 0.3 0.1 166.3 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance ...........cccccevcervevieriennnnne. 1,609.8 38.9 41.3 1,612.2 2.6%
TOtal PLOIMIUINS. c.eeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et e et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaean $ 2,1706 $ 40.7 $ 437 $ 2,173.6 2.0%

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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Exhibit Index

The following exhibits are either filed as a part hereof or are incorporated by reference. Exhibit numbers followed by an
asterisk (*) indicate exhibits that are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.

Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File
Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed or
Furnished
Herewith

3.1
32

4.1

42

43

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3*

10.4*

10.5%

10.6*

10.7*

Restated Certificate of Incorporation

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Kemper
Corporation

Rights Agreement between Kemper and
Computershare Trust Company, N.A. as
successor Rights Agent, including the Form of
Certificate of Designation, Preferences and
Rights of Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, the Form of Rights Certificate and the
Summary of Rights to Purchase Preferred Stock,
dated as of August 4, 2004 and amended May 4,
2006 and October 9, 2006

Indenture dated as of June 26, 2002, by and
between Kemper and The Bank of New York
Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee to
BNY Midwest Trust Company, as Trustee

Officers’ Certificate, including form of Senior
Note with respect to Kemper’s 6.00% Senior
Notes due May 15, 2017

Officers’ Certificate, including the form of
Senior Note with respect to Kemper’s 6.00%
Senior Notes due November 30, 2015

Credit Agreement, dated as of March 7, 2012,
by and among Kemper, the lenders party
thereto, JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent, swing line lender and
issuing bank, and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association and Fifth Third Bank, as co-
syndication agents, as amended by Amendment
No. 1 to Credit Agreement effective as of
December 31, 2013

Advances and Security Agreement and
Addendum to Advances and Security
Agreement, effective as of December 31, 2013,
between Trinity Universal Insurance Company
and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas

Kemper Pension Equalization Plan, as amended
and restated effective August 25, 2011, as
amended by Amendment No. 2 effective
September 16, 2013

Kemper Defined Contribution Supplemental
Retirement Plan, as amended and restated
effective August 25, 2011

Kemper Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation
Plan, as amended and restated effective January
1,2014

Kemper Severance Plan, as amended and
restated effective August 25, 2011

Kemper 1995 Non-Employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as amended and restated effective
February 3, 2009

10-Q
10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

8-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-K

E-1

001-18298
001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

3.1
3.1

4.1

4.1

43

4.2

10.15

10.18

10.2

October 31, 2013
May 2, 2013

August 3, 2009

May 14, 2012

May 7, 2012

November 24, 2010

November 2, 2011

November 2, 2011

February 4, 2009



Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File
Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed or
Furnished
Herewith

10.8%*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the
Kemper 1995 Non-Employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as of February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the
Kemper 1995 Non-Employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as of February 3, 2009

Kemper 1997 Stock Option Plan, as amended
and restated effective February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement
under the Kemper 1997 Stock Option Plan, as of
February 1, 2006

Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as amended
and restated effective February 3, 2009

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement
under the Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as of
February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option Agreement (including
stock appreciation rights) under the Kemper
2002 Stock Option Plan, as of February 1, 2011

Kemper 2005 Restricted Stock and Restricted
Stock Unit Plan, as amended and restated
effective February 3, 2009

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Award
Agreement under the Kemper 2005 Restricted
Stock and Restricted Stock Unit Plan, as of
February 1, 2011

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Award Agreement under the Kemper 2005
Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Unit Plan,
as of February 1, 2011

Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as amended
and restated effective October 30, 2013

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement for
Non-Employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of August 25,
2011

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Award
Agreement under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus
Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement for
Non-Employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of May 1, 2013

Form of Deferred Stock Unit Agreement for
Non-Employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of May 1, 2013

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement -
Installment-Vesting form under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4,
2014

10-Q

10-K

10-Q
10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

10-Q

E-2

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

10.6

10.7

10.2

10.8

10.4

10.9

10.9

10.5

10.10

10.11

10.1

10.13

10.24

10.25

10.1

10.2

May 4, 2011

February 4, 2009

May 4, 2011

May 4, 2011

February 4, 2009

May 4, 2011

February 3, 2011

February 4, 2009

February 3, 2011

February 3, 2011

October 31, 2013

February 17, 2012

February 15, 2013

February 15, 2013

May 2, 2013

May 2, 2013



Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by Reference

File
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10.25%*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

10.29*

10.30*

10.31*

10.32%*

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

10.36*

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement -
Cliff-Vesting Form under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan as of February 4, 2014

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement - Installment-Vesting Form
under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan as
of February 4, 2014

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement - Cliff- Vesting Form under
the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan as of
February 4, 2014

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Unit Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as 10-Q 001-18298
amended and restated effective October 29,
2013 (for awards through February 3, 2014)

Form of Annual Incentive Award Agreement 10-K  001-18298
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Form of Multi-Year Incentive Award Agreement 10-K  001-18298
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated effective February 4,
2014

Form of Annual Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Form of Multi-Year Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Kemper Executive Performance Plan, effective
February 4, 2014

Kemper is a party to individual Indemnification ~ 8-K  001-18298
and Expense Advancement Agreements with

each of its directors, as amended and restated

effective February 1, 2012

E-3
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10.20

10.21

10.25

X

October 31, 2013

February 15,2013

February 15, 2013

February 6, 2012
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12
21
23
24

31.1

31.2
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Kemper is a party to individual severance
agreements with the following officers:

Donald G. Southwell (Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer)

John M. Boschelli (Vice President and Chief
Investment Officer)

Diana J. Hickert-Hill (Vice President,
Investor Relations and Corporate Identity)

Shekar G. Jannah (Vice President, Chief Risk
Officer)

Lisa M. King (Vice President, Human
Resources)

Edward J. Konar (Vice President)
Denise I. Lynch (Vice President)

Christopher L. Moses (Vice President and
Treasurer)

Scott Renwick (Senior Vice President and
General Counsel)

Richard Roeske (Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer)

Dennis J. Sandelski (Vice President, Tax and
Corporate Development)

Frank J. Sodaro (Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer)

Each of the foregoing agreements is identical
except that the severance compensation multiple
is 3.0 for Mr. Southwell and 2.0 for the other
officers.

Agreement dated March 18, 2013, with Dennis
R. Vigneau, former Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Subsidiaries of Kemper Corporation
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Power of Attorney (included on the signature
page hereof)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14(a)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant
to SEC Rule 13a-14(a)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)
(32) of Regulation S-K)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of
Regulation S-K)

10-Q 001-18298

10-Q 001-18298

E-4

10.17

10.3

November 2, 2011

May 2, 2013
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10I.1  XBRL Instance X
101.2 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document X
101.3 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation X
Linkbase Document
101.4 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase X
Document
101.5 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation X
Linkbase Document
101.6 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition X

Linkbase Document
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Exhibit 12

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF CONSOLIDATED RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(Dollars in Millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes........... $ 3144 § 1224 $§ 683 §$§ 2263 § 2192
Less Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability

INVESLMENLS ....vieeieiieiieii ettt ettt sseebe b nens (26.4) 9.3) 9.6) (48.8) (47.8)
Plus Distribution of Accumulated Earnings in Equity Method

Limited Liability Investments............ccocveveriererienieeieeeieene 15.4 15.4 — — —
Plus Fixed Charges.........ccooecveeuieiierieciieieeie ettt 44.3 45.1 45.1 39.7 38.8
Less Capitalized INterest .........c.ccveeveveieieriieieieeieseeie e 0.9 (1.8) (2.6) (1.8) 0.7)
Total BarMINS.........cooveviviiiveeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees oo eeesenennas $ 3468 $ 171.8 § 1012 § 2154 $ 2095
IIEETESE ..ottt s $ 417 § 414 § 406 $ 360 $ 36.1
Rental FaCtOr .....c.ooiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0
Capitalized INtErest.......coveviivieciiirieieceeereee et 0.9 1.8 2.6 1.8 0.7
Total FiXed Charges.........cooveuieveuieueeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee et $ 443 § 451 $ 451 $ 397 $§ 388
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (a)......c.cccceeevevereneneneneennenne 7.8 x 3.8x 22x 54x 54x

(a) Theratios of earnings to fixed charges have been computed on a consolidated basis by dividing (a) Income from Continuing
Operations before Income Taxes less Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, plus Distribution
of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, plus fixed charges, and less capitalized interest,
by (b) fixed charges. Fixed charges consist of interest on debt and a factor for interest included in rent expense. Income from
Continuing Operations before Income Taxes has the meaning as set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Income included
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013. Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments and Distribution of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments have the
meanings as set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2013.



Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-58300, 333-4530, 333-38981, 333-86935,
333-76076, 333-87898, 333-127216 and 333-173877 on Form S-8 and Nos. 333-127215, 333-142722 and 333-170297 on
Form S-3 of our report, dated February 14, 2014, relating to the consolidated financial statements and the financial statement
schedules of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”), and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting (which report expresses an unqualified opinion), appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2013.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 14, 2014



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Donald G. Southwell, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 14, 2014

/S/ DONALD G. SOUTHWELL
Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Frank J. Sodaro, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 14, 2014

/S/ FRANK J. SODARO
Frank J. Sodaro
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended

December 31, 2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Donald G.
Southwell, as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/" DONALD G. SOUTHWELL
Name: Donald G. Southwell
Title: Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: February 14, 2014




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended

December 31, 2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Frank J. Sodaro,
as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/" FRANK J. SODARO
Name:  Frank J. Sodaro
Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 14,2014
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Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Kemper Corporation
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Stock Listing

Kemper Corporation is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol KMPR
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